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LETTER TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

LISTENING TO
THE FUTURE

PEVELELR Rl

This annual report is a first for SRS Labs. We are using audio to
give you the opportunity to hear about our company and our vision,
as well as to listen to our audio technology at work. Our portfolio
of breakthrough audio, voice and surround sound technologies
significantly improves the listening experience for people wherever
they are — in their homes, at work, and on the road. Through this
annual report and CD, you will discover why we have become the
audio expert for the consumer electronics industry.

A
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Dear Shareholders,

In 2003, we achieved profitability with revenue of $19.8 million and improved our
operatihg income by 76 percent to $953,000, compared to $543,000 in 2002.
Our consolidated gross margin increased to 80 percent, compared to 75 percent
in 2002. We remained debt-free and increased our cash to over $23 million. As
compared to 2002, our revenue grew four percent, which was less than planned.
Several significant factors impeded our sales growth. These included the impact
caused by geopolitical uncertainties, the effects of SARS on our semiconductor
and licensing businesses in Asia as well as the loss of a major DVD customer in
our licensing businesses. | am glad to report that at this time much of the impact
of these negative factors has subsided and the entire team at SRS is even more
ready to deliver on the growth opportunities that are ahead of us.

Key Initiatives In 2003

2003 was a year of relationship building — of forming new alliances and
strengthening existing ones. During the past year, recognized industry leaders
such as BenQ, Kenwood, Motorola, NEC, Sony, Samsung and Toshiba either
licensed for the first time or expanded their use of SRS technologies. As well, we
developed additional strategic platform partnerships with TI/OMAP, Intel XScale,
PacketVideo and ARM to improve sound quality in mobile phones and wireless
devices. Collaboration with Dspfactory, Motorola and Sigmatel continued in
order to improve audio capabilities in portable audio products. Working with
Micronas and Philips, we have deployed our IP on platforms targeting next
generation flat panel TVs. We continue to work with these and other semiconductor
partners to make our technology solutions widely available and easy to implement
in a variety of analog and DSP platforms, as well as software solutions.
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With 10 years experience in the consumer electronics industry, we understand
its characteristic ups and downs and short product life cycles. In an effort to
establish more stable sales growth, we have implemented a “diversification

i

strategy” on both the licensing and semiconductor sides of our business. Over
the year, we achieved major successes in our diversification efforts and made
significant in-roads with our audio technologies in a broad range of new markets
— from mobile communications and portable audio to automotive and professional
broadcast. In fact, we increased our percentage of licensing revenue from the mobile
phone market to six percent in 2003, from just two percent in 2002. Similarly,
we increased revenue from portable audio and wireless devices to five percent
this year from just over one percent in 2002. By working with top OEMs and
leading platform partners, we have also positioned the company to make further

advances in the PC and automotive markets.
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In 2003, we also successfully implemented our diversification strategy for our
Valence semiconductor subsidiary. We refocused their cost effective design
capabilities to expand beyond custom chips and build new standard ICs under

=
|

| Semiconductor Segment Growth | 2003 | 2002 |
D e R B,
| | | }
! I ‘ ' '
! : | i
I ASIC Custom Chips | 76% | 86% !
' — ; i ;
r | | !
! ASP Standard Chips 1 24% ) 14%
1

—

our ASP brand name, targeting the growing consumer electronics market in Asia
and especially in China. In 2003, our ASP revenue grew to 24 percent of total
semiconductor revenue, compared to 14 percent last year. This increase is particularly
reassuring because one of our goals was to increase Valence's ASP revenue by
expanding the product line to include chips that embed SRS audio technologies.

Now moving on to our exciting brand building initiatives. Our goal is to have
the SRS brand name become recognized by both consumers and manufacturers
in the consumer electronics industry as the “Audio Expert.” We reach consumers
through co-promotional activities with our OEMs, online promotion, public
relations, and our latest professional audio and broadcast ventures. These
programs are working. Our brand is made visible to millions of new consumers
each month. These consumers are surrounded by SRS, from seeing our logo on
the front panel of their recent product purchase, to seeing our logo on their TV
screen, to hearing about Circle Surround on a radio broadcast and reading about
SRS in product articles and reviews.
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Looking Ahead
As for 2004, our number one objective for the year is sales growth. For licensing,
| believe our growth will come from the continued execution of our diversification
into our key market segments. For our Valence semiconductor business, | believe
our growth potential lies in the strength of our cost-effective chip design capabilities,
access to SRS audio technologies, and the customer relationships we have
established in Asia and China in particular.

We are already seeing the results from our strategic business initiatives that
began last year. Through our established IC partnerships, broad OEM customer
base and diverse [P portfolio, we are continuing to build our brand name and
broaden the reach of our business worldwide. We are building new customers
and increasing our leadership in explosive markets such as mobile phones and
digital audio players. We are increasing our research and development activities
and continue to develop new technologies and ICs for the next generation of
consumer electronics. | believe all of these significant relationships and strong
technology and business attributes provide SRS Labs with a unique long-term growth
position in the consumer audio market. | am very excited about the company’s
long-term growth prospects.

In closing, | would like to thank our investors, business partners, and employees
for their continued support through the years. | hope you all enjoy our first SRS “Sound
Check” annual report. | am positive that you will be WOW'd by our powerful audio
technologies and by the progress we are making in reshaping the future of audio.

Sincerely,

Thomas C.K. Yuen 2
Chairman and CEQ, SRS Labs, Inc. /\\
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CHAPTER ONE

WAS & WHERE

R R R R R RN

Sound is an integral part of the electronic products we use every
day. The digital revolution is making all kinds of entertainment
devices available — and affordable. And people are demanding
better quality audio at home, at work, and on the road. SRS Labs
is helping to meet this demand, providing the technologies that
make everything sound better. From mobile phones and MP3
players to flat panel televisions and surround sound systems in
automobiles, we are spearheading the audio revolution.

r——-—-——'-‘*"*‘——T*-———‘-“r-‘-————-]
‘_-.—-—~._.J._.....-.__l<__.._...41_‘__._._.-—!
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QUALITY SOUND
HAS BECOME NECESSARY

An evolution in sound is occurring in
the world of consumer electronics. An
outstanding audio experience is no longer
confined to the multiplex movie theater

or to high-end home theater systems.

As digital technology becomes more
refined, and increasingly more afford-
able, consumers can now enjoy a quality
audio experience wherever they are —
in their cars, on their laptops, and from
their mobile phones and digital audio
players. This phenomenon is yielding
another widespread change as well.
The distinctions between work and
leisure are blurring as these two worlds
are starting to converge. Think about it;
the computers that people use to do word
processing, spreadsheets, to compose

emails, and surf the Internet are now
being used for entertainment purposes:

to watch DVDs and listen to CDs.

Mobile phones are no longer used just
for voice communication but for every-
thing from music and video playback to
gaming. Many PDAs are now designed
with one or two micro spea'kers, serving
entertainment as well as organizational
functions. Additionally, automobiles are
being transformed from mere trans-
portation vehicles to recreation centers,
complete with surround sound and DVD
rear seat entertainment.

As entertainment content is becoming
more integral to the latest digital elec-
tronics products, people have become
more and more discriminating when it
comes to the products they use to deliver

-
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that entertainment. As a result, for manu-
facturers to win in today’s increasingly
competitive marketplace, high quality
audio has become an essential feature
— a “must have” instead of a luxury. And
SRS Labs has become the audio expert

for the consumer electronics industry.

SRS HAS BECOME ESSENTIAL
We are at the forefront of this audio
revolution — and the convergence of
work and leisure time activities. Qur
extensive portfolio of audio, voice and
surround sound technologies — and our
innovative semiconductor solutions —

make 1t all possible.

Specifically, SRS Labs is the number
one source of the technologies that allow
the world's leading consumer electronics
and high-tech manufacturers to create

innovative products that are capable of
delivering a high-quality audio experi-
ence to consumers wherever they are —
at home, on the road, or at work.

Our portfolio of patented technologies
includes techniques to create surround
sound from mono and stereo audio,
process voice to improve its intelli-
gibility and clarity, produce a thrilling
surround sound experience over two
speakers, and solve other audio chal-
lenges faced by manufacturers of elec-
tronics products.

Hundreds of companies license one or
more of our technologies to make every-
thing they develop sound better — and
sell faster. Our audio solutions give them
a sound platform for innovation. And
together we are changing the world.
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CHAPTER TWO

CONQUERING
NEW FRONTIERS

Phit bbbt

A decade ago, SRS Labs started out as an audio enhancement
specialist for the home entertainment industry. But the world of
- consumer audio has changed considerably since then, and it has
grown exponentially. Consequently, we have broadened our
focus, and now provide the technology that enables quality sound
in a broad range of products covering a wide variety of indus-
tries. And everywhere we go, we continue to strengthen the power
of the SRS brand in the minds of manufacturers and consumers.

A
L—_.——_—_l_____-—...l..,....'_—l._.__.__._._)
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TAKING ENHANCED AUDIO TO

UNTAPPED TERRITORIES
As consumer demand for the ultimate
audio experience increases, new growth
markets continue to emerge for SRS
Labs. Our key sales strategy 1s focused
on the billion unit opportunity in the
electronics industry’s largest market seg-
ments, including home theater, mobile
and wireless, personal computer, and
automotive.
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Over our first ten years, we successfully
established SRS Labs as the audio expert
for the home theater industry by work-
ing with companies such as Sony, RCA,
Sharp, Kenwood, Hitachi, Marantz,
Pioneer and many others.

Through our in-country sales offices
located in the most influential manu-
facturing regions of the world including
Japan, Europe, and China, we work
closely with OEMs and large multi-
national customers. SRS Labs’ regional
sales force and engineering personnel
work day-to-day with the top com-
panies and important decision makers.
Our established presence in these
countries provides us insight into new
product trends and the ability to expand
licensing and branding of our tech-
nologies worldwide.

Our diversification strategy is to leverage
our expertise into new market oppor-
tunities where the demand to deliver a
quality audio experience is groWing.
Applications such as mobile phones,
portable audio players, automotive enter-
tainment systems, and personal com-
puters are among the fastest growing
market segments and at the core of our
growth strategy.
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Gateway Plasma

[

HOME THEATER
When SRS Labs was formed in 1993,
Sony and RCA were our first licensees
and televisions were the first product
application for our flagship SRS 3D Stereo
technology. The home theater market has
historically been the largest revenue
contributor to the licensing segment of our
business. This tradition has continued and
over the last ten years, we have expanded
our technology solutions for home theater
to include a host of techniques that provide
a richer entertainment experience —
whether the product is a set-top box, DVD

player, A/V receiver, or television.

Industry experts estimate that sales of flat
panel LCD TVs and plasma displays
will overtake regular tube television sales
in 2004. Unfortunately, the trend toward
thinner displays creates less room for

speakers. Yet consumers still demand
high-quality audio. This is where our
technologies shine. We provide manuf-
acturers with patented solutions that
deliver outstanding audio quality without
the added expense of additional equip-
ment or larger speakers.

A similar situation rings true for set-

top box, DVD player, and A/V receiver
manufacturers who are looking for a way
to offer a surround sound experience
without requiring their customers to pur-
chase all the speakers. Our virtual surround
sound technologies deliver thrilling sur-
round sound over only two speakers, thus
enabling every room in the house to have
the same high quality as the devoted
home theater room. Whether the audio
source 1s mono, stereo, or multichannel,
no other company delivers a more

comprehensive family of audio solutions.

AUDIO ENTERTAINMENT
GOES MOBILE
Mobile phones and PDAs are becoming
entertainment devices, and as a result,
manufacturers need to provide a level of
audio quality that rivals what consumers
have come to expect from CDs and home
theater equipment. The popularity of

ring tones, digital audio playback, gaming,
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and even streaming video 1s driving
consumers to choose only those products
that can deliver a premium audio and
video experience. SRS Labs has developed

a complete suite of audio enhancement

Samples of portable audio products
featuring WOW

technologies that are rapidly becoming
essential ingredients for handset makers
who want to gain market share in this
highly competitive landscape. Our power-
ful noise reduction and voice intelligibility

[ i i  t m  t o e e g —————

technologies also make mobile phones
much better for communication — which
1, after all, the purpose for which they
were originally designed.

PREMIUM AUDIO HITS THE ROAD
Technology has transformed the auto-
mobile into a home theater on wheels,
and cars remain the largest base of
installed, yet under-used, multi-speaker
systems in the world. There are three
unique opportunities for our technologies
in the automotive segment: enabling
multiple speakers to deliver surround
sound from any audio material, such as
radio or CD; providing a cinema-like
DVD entertainment experience for
passengers wearing headphones; and
improving voice communications when
mobile phones are used in the car. We are
currently working with several large auto-
motive companies to deliver solutions
that address these and other challenges.

THE NOTEBOOK
ENTERTAINMENT REVOLUTION
Personal computers are no longer just for
word processing and email. They are
becoming increasingly powerful enter-
tainment machines, packed with features
like DVD drives and digital music juke-
boxes. The widespread use of the Internet

______________________________________ -
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Toshiba Satellite
Notebook
Model A45-5120 ‘

for gaming as well as music distribution
has yielded new opportunities for the
licensing of our audio and surround sound
technologies by software developers and
computer manufacturers. In short, our
technologies have the ability to turn
desktop and notebook computers into true
home theater products that are capable
of delivering virtual surround sound from
any audio source over built-in speakers
or headphones. We are transforming the
latest high-tech equipment into high-
quality audio systems.
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PLATFORM PARTNER STRATEGY
How does a small company like SRS Labs
reach all of these worldwide markets? The
answer lies in our platform partner strategy,
which 1s key to growing our business and

penetrating new customers and markets.

‘The mission of this strategy is to achieve
comprehensive coverage for our tech-
nologies, especially in those new digital
product applications with short design
cycles. We have successfully developed
close relationships with leading semi-
conductor, hardware and software
companies, making our technologies
available on the chips and/or platforms
they sell to their customers.

"This makes it faster and easier for licensees
to design our technologies into their pro-
ducts. It also provides us with valuable
insights into the next generation products
that they develop. Which gives us a better
perspective on market opportunities.
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CHAPTER THREE

INSIGHTS &
INNOVATIONS

freriereriiibatidl

As the audio experts for the consumer electronics industry, we focus
on developing tomorrow's innovations today. Every day, our
technology and manufacturing partners throughout the world look
to us for the latest in audio, voice, and surround technology to make
the products they develop sound nothing short of amazing. That's
a mission we take very seriously, and never fail to deliver on. Which
is why, after all, our partnerships remain strong — year after year.
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THE WORLD'S “ONE-STOP-SHOP"
AUDIO EXPERTS
From single and stereo speaker mobile
phones to home theaters with the latest
6-speaker systems, we offer technology
solutions that make everything sound
better. We are the one source for the
world’s largest portfolio of patented audio,

voice, and surround sound technologies.

Our technologies are found in over 500
million products, including televisions,
flat panel displays, DVD players, mobile
phones, car audio systems, headphones,
and notebook and desktop computers.
Virtually every leading consumer elec-
tronics manufacturer in the world, names
like Hitachi, Mitsubishi, Microsoft,
NEC, Philips, Pioneer, RCA, Samsung,
Sharp, Sony, and Zenith, count on us to
make their products come alive with
powerful and immersive audio.

AUDIO ENHANCEMENT
TECHNOLOGIES
In the early 1990s, SRS Labs coined the
term “3D sound,” referring to the creation
of a three dimensional audio image over
just two speakers. Our first and original
technology, SRS® 3D Sound, is based
on the fundamentals of the human

hearing system. It is a psychoacoustic

technology, which means 1t “tricks the
ears” into hearing something that 1s
physically impossible. By restoring the
multitude of spatial cues that are present

SRS (®)
|____FOCUS]

N

N

S ik A

in a live listening environment but that
are lost or masked by traditional re-
cording and playback techniques, SRS
3D delivers a natural, three-dimensional
sound field that fills the listening en-
vironment — much like the experience

of a live concert.

Electronic products are getting smaller
and thinner, and, up to now, it has been
virtually impossible to get big, full bass
tones from small speakers. Our TruBass®
technology solves this problem and
allows product manufacturers to cut
costs dramatically by using smaller and

lighter magnets in their speakers, yet
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still deliver deep, rich bass. This is
exceptionally valuable in products where
speaker size is limited due to design

constraints.

SRS FOCUS® technology is for products
such as big screen TVs, flat panel LCD
displays, and automobile sound systems
where speakers cannot be placed in opti-
mal locations, making a realistic sound
experience difficult to achieve. FOCUS
electronically elevates and repositions the
sound image, placing it in the most desir-
able location — right in front of the listener.

Our most popular audio technology is
the award-winning SRS WOW™
which 1s a complete enhancement solu-

tion comprised of several of our patented

techniques — SRS 3D Sound, FOCUS,
and TruBass. WOW turns mono or stereo
audio mto powerful and immersive 3D
sound with thundering bass. [t 1s an
1deal solution for almost any type of one-
speaker, two-speaker, or headphone-
based product, especially those in which
the speakers are placed close together or
the audio signal has been digitally com-
pressed, such as televisions, personal
computers, notebooks, mobile phones,

and MP3 players.

SURROUND SOUND TECHNOLOGIES
The runaway success of DVD players
and digital home theater products has
tueled a demand for a cinema-like enter-
tainment experience in the home, whether
people use two speakers or six. We have
developed a range of technologies that
can do everything from delivering virtual
surround sound over two speakers to
creating 6.1 surround sound from mono

Or stereo content.

Even though more and more program-
ming is broadcast in surround sound
and DVD players have become the
tastest growing product in history, over
70% of households in the U.S. alone still
use two speakers as their primary play-
back system. To address this situation, we
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developed TruSurround XT® to create
a thrilling virtual surround sound exper-
ience over two speakers from stereo, as
well as multichannel encoded material
which 1s the standard for a DVD movie.
TruSurround XT includes two proprie-
tary technologies that further enhance
the entertainment experience.

SRS(®)

Circle Surroundll

With SRS TruBass, which provides
deep, rich bass from the small internal
speakers found inT'Vs, and SRS Dialog
Clarity™, which clarifies speech during
passages that contain dynamic surround
sound effects, TruSurround XT 15 the
industry’s most feature-rich virtual
surround sound technology available.
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Our Circle Surround® families of tech-
nologies address the exact opposite
situation. They create up to 6.1 channels
of thrilling surround sound from non-
surround content, such as stereo television
broadcasts, AM/FM radio, music CDs,
and even old classic black and white
movies on a VHS tape. Circle Surround
allows home theater enthusiasts to enjoy
their expensive multiple spezker surround
sound system from all audic and video

material, not just a DVD movie.

Our flagship version for home theater,
PC, and wireless products 1s Circle
Surround II™. Similar to TruSurround
XT, 1t contains TruBass and Dialog
Clarity for deeper bass and clearer dialog.
Since cars are now becoming home
theaters on the go, Circle Surround Auto-
motive™ was developed to take advantage
of the multiple speakers in cars and deliver
an incredible multichannel surround sound
experience. CS Automotive also includes
a variety of techniques that overcome many
of the audio challenges unique to the auto-

motive environment.

To meet consumer demand for multi-
channel content, leading content providers
and broadcasters have also adopted Circle
Surround to deliver sporting events and

television programming in thrilling
surround sound.

VOICE TECHNOLOGIES

From mobile and cordless phones to
hands-free devices, voice communica-
tions products comprise one of today’s
fastest growing markets in the world.
And the quality and intelligibility of the
spoken word have become increasingly
important features.

Voice processed over a telephone loses
warmth and clarity. Our Dialog Clarity
and TruBass technologies can be used in
voice products to restore the natural and
human aspect of vocal communication,
making it significantly clearer and easier
to understand.

While mobile phones are rapidly including
entertainment functionality, they are still
primarily communication devices and
generally used in noisy environments ~— on
street corners, in airports and tradeshows,
and in automobiles. Our VIP™ technology
is the first patented voice technology that
provides truly significant enhancements
to the intelligibility of the spoken word
through real-time digital signal analysis
and processing. This technology is based
on many years of research on the human
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hearing system conducted by audio scien-
tists at the Hughes Aircraft Company.

When it comes to communication, noth-
ing is more important than a signal that is
tree of excess static or otherwise impeding
noise, especially when the speaker or listener
is in an environment where it 1s challeng-
ing to hear. SRS Noise Reduction™ tech-
nology reduces in-channel noise with-out
impacting the intelligibility of speech.
Combined with VIP, SRS Labs’ voice solu-
tion improves listening comprehension,
comfort, and clarity.

SRS TECHNOLOGIES BECOME MUST HAVE
Our three areas of concentration — audio
enhancement, surround sound, and voice
— define our comprchensive portfolio of
technologies that are applicable to most of
the consumer clectronics product in the
largest emerging global markets. The quality
of consumer electronics 1s Increasing expo-
nentially, elevating the demand for a pre-
mium audio experience from an “additional
feature” to a “must have” benefit. As manu-
facturers are faced with this type of market
pressure, they turn to us to deliver branded,

state-of-the-art technology solutions.
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CHAPTER FOUR

LEVERAGING
THE POWER OF
OUR BRAND

Prber i rbrerigid

Of all the accomplishments that we have achieved in our short
ten-year history, none are more important to us than the strong
partnerships we have developed with the world’s leading electronics
and high-tech manufacturers as well as the growing consumer
recognition of the SRS brand. These two powerful assets are
actually intertwined. The more our partners succeed with products
that include SRS technologies, the more we succeed — and the
stronger the SRS brand becomes.
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At SRS Labs, we understand the power
of a strong brand. We know that a recog-
nized brand 1s what sets a company apart
from its competitors. Lt represents value
and instills confidence and trust among
1ts customers.

Our goal is twofold: to position SRS Labs
as the audio expert in the minds of manu-
facturers and to strengthen the SRS brand
in the hearts and minds of consumers.

During our first ten years, we have
focused on branding SRS Labs to the
leading manufacturing and semicon-
ductor companies around the world,
securing our position as their trusted
audio partner. The strong relationships
and impressive roster of licensees we
have developed over the years 1s a testa-
ment to the value the OEM community

places on our brand and our technologies.
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OGUR PARTNERSHIPS ARE
PIPELINES TO THE WORLD
Over 500 million hardware and software
products, featuring technology licensed
from SRS Labs, have been shipped or
downloaded worldwide. The SRS logo is
prominently displaved on the product
itself or, in the case of mobile phoues and
software products like Microsoft’s
Windows Media® Player, included in the

graphical user interface.

This consistent logo exposure is a power-
ful tool for reaching consumers, and it
reinforces the impression that SRS is

synonymous with quality audio.

Not only do we work closely with our
partners to develop and design the next
generation of products, we also work
closely with them to co-promote the
SRS technologies within their products.
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Using such tools as press releases, joint
media outreach, point-of-sale and pro-
duct literature, trade shows and websites,
our co-marketing programs have become
key to building value for the SRS brand

name worldwide.

Online branding has also become an
important factor for us. A key compo-
nent of our relationship with Microsoft,
for example, is an arrangement where-
by the SRS logo that is displayed in the
audio control panel of the Windows
Media Player is actually a live link to
an SRS technology page. As a result, an
average of 40,000 audio enthusiasts who
use their computers for the playback of
music and entertainment visit our web-
site daily and discover what we're all
about. In 2003 alone, nearly 15 million

Windows Media Player Since 2000, hundreds of
millions of PCs have been sold that include the Windows
Media Player (WMP), which incorporates SRS WOW
technology. & These WMP users enjoy SRS WOW
through their computer speakers, turning their PC speakers
into a powerful 3D audio platform complete with bass
enhancement and audio image positioning technologies.
Users can also click through directly to SRS Labs’ web
site to find out more about how SRS technologies enhance

not only their audio, but their lives.

new visitors were exposed to the SRS
brand for the first time.

On our SRS Labs corporate website,
www.srslabs.com, we offer audio on/off
comparisons of our key technologies so
any visitor can hear the incredible dif-
ference SRS technologies make on a PC.
We are firm believers in the saying “you've

'”

got to hear it to believe it

Another online branding effort involves
e-commerce. Through a special section
of our website, www.srs-store.com, we
sell a variety of SRS branded hardware
accessories as well as software plug-ins.
These products enable consumers to
experience the power of our technology
and to put it to use with their favorite
audio and video materials.
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BRANDING THROUGH BROADCAST

To broaden our reach to consumers, we
launched a new 1mitiative in 2002 to
market our Circle Surround technology
to the protessional audio community.
Circle Surround is the ideal technology
solution for creating surround sound
audio that can be distributed over a two-
channel format, such as broadcast TV,

radio, music CDs, and even VHS tapes.

For us, an important strategic element
of these new relationships is the stipu-
lation that the SRS logo be displayed
at the beginning and/or at the end of
each Circle Surround-encoded telecast,
or on each piece of content produced
in Circle Surround.

Example of
ESPN'’s on-screen
promotion of SRS
Circle Surround

R e e

ESPN was the first network to broadcast
programming in Circle Surround. Since
2002, tens of millions of TV sports
viewers have been exposed to our brand
as they watch their favorite NBA, NFL
and other sporting events.

Other networks, content creators and
broadcasters, including ABC, CBS,
FOX, NBC, PBS, TNT, Paramocunt
Pictures, and Warner Brothers Television,
now carry our Circle Surround tech-
nology to deliver thrilling surround sound

to living rooms around the world.

Late in 2003, we started partnering with
leading radio technology companies in
the U.S. One of these companies is

- Anah
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The
Pros
Know

O SRS S |

Ibiquity, whose HD Radio format is the
standard for digital radio broadcasting in
the U.S. and the holder of the only FCC
license to transmit digital radio and data
over the existing AM/FM airwaves.
Now many other top broadcasters in
key overseas markets are adopting the
technology as their standard multi-
channel encode/decode format.

From TOKYO FM in Japan to Guangong
Radio in China, millions of listeners
around the world are being introduced
to the SRS brand and our technologies.
Now, in addition to our logo being
featured on products, SRS Labs has the
opportunity to further touch the lives of
millions of people each and every day, as
they watch televisions, listen to music or
use their computers for entertainment.
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With such far-reaching and mainstream
exposure, we expect to see a trickle-down
effect of brand awareness. Through re-
peated impressions, the consumer can't
help but take notice. And once the brand
visibility is entrenched, we should see
acceptance of our technologies on an

even wider scale.

Whether SRS technology is featured in
a television, a mobile phone, a DVD
player, a software media player, a set-top
box, or any other product, the ultimate
goal for us is the same: We want the SRS
logo on a product to signify to its users that
they will be able to enjoy the best audio
performance available. In other words,
the SRS brand will become synonymous
with superb sound quality — because SRS
Labs is the world’s leading audio expert.
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CHAPTER FIVE

THE CHIPS ARE
STACKED IN
OUR FAVOR

PEEEEETTER LRI

Our acquisition of ValenceTech in 1998 was one of the most
important accomplishments in our 10-year history. Through this
acquisition, our company acquired a vital strategic capability —
the ability to design and produce leading-edge chip technologies
that help to deliver a quality audio experience in a broad range
of products and industries. We believe the marriage of
ValenceTech’s chip design capability and SRS audio technology
brings an incredible synergy that is vital to SRS Labs' future growth.
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VALENCE BUSINESS

Qur wholly-owned Valence subsidiary
in Hong Kong is an award-winning
designer of analog semiconductors, digital
signal processor ASICs (application
specific integrated circuits), and standard
ICs (integrated circuits) for the consumer
electronics, wireless communications,
gaming, and computer product indus-
tries, SRS Labs is leveraging Valence’s
considerable expertise to develop and
market standard IC solutions (sold under
the brand name ASP Microelectronics)
as well as custom ASICs.

ASIC CUSTOM DESIGN BUSINESS
Valence was established in 1985 primarily
as a custom design house. By the end of
2003, our design staft included 30 engineers
with a full complement of capabilities,
covering a wide range of designs, including
SRAM, DRAM, ROM, EPROM,
EEPROM, FLASH, PLL, ADC, DAC,
OpAmp, LCD Driver, Voltage Muluplier,
Analog Switch, 4-bit or 8-bit CISC and
RISC MCU core.

Our custom ASIC customers include the
Asia-based manufacturing facilities for
consumer electronics, telecommunications
and personal computer manufacturers

headquartered in North America, Europe

and Asia Pacific. Some of Valence’s
custom ASIC projects include: single
chip for LED/LCD clock radio; RISC
Processor system on a chip; singe chip
PDA solution; and a variety of wireless
devices, including infrared, remote con-
troller and RE controller.

While we are unable to disclose the names
of specific customers due to nondisclosure
agreements, we have negotiated to retain
ownership of many of the specific designs,
which form a significant library of intel-
lectual property (IP) that can be utilized
in future projects.

Our reusable IP portfolio includes ana-
log and digital macro libraries, as well
as the fundamental building blocks of
a system-on-chip (SOC) design. We
specialize in low-power and low-current
mixed signal design projects. The con-
version of the many technologies and
processes usually contained on an appli-
cation board, such as gate arrays, T TLs,
ROMs, RAMs, analog to digital con-
verters and MCUs, into one single ASIC
chip is the trend for chip technology

development.

We outsource the manufacturing of these
ASICs to a network of fabrication partners
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throughout Asia Pacific, which allows us
to remain competitive and minimizes our
risk. Our expertise in this type of integrated
design work allows us to offer our customers
a shorter development cycle, smaller die
size and faster turnaround time for final
production. This, in turn, strengthens our
relationships with our customers and
helps us retain our competitive advantage
in the key strategic manufacturing region

of Asia Pacific.

CHINA MARKET OPPORTUNITY
According to Gartner AP Semiconductor
Group, the demand for semiconductors
in China was an estimated US $28 billion
in 2003. Other industry reports show
China to be the world’s fastest growing
semiconductor market, with demand
expected to increase over 20 percent in
the coming year.

o e e e e i e e e e e e e e e e

In 2003, Valence was successful in exe-
cuting our plan to address the explosive
demand in China by retargeting our
chip design capabilities and leveraging
our SRS audio portfolio. We have made
significant inroads with major TV manu-
facturers in China including Changhong
and Samsung. New customers like these
have helped contribute to our strong
growth in the ASP business over the

past year.

GROWTH POTENTIAL THROUGH

ASP STANDARD CHIPS
Our ASP standard chips are targeted at
original design manufacturers (“ODMs”)
and OEMs of a variety of television
applications, including LCD, projection,
CRT and plasma televisions, as well as
automotive, portable audio and personal
computer equipment.

_______________________ g e e e
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Ower the past year, we introduced several
new standard ASP chips, some of which
include SRS technologies. By doing this,
we can address the low-voltage and high
volume markets our current semicon-

ductor partners do not reach.

Some ASP audio chips featuring SRS
technologies introduced during the year
include: Dialog Clarity - for TVs,
MegaWOW processor - for portable
devices, TruBass Processor - for home
audio products, TruSurround XT uni-
versal audio processor - for home theater,
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and SRS Headphone processor - for

personal audio devices.

We have recently expanded our distri-
bution network for these new chips, and
our sales force has begun to market these
chips to OEMs throughout the Asia
Pacific region.

THE FUTURE SOUNDS BRIGHT!
In 2004 and beyond, we believe Valence’s
growth potential lies in the strength of
its geographic location, cost effective
chip design capability, access to world

_______________________ yoo T T o m T T
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class SRS audio and voice technologies,
and more importantly, the customer
relationships we have established in this

area of the world.

We are entering one of the most exciting
times in history as the emerging China
market opens up in this hotbed of con-

sumer product manufacturing.

INNOVATION REMAINS THE
LIFEBLOOD OF OUR ORGANIZATION
At SRS Labs, we never lose sight of the
fact that the growth of our business
depends upon the expansion of our
innovative technology portfolio. Valence

plays a big part in this innovation,
spearheading significant RUD efforts.
Together, the SRS and Valence R&D
teams are working to develop exciting
new technology for the next generation
of consumer electronics products — in
order to keep perfecting the quality of
audio for listeners around the world.

Whether new products are developing,
evolving or converging, SRS and Valence
are on the cutting edge of technology
innovation, delivering on our commit-
ment to provide the very best quality
audio experience for hundreds of millions
of consumer products.

TruBass AP8111 Chip Through extensive coordination between
our R&D staffs for Licensing and Semiconductors, we have
developed new ASP brand chips that include our SRS audio
technologies. The TruBass AP8111 chip was one of the first chips

TBCOAPSIT

" ASP 0147

we developed through this marriage and we now have a family of

over eight chips that feature SRS audio.

WOW AP8102 Chip The AP8102 is an extraordinary audio
LS ET RN EE: enhancement processor based on SRS Labs’ patented WOW
wow@®

technology. The AP8102 is suitable for applications such as TVs,
ASP APB102 & o

mini or micro stereo systems, MP3 players, MD and CD based

0146

radio cassette players. It incorporates a low power and low voltage

design which makes it particularly suitable for portable devices.
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CHAPTER SIX

NUMBERS FOR A
SOUND FUTURE

AR RN R R

In 2003, we were successful in improving our key operating
metrics. We increased consolidated top line revenue, improved
gross margins and increased operating income. With a solid
balance sheet that includes no long-term debt and a strong cash
position, we believe we have a "sound” operational foundation
to strengthen our foothold in key markets and accelerate our
business growth in the years ahead.
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YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 2002
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 12,795,620 § 15,720,860
Accounts receivable, ner of allowance for doubtful accounts
of $87,628 in 2003 and $49,049 in 2002 1,230,423 1,074,421
Tnventories, net of reserve of $867,923 in 2003 and $857,986 in 2002 753,020 807,382
Prepaid expenses and other current assers, including other
reccivables of $4,033 1n 2003 and $24,346 in 2002 1,073,696 462,442
Deferred income raxes 23,4006 36,147
Total Current Assets _ 15,876,165 18,101,252
Investments available for sale 10,490,210 6,630,771
Furniture, fixtures and equipment, net 1,661,980 1,935,424
Intangible assets, net 2,736,810 1,957,359
Goodwill 533,031 533,031
Deferred income taxes 193134 149,498
Total Assets $ 31,491,330 § 29,307,335

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current Liabilities

Accounts payable § 1,503,851 § 1,011,032
Accrued liabilities 1,606,069 2,347,702
Income taxes payable 430949 341,172
Total Current Liabilities - 3,540,869 3,699,906
Minority interest i - 325,371
Commitments and contingencies (Note 7)
Stockholders’ Equity

Preferred stock-$0.001 par value; 2,000,000 shares

authorized; no shares issued and outstanding - -
Common stock-$0.001 par value; 56,000,000 shares

authorized; 13,682,282 and 12,876,314 shares issued;

13,456,982 and 12,651,014 outstanding

for 2003 and 2002, respectively 13,683 12,877
Additional paid-in capital 58,423,249 55,966,589
Accumulared other comprehensive Joss (336,346) (88,564)
Accumulated deficit {29,431,524) (29,890,243)
Treasury stock at cost 225,300 shares at
December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively ___(718,601) __ (718,601)
Total Stockholders’ Equity _27,950461 25282038
Total Liabilities And Stockholders’ Equity $ 31,491,330 __§ 29,307,335
| el ettt ettt ettt ~r "
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Revenue:

Semiconductor § 10,490,935 § 9,779,712 § 5,646,724

Licensing 8,822,357 8,097,394 4,973,584

Other 500489 1104687 481062
Toral revenues 19,813,781 19,001,793 15,430,930
Cost of sales __A0SB079 4754245 6,703,350
Gross margin 15,757,702 14,247 548 8,727,380
Operating expenses o oTTmommmmmmmmmmmmmmIIITT

Sales and marketing 5,487,159 4,625,833 4,474,575

Research and development 4,263,682 4,189,379 3,576,170

General and administrative __ 5053387 4,889,484 5,167,396
Total operating expenscs 14804208 13704696 13218141
Income (loss) from operations 953,474 542,852 (4,490,761)
Other income, net 538,278 774,125 796,504
Minority interest 50430 77,708 193,005
Income (loss) before income tax expense 1,497,182 1,394,685 (3,501,252)
Income tas cxpense 1038463 388333 377,519
Net income (loss) ST 458719 5. 806,352 8 (387877
“Net income (loss) per common share:

Basic S 004 S 0068 (031

Dilured ST 003 s 006 s (03D
Weighted average shares used in the calculation

of Net income (loss) per common share:

Basic 13033002 12,648373 12630199

Diluted TT14,420810 112,862,199 112,630,199
ittt et d i dha el et dieel et el il et e v
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income (loss) § 458,719 § 806,352 § (3,878,771)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net

cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

Minority interest (5,430) (77,708) (193,005)
Provision for doubtful accounts {(38,580) 22,220 50,240
Provision for obsolete inventory (9,937) 490,666 113,920
Depreciation and amortization 1,167,825 1,198,922 1,558,299
Deferred income taxes (30,898) 833,283 (79,973)
Amortization of premium on '

investments available for sale 6,394 - 15,701
Stock option compensation expense 72,945 88,725 125,176
Currency translation adjustment - - 4,744
Loss on disposition of furniture,

fixtures and equipment 10,257 4,107 865
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable (117,423) (226,625) (132,348)

Inventories 64,299 326,019 1,330,491

Prepaid expenses and other assets (625,742) 169,402 216,109

Accounts payable 492,819 188,334 (780,703)

Accrued liabilities (754,367) 990,597 (617,252)

Income taxes payable 17005 (803321) 61,010
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities ____807.886 ___ 4,010,973 (2,205,497)

CASH FLOWS FROM |NVEST|NG ACTIVITIES

Purchase of furniture, fixtures and equipment (505,084) (922,070) (509,183)

Purchase of investments available for sale (5,232,531) (6,645,280) -

Proceeds from sales of investments available for sale 1,118,916 582,556 5,675,000

Expenditures related to intangible assets ___(538936) (181,963) (73,949
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities __(5,157,635) __ (7,166,757) 5,091,868

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Principal payments on line of credit - - (8,000,000)

Exercise of stock options i 1,424,509 132,084 185,029

Purchase of treasury stock - (266,607)  { (188,713)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities _ 1424509 (134,523) _ (8,003,684)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (2,925,240) (3,290,307) (5,117,313)

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period _ 15,720,860 19,011,167 24,128,480

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 12,795,620 5 15,720,860 $§ 19,011,167

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid during the period for:

Interest $ - 8 - 8 151,667
Income taxes $ 1,129,334 % 623,919 § 396,482
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Unrealized loss on investments, net $  (247,782) $ (14,509) $ (13,849)
Acquisition of minority interest in SRSWOWeast § 960,012 8 - $ -
ettt ettt et e e A
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COMMON STOCK LISTING

SRSL SRS Labs, Inc.
NASDAR common stock trades

on the NASDAQ National
Market under the symbol SRSL.

ANNUAL MEETING

The Annual Meeting of
Stockholders will be held
at the DoubleTree Club
Hotel at Seven Hutton
Centre, Santa Ana, CA.
June 30, 2004 at 10:00 am
(PDT). All stockholders are

cordially invited to attend.

FORWARD LOOKING
STATEMENTS

This annual report, including the
Letter to Shareholder, contains
forward-looking statements within
the meaning of the federal sccurities
laws. Qur actual results could differ
materially from the results antici-
pated in these forward-looking
statements as a result of factors set
forth under the caption “Factors
That May Affect Future Results”

in Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations located
in the annual report on Form 10-K
which is included as part of this
annual report, and factors set

forth in other periodic reports

filed with the Securities and

Exchange Commission.
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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washmgton, D. C 20549

{Mark One)

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
" SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003

or

a - TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition"period from to

Commission File Number: 0-21123

SRS LABS, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified inits charter)

Delaware 33-0714
(State or other jurisdiction of (LR.S. Empl¥
incorporation or organization) R Identification Np)

2909 Daimler Street, Santa Ana, California 92705
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

(949) '442-1070
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act: None

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:
Common Stock, Par Value $0.001 Per Share

_Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13
or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period
that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for
the past 90 days. Yes [X] No [] ‘ L

Fe

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K
(§229.405 of this chapter) is not contained herein, and will not be contained; to the best of registrant’s
knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements mcorporated by reference in Part III of this
Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. [J

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is an accelerated filer (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the
Act). Yes [1No X

The aggregate market value of the registrant’s voting Common Stock held by non- affihates of the
registrant was approximately $37,158,008 (computed using the closing price of $4.05 per share of Common
Stock on June 30, 2003, as reported by the Nasdaq Stock Market). »

As of March 15, 2004, 14,085,993 shares of the registrant’s Common Stock, par value $0. 001 per share,
were outstanding, Of that amount, 225,300 shares were held as treasury shares.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the registrant’s .Proxy Statement prepared in connection with the Annual Meeting of
Stockholders to be held in 2004 are incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K.
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You should carefully consider the risk factors described below, as well as the other information
included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K prior to making a decision to invest in our securities.
The risks and uncertainties described below are not the only ones facing our company. Additional r1sks
and uncertainties not presently known or that we currently believe to be less. significant may also -
adversely affect us. Unless the context requires otherwise, references to “the Company 7 “we,” fus,”

“our” and “SRS Labs” refer spemﬁcally to SRS Labs and 1ts subsrdrarres

SPECLAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

On one Or more oceasions, we may make statements regardmg our assumptions, pro;eetrons
expectations, targets, intentions or beliefs about future events. All statements othér.than statements of -
historical facts included in this Annual Report on Form 10:K relating to expectation.of future financial
performance, continued growth, changes in economic conditions or capital markets and changes in
customer usage patterns and preferences, are forward- lookmg statements.

Words or phrases such as “anticipates,” “believes,” “estimates,” “expects,” “intends,” “plans,”
“predicts,” “projects,” “targets,” “will likely result,” “will continue,” “may,” “could” or similar

expressions identify forward- lookmg statements. Forward-looking statements invalve tisks and
uncertainties which could cause actual results or outcomes to differ materrally from those expressed.
We caution that while we make such statements in good faith and we bilieve such statements are based
on reasonable assumptions, including without limitation, management’s examination of historical '
operating trends data contained in records and other data available from third parties, we cannot
assure you that our expectations wrll be reahzed '

EEAN1Y

In addition to the factors and other matters drscussed under the caption “Factors That May Affect:
Future Results” in Item 7. of Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, some important factors that could-cause’ °
actual results or outcomes for SRS Labs or our subsrdrarres to, drffer materlally from those d1scussed in
forward-looking statements 1nclude '

* changes i in general economic cond1t1ons in the: markets in. whrch we may compete and
fluctuations in .demand in the.sound technology licensing and semiconductor. industries;

* our ability to sustain historical margins as each of our industries -d'evelo:p';
* increased competition;
_.» increased costs;
* exposure to risks in our licensing busmess related to product and- customer concentratron, ‘
. reliance on revenue contrlbuted from our ASIC and standard IC business; ' “
* risks in our Valence business related to fabrication outsourcing to third parties; .
. reliance on intellectual"property; . - - -
* our ability to retam key members of management

- » adverse state,, federal or forelgn legrslatron or regulat1on 01 adverse determrnatrons by regulators
and , : o

. » -other factors identified from time to time in our fxlmgs with the:Securities and Exchange
Commission. = . . R SRUTCE S o

Any forward-looking statement speaks only as of the date on which such statement is made, and,
except as required by law, we undertake no obligation to. update any forward-looking statement to
reflect events or circumstances after the date on which such statement is made or to.reflect the
occurrence of unanticipated events. New factors emerge from time to time, and it is not poss1ble for
management to predict all such factors.



PART I,
Item 1. Business o _ ' | - : B -
0vemew

SRS Labs, Inc. (“SRS Labs” or “SRS”) is a leadmg developer and provider of audio, voice and
surround sound technology solutions, application-specific integrated circuits (“ASICs”) and standard
integrated circuits (“ICs”) for the home theater, gaming, portable audio, mobile phone, computer,
automotive and broadcast markets. We operate our business through three operating units: SRS Labs
the parent company; its wholly-owned subsidiary, SRSWOW-cast.com, Inc., doing business as
SRSWOWecast-Technologies (“SRSWOWecast”); and its wholly-owned subsrdlary, ValenceTech L1m1ted
and ValenceTech Limited’s wholly -owned subsidiaries - (collectlvely “Valence”). »

We operate in the followmg flve business segments

SRS Labs

Licensing: Our hcensrng segment develops and lrcenses audro enhancement vorce and surround
sound technologles to many of the world’s leading manufacturers of hardware and software products as’
well as semiconductor solution providers. Licensing revenues compnsed 45%, 43%, and 32% of. total
consolldated revenues, in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respect1vely

Speaker Products: ~Our product segmeént develops and markets consumer speaker products that
incorporate proprietary audio and speaker technologies. Product revenues compnsed less‘than 1% of -
total. consohdated revenues in 2003, 2002 and 2001. . ‘ '

SRS WO Wcast

Professional and Consumer Audio Products: "Our professional and consumer audio products |
segment develops and markets professional software and hardware products and consumer software
plugins that’incorporate. proprietary audio enhancement, voice: and- surround sound technologies.
Revenue from this segment comprised 1% of total consolidated revenues in 2003 and less than 1% of
total consolidated revenues in 2002 and 2001.

Valence

Semiconductor: Our semiconductor segment designs, develops and markets technology solutions in
the form of. analog and digital signal processor (“DSP”) semiconductor products or custom ASIC
solutions to original equipment manufacturers (“OEMSs”) around the world. Semiconductor revenues
comprised 53%, 52% and 37% of total consolidated revenues in 2003, 2002 and 2001 respectively.

Component Distribution: Our component distribution segment is an authorized, non-exclusive
distributor of semiconductor components, subassemblies and finished goods for selected OEM
customers. Component distribution revenues comprised. 1%, 5% and 30% of total consolidated
revenues in 2003, 2002 and 2001 respectively. We are no longer emphasizing this Business due to our
decision to focus on higher margin revenue and we expect: future revenue-to be immaterial to our total
business, therefore, we will not continue to break out this segment.

SRS Labs was incorporated in the State of California on June 23, 1993 and reincorporated in the
State of Delaware on June 28, 1996. Our executive offices are located at 2909 Daimler Street, Santa
Ana, California 92705. Our telephone number is.(949) 442-1070.

A narrative description ‘of our business activities by industry segment and geographrc area follows
The financial information for business segments, geographic-areas and customer concentration is
included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K under “Item 8. Fmancral Statements and Supplemental



Data” and in Notes 1 and 10 to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. Revenues for each of
our business segments as a percentage of consolidated revenues and additional discussion relating to-. -
our revenues are presented under “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finhancial
Condition and Results of Operations.” Reference also is made to “Item 7. Management s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Factors That May Affect Future '
Results” for a discussion relating to certain business risks relatmg to our business. ‘

Company History

SRS Labs was formed in 1993 in connect1on with the purchase of all rights and assets of vanous
audio and speaker technologies from the Hughes Aircraft Company (“Hughes”). In August 1996, we
successfully completed an initial publlc offering, raising approx1mately $22 million. From our mceptlon
in 1993 until February 1998, we derived substantially all of our revenues from audro technology ’
llcensmg activities for the home theater and computer markets.

On March 2, 1998, we acqurred 100% of the outstandlng stock of Valence Technology Inc a
British Virgin Islands holding company, which had its principal business operations and office locat_xons
in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). This acquisition significantly expanded
our business activities from the original licensing model to include the design, manufacture and
marketmg of custom ASICs standard ICs components and products

In addition to the acquisition. of Valence in 1998, we .acquired rights to two additional technologles
Voice Intelligibility Processor (“VIP”), a patented voice processing technology that improves the -
intelligibility of the spoken voice; especially in high ambient noise environments; and:Circle Surround, a
patented audio delivery system that allows multichannel surround sound to be encoded. into a
two-channel stereo format and allows an encoded two-channel audio source to be decoded 1nto a
multichannel surround format,

Formed in 1999, our SRSWOWecast subsidiary was originally established as an entertainment portal
with original Internet programming, syndicated programming and-as a demonstration. platform for SRS
audio technologies. In 2001, we revised our business strategy to focus on the development-and - :
marketing of hardware and:software products that feature our .audio and voice enhancement technology
solutions for personal computer and professional audio and.broadcast applications; such as television,
radio, music production, cable and satellite. Consistent with our licensing trademark policy, we actively
promote the use of our trademarks and logos by our broadcast partners. At December 31, 2002, SRS
Labs owned approximately 87% of the capital stock of SRSWOWCcast. In February 2003, SRS. Labs
completed an exchange offer with the minority shareholders of SRSWOWcast, pursuant to which SRS -
Labs acquired all of the outstanding shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock of SRSWOWcast
in exchange for the issuance of shares of SRS Labs common stock. As a. result of the exchange offer,
SRSWOWcast became a wholly owned subs1d1ary of SRS Labs
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SRS Labs’ Technology _LicenSing
Description of Business

Our technology licensing strategy continues to-be the development and licensing of audio
enhancement, voice, surround sound and speaker technologies to product and semiconductor
manufacturers, as well as software providers, in the home theater, mobile. phone and voice - :
communication, portable audio, personal computer, and automotive markets-around the world. Our - .
sales strategy is to identify high-growth markets, developneeded technology solutions and features, and
work with software and semiconductor platform partners to make these technologies widely available .
and easy to implement by OEMs. We believe that we will. continue to strengthen our market position
as a world leader in audio and voice technology by employing the strategy of providing a continuous.



stream of patented audio and voice technologies, enhancmg relationships with- exrstmg licensees;:and
creating strong brand -awareness in order to attract new: licensees.

Our technolog1es may be 1mplemented ina var1ety of methods, mcludmg discrete analog
components analog semrconductor products, DSPs and software. These various implementation optrons
offer our customers srgmfrcant ﬂexrbrhty when 1ncorporat1ng our technologres into their products.

Our license agreements typically have multi-year terms and either require per-unit royalty
payments for all products implementing our technologies or provide for a fixed annual or quarterly
royalty payment. License agreements also specify the use of our trademarks and logos on the product,
within the packagmg and in“the user’s manual Agreements also require our product review and
approval to guarantee the quality of the technology 1mplementat10n and the correct usage of our logos
and trademarks We believe these terms ensure the quality and consistency of the technology and
elevate the awareness of the SRS brand i in the marketplace. Most agreements do not have volume
requirements and may be termmated by the hcensees or the Company wrthout substant1al financial
penalty RN

Technology Portfoho SES Sk

The portfoho of lrcensable technologres that we have developed or acqurred mclude a wrde range
of techniques for mono and stereo audio enhancement, psychoacoustic bass enhancement, voice
processing, virtual surround sound, multichannel surround sound encoding-and decoding as well as-
speaker designs. The technologies described-in detail below are marketed by SRS Labs under the
following trademarked names: Circle Surround®, Circle Surround -1I™, Dialog: Clarity™, FOCUS®,
SRS®, SRS Headphone Tr"'uBass®,' TruSurround®, TruSurround XT®, VIP™, WOW™ and
WOW XT™. RS - ’ X : Lo

Czrcle Surround® and Czrcle Suﬁound II ™

Circle Surround (“CS”) is"an advanced hrghly versatrle patented multrchannel audio encode and
decode system ‘capable of supporting a wide range .of surround sound-creation and playback ‘
applications. -Circle' Surround encoding provides the capability to encode up-to 6.1 channels of audio -
for transmission or 'storage of over two output channels or standard two-channel carriers. It is ‘backward
compatible with mest matrix decoders, such as-Dolby Pro Logic® and Dolby Pro Logic II, with-.-
playback performance subject to the limitations‘of the specific decoder. The Circle Surround encoding
process can be used-in:the ‘broadcast of television and ‘radio material; in the recording process. for
music or movres -orin the development of games for: computers or’ video game consoles

In 2002 SRS Labs announced that ESPN was the first. network to adopt Crrcle Surround for .
surround sound broadcasts. In 2003, the use of C1rcle Surround mcreased .dramatically by a wide varlety
of networks, content providers, and radio stations, including ABC, CBS, FOX, FX, NBC, PAX, PBS,
TNT, UPN, WB, Paramount Pictures, Larson Studios, Tokyo FM Broadcasting Co., Guangdong Radio
and Arbor Records. This new broadcast opportunity increases our brand reach because the Circle
Surround logo is often displayed at the beginning or end of each Circle Surround-encoded telecast.

Circle Surround decoding creates multichannel surround sound. from-any audio source. The - :
original version, Circle Surround, is capable of delivering up to 5.1.channels of audio from stereo,
matrix-encoded. or’Circle  Surround-encoded material.. Its successor, Circle-Surround II (“CS II”), is an
even more versatile surround sound decoding algorithm capable of delivering 6.1 channels of surround -
sound from mono, stereo, matrix-encoded or ‘Circle Surround-encoded source material. ' With:the two:: .
added features of SRS TruBass and SRS Dialog Clarity, that enhance the multichannel audio
experience and address problems that occur when playing back material mixed for the cinema, Circle
Surround 11 is-the, most flexible and feature-rich ‘surround sound technology available on the market.
today.



Even in the finest home theater environments, dialog can often become difficult to understand:»
SRS Dialog Clarity solves this problem and significantly improves dlalog intelligibility from all source
material. SRS TruBass technology compensates for the use of small speakers or subwoofers. TruBass.
utilizes proprietary psychoacoustlc techniques to restore the perceptlon of low frequency fundamentals"
and enhance bass performance. ‘

Circle Surround decoding can be 1mplemented in a playback devxce for any multlspeaker
applications, such as a home theater audio/video receiver, DVD player, car audio product, PC .
soundcard or computer speaker. Circle Surround has been adopted by many of the leading electronics
companies as a surround decoding optlon 1nclud1ng Kenwood Marantz, Theta Digital, Accuphase
M-Audio, Orion Studios and Smart Devices.

FOCUS®

In many audio environments, speakers are not placed in the ideal listening location; which makes. it
difficult to achieve a realistic sound experience from speakers that are below, the plane of the listener’s
ear. We developed FOCUS as a technology solution for this problem Originally designed for use in .
automobiles where front speakers are often placed under the dashboard or facing each other in the
door panels, the patented FOCUS technology electronically repositions the sound image to create the
appropriate perception of image height. In addition to automobiles, FOCUS is ideally suited for any.
product application where speakers cannot be placed in optimal locations for either space or aesthetlc :
reasons, such as big screen or projection TVs, home in-wail speakers and commercial apphcatlons o
Products that feature FOCUS mclude telewsxons from Hitachi, Thomson (RCA) and onneer

SRS® 3D Sound

'SRS 3D Sound is one of the world’s leading 3D audlo enhancement technologles The patented _
technology broadens any mono or stereo audio signal and creates a realistic 3D sound image from Just
two standard stereo-speakers. SRS: 3D Sound is based on the fundamentals of the human hearing
system and recreates the multitude- of spatial cues that are present in a live listening environment but. .
are lost in recording and playback. SRS 3D Sound dramatically widens the “sweet spot” associated With
traditional stereo. It therefore does not require the: listener to be posmoned in a specific location to
experience the immersive sound image.. :

. SRS 3D Sound was originally developed by Hughes, Wthh spent 51gn1flcant resources to develop
and patent SRS 3D Sound and related audio technologies. Since acquiring the SRS 3D Sound _
technology from Hughes in June 1993, SRS Labs has improved the performance of SRS 3D Sound,
reduced the cost for OEMs to implement the technology, secured licensing relationships with various
semiconductor manufacturers who offer the Company’s technology in various analog and DSP ‘options*:
and introduced the technology to a wider variety of consumer apphcatlons

SRS 3D Sound can be applied to any consumer electronics product that includes morio or stereo
audio playback through two speakers or headphones, including televisions, computers, audio receivers,
car products, gaming products, powered speakers, portable and wu‘eless audio products and mobile
phones with audlo playback :

SRS Headphone ' Co . o o

Introdticed in early 1998 the patented SRS Headphone technology optlmlzes the core SRS 3D
Sound technology for use with a standard pair of headphones or ear buds. The process reposmons the
sound image from inside the listener’s head to outside the l1stener s ears, creatmg a more natural ’
listening situation. Sony currently features SRS Headphone in its portable CD/DVD players and
Mitsubishi in its mobile phones.



TruBass®

'SRS TruBass is a patented, psychoacoustic process that creates the perception of fcreased bass
performance in smaller speaker systems and headphones far beyond the physical capabilities of the
speakers themselves. It is a dynamic technology that actively monitors the low- frequency content of an
audio signal and optimizes the frequency and amplitude spectrum of the output signal to enhance bass
perception. It effectively creates the impression: of a subwoofer in smaller speaker systems. and when
used with a subwoofer, further increases the efficiency and overall performance of the bass response.

Applications for this technology include any product with small and medium sized speakers or
headphones, such as those found in televisions, radios, portable audio devices, boom boxes, ‘games and -
smaller hand-held devices. TruBass is an important part of the feature-set for several of our technology
solutions, including WOW, Circle Surround IT and TruSurround XT.

TruSwround@’ and TruSurround XT ™

The TruSurround family of technologres was specrﬁcally designed to present the multichannel
audio content that is standard on DVD movies over only two speakers. They deliver virtual surround -
sound, which is a compelling, surround sound- type experrence achieved over any two-speaker playback ‘
system, in¢luding internal telev1sron speakers and headphones. TruSurround and TruSurround XT are’
fully compatible with all multlchannel encodmg formats up to 6.1 channels, and are also backward
compatible with non- surround encoded audio, dehvenng an immersive 3D audro experlence from
standard mono or stereo sources

TruSurround has been adopted by many of the leadmg home theater manufacturers of DVD
players, set-top boxes and televisions including Accuphase, Aiwa, Emerson, Funai, Fujitsu, Hitachi,
Hughes, Kenwood, Marantz Matsushrta Mltsubrshr Motorola Phrhps Proneer RCA, Sony, Toshiba,
Yamaha and more.

Introduced. to the market in 2002 TruSurround XT is our ﬂagshlp version that 1ncludes the added ,
technology features of SRS TruBass and SRS Dialog Clarity to enhance the multichannel audio . -
experience and address problems that occur when. playing back material originally mixed for the
cinema. Even in the finest home theater environments, dialog can often become difficult to understand.
SRS Dialog Clarity solves this problem and significantly improves dialog intelligibility from all source
material. SRS TruBass technology compensates for the use of small speakers or subwoofers. TruBass

utilizes proprietary psychoacoustic techniques to restore the perceptron of low frequency f fundamentals
and enhance bass performance '

In 2003 we. began realxzrng revenue. from TruSurround XT from software DVD player. and
television licensees, including Analog Devices,. Cyberlink, Formenti, Intervideo, M-Audio, Orion :
Studios, Thomson, LG, Samsung.and more. t ‘ “ .

In 2003, we also developed TruSurround XT Headphone, a vheadphone optimized version of .
TruSurround for creating a realistic virtual surround sound listening experience over -any pair. of stereo
headphones. When listening to. multichannel content over headphones, such as DVD. movies, the -
listening experience is fundamentally different than listening to speakers. Since the headphone speaker.
drivers are covering the pinna (outer part) of the ear, the listening experience differs greatly from
traditional speaker playback. TruSurround XT utilizes patented headphone perspective curves to solve .
this problem and provides a non-fatiguing, immersive, home theater listening experience. TruSurround
XT Headphone also delivers_exceptional 3D audio“from mono and stereo material. ‘By the end of 2003,
we had successfully licensed this headphone technology to Marantz for 1nclusron in new home theater
audlo/vrdeo recervers ‘



wow™

WOW a combmatlon of several of our patented technxques 1ncludmg SRS 3D Sound FOCUS
and TruBass, is our flagship 3D audio enhancement solution for speakers and headphones It is an
award-winning, playback enhancement technology that improves the dynamics and bass performance of
mono or stereo audio, especially when used with: smaller speakers or headphones that are not capable
of achieving a high fidelity expetience, or when the audio has been digitally compressed into formats ..
such as MP3 and Windows® Media Audio (“WMA”). WOW is an ideal audio solution for. .= .. .
manufacturers of mobile or portable devices, in addition to products in which speakers are:located i
closely together, such as televisions. Hardware and software products that feature: WOW include mobile
phones from Sharp, Samsung and NEC; Microsoft’s Windows® Media Player series software products;
digital audio players from Dioneer, Samsung, Olympus, Rio, eDigital, iRiver and I-Bead; car-CD -~
receivers from Kenwood, as well as televisions from Sony, Hitachi and Sharp. To date, over 300 million
hardware or software products have been shrpped or downloaded that 1nclude the powerful WOW
audio feature.

WOW XT for Moblfe

WOW XT for Mobile is a complete suite of technologies based on the original WOW algonthm
that includes more apphcanon specrflc adjustable controls for audio- enabled mobile phones, PDAs and
portable digital andio players. It incorporates advanced, patented audio. enhancement technologres o
optimized for the specrﬁc audio playback challenges that handset manufacturers face, such as tiny
speaker driver issues, smgle speaker stereo challenges and drfficulty in ach1evmg deeper bass tones
wrthout srgmfrcant usage’ of device memory and power resources.

" Whether the device has one speaker; two ‘closely: spaced speakers or rehes on headphone or
earbud playback, WOW XT for Mobile can be customized for any handset maker or OEM’s specific
requirements and handset design. The company also has enabling and utility technologies to help ..
overcome the physical hmxtatlons of the small speaker dnvers and headphones of mobile devices’ to
produce a more natural, realistic and immersive audro expenence Some of these technologies include
the ability to preserve the original music source’s stereo instrumentation durmg stere0-to-mono, mix .
down, the ability to manage the output level of mult1ple audio sources to prevent chppmg, and many
other breakthrough solutions that help handset makers increase their’ market share by provrdmg
cost-effective audio. enhancement solutions that help mobile carriers attract and keep more customers
For the newer stereo speaker-enabled mobile phones, WOW XT. provrdes the industry’s most extreme )
stereo width from polyphonic ring tones and digitally compressed music formats such as MP3 WMA
and AAC.

The WOW XT for Mobile technology suite was launched in October 2003 and by the end of-2003;
the WOW XT libraries were available for evaluation by customers on ARM®, Intel XScale™,.and T1
OMAP™ processors The WOW XT libraries are compatible with Symbran oS, Mlcrosoft Wmdows
Mobile™, 2003, Linux and other operatmg systems. The key benefit of adding SRS software .
technologies is that there are no. hardware design changes. needed to 1mmed1ately achieve mcred1b1y
fuller, more dynam1c audio. In addition, wireless service, provrders who mcorporate WOW XT for
Mobile into their, product lineup can dramatically improve a subscnber s first i impression when trymg a.
mobilemedia apphcat10n for the first time.

VIP™ (Voice Intellzgrbzlzty Processor)

Our patented VIP. technology improves the mtelllglbrllty of the. spoken voice and is partrcularly
effective in noisy. envrronments It selectively processes only those spectral portrons of .the speech signal
that the brain uses for cognmon without requiring an increase in gain or volume. SRS 3D Sound |
inventor Arnold. Klayman who is now the principal audlo scxennst at SRS Labs, ongmally developed



the VIP technology at Hughes. During a divestiture in 1994, Hughes sold the VIP technology to a third
party that further developed and marketed the VIP technology through a stand-alone signal processor
for use in the professional sound remforcement 1ndustry As mentioned prevrously, we acqulred the

VIP technology in"1998.

The market. opportunrtres for VIP mc]ude mobrle phones wrreless products hearing aids,
hand-free devices, Voice over Internet Protocol, traditional and Internet broadcasting and other voice-
related applications. We offer both software and hardware implementation options for VIP and it is
also available as digital code that may be ported to DSP platforms used by product manufacturers. VIP;
is also available in software -and can run on client or server-side: apphcatrons ‘ e

Vertical Markets and OEM chensees

Through our licensing business segment, we market our portfoho of technologres to the’ followmg
verticdl markets; home theater; mobile phone ‘and voice communication; portable audio; personal
computer and Internet; and automotive.

Home Theater

" Home theater products represent the largest current market for't our technologres and have
hrstorrcally been the largest revenue contributor to the hcensrng segment This market is ‘highly”
competitive and generally dommated by large multi-national manufacturers Product categorres wrthrn
this market, mcludrng televisions, DVD players, cable set-top boxes and a/v receivérs, are among the
fastest growing or highest volume 'in the electronics industry and represent a significant opportumty for’
our full portfolio of audio enhancement and surtound sound technologies. Manufacturers in this market
utilize our technologies to drfferentrate their products from their competrtors and .improve functronahty
and product performance. o o R TR S

Our customers in this market include many of the leading global electronics manufacturers who'i in
many instances license multiple technologres from us for multiple product hnes and divisions. Our L
strategy for this market remains to penetrate ‘and expand. We penetrate a niew customer and ,
successfully lrcense at least one of our technologies for a particular product line or division and then
expand the usage of our technologies into additional product lines and divisions. For example, in
May 2003, we announced that Samsung Electronics had signed a global technology licensing agreement
for the use of SRS WOW technology and that the first product line to feature WOW would be the
YEPP™ line of digital audio players. By the end of 2003,  Samsung had' expanded its use of WOW 1nto
additional products including mobile phones, mini audio systems, televisions and computer monrtors

Mobile Phone and Vorce Communication

Mobile phones are becommg a true convergent product as more and more mobrle phones are now
complete multimedia devices capable of ‘delivering thultichannel  audio, up to 64° polyphomc ring tones, B
streaming video across wireless networks as well as MP3 audio playback. One or two closely spaced
speakers are also becoming standard on many of the newest mobrlemedra smart phones. While we =~
continue to ' work with many of the leadrng mobile phone and voice communrcatrons companies, such as
Sharp, Mitsubishi, and J-Phone in Japan and Samsung in Korea, to rmplement our voice technology '
solutions in communications products, the advent of multimedid functionality on mobile phones has '
opened up an opportunity for us to license our audio enhancement technologres such as WOW XT for
Mobile, which was introduced in 2003.

Whether the device has one speaker, two closely spaced speakers, or relies on headphone or
earbud playback, WOW XT for Mobile can be customized for any handset maker or OEM’s specific
requirements and handset design. We also have enabling and utility technologles to help overcome’ the
physical limitations of the smiall speaker drivers and headphones of mobile devices to prodice a more
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natural, realistic and immersive audio experience: Some of these technologies include the ability to .
preserve the original music source’s stereo instrumentation during stereo-to-mono mix down, the ability
to manage the output level of multiple audio sources to prevent clipping, and many other breakthrough
solutions that help handset makers increase their market share by providing cost-efféctive audio
enhancement solutions that help mobile carriers attract and keep more customers. For the newer stereo
speaker-enabled mobile phones, WOW XT provides the industry’s most. extreme stereo width from '
polyphonic rmg tones and dlgltally compressed music formats such as MP3 WMA and AAC. ‘

The key benefit of addrng SRS software technologres is that hardware des1gn changes aren’t
needed to quickly achieve incredibly fuller, more dynamic audio: In addition; wiréless service. providers:
who incorporate WOW or WOW XT for Mobile into their product lineup can dramatically i 1mpr0ve a
subscriber’s first impression when trying a mobilemedia application for the first time.

During 2003, we announced. that the WOW and WOW XT libraries had become available on
ARM, Intel XScale; and TI OMAP processors and are. compatible with Symbian OS, Microsoft
Windows Mobile. 2003; Linux and other operating systems. We also announced a licensing agreement
with PacketVideo, a premier independent provider of mobilemedia-software for the.leading handset:
manufacturers, including Sony Ericsson, Motorola, Fujitsu, Siemens, NEC, Sagem, chja'and others.

Portable Audlo

The use of portable audro players such as MP3 and portable hstemng dev1ces is w1despread
around the world, reflecting demand from consumers to take their music with-them. While the -demand
for more entertainment features increases, the size of the devices are decreasing and because of simple.
physical design constraints, the quality of the audio experience cannot always be maintained:. The small
footprint of these devices limits speaker size, speaker spacing and the quality of headphone listening is
variable since headphones are often selected for their small srze and aesthetics rather than therr audlo _
performance. In addition to physrcal consxderatrons the various audio compression. algonthms in
common use, such as MP3, AAC and WMA, can adversely affect the quahty of the reproduced audio
depending on-factors such as encoded bit rate and encoder quality level.

Manufacturers of these devrces are lookrng for solutions to improve the’ Tistening’ experrence ‘
without affectrng design change incréasing power consumptron or adding additional product ° S
components. In 2003, we introduced WOW XT for Mobile, a specral version of our SRS WOW stereo
audio enhancement technology that can be customized by manufactuters for the specific audio '
requirements.of portable devices. In 2003, we worked closely with our network of semiconductor:.
partners to make the ‘technology available on the leading platforms that are used by:this industry. By -
the end-of 2003, we had announced that both the core SRS WOW and WOW XT technology libraries.
were available on the world’s leading semiconductor-and software platforms including ARM,:Intel.- .
XScale, Texas Instruments OMAP, Micronas, Motorola Coldfire, Telechips and more. Product
manufacturers who introduced products that include - WOW or WOW XT include: Click. TV, Diasonic,
Hyunwon, iBead, Kwon, Moral Follow System, Olympus and Samsung.

Personal Computer

Consumers are increasingly using computers and the Internet for more than just word processing
or business functions. The majority of desktop computers and notebooks incorporate a DVD playback
drive and typically support high-resolution graphics, sound and voice communications. The demand for
these capabilities has been driven by the proliferation of multimedia based entertainment and video
games and the widespread use of DVDs and the Internet. The personal computer market is
characterized by intense pricing competition and, as a result, the OEM hardware market is difficult to
penetrate. The software market, on the other hand, is being fueled by consumer’s increasing use of a
computer for playback of DVD movies. This shift towards using a computer for more and more
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entertainment purposes. has yielded opportunities for the license of our audio technologies to software
developers and on software platforms for computer manufacturers. ' -

‘During the second half of 2002, we entered 1nt0 hcensmg relatlonshlps with leadmg providers of
DVD player software, 1ncludmg Cyberlink, InterVideo and Orion Studios. In 2003, these software
provrders expanded their use of SRS technologies with new versions of their products launching
throughout the year. By the end of 2003, we successfully penetrated the PC OEM market and had
announced that Sony had expanded their use of SRS technologies into desktop PCs. In January 2004,
we continued this penetration.with the announcement that. Toshlba had licensed several of our
'technologxes for therr 11ne of Satelhte notebooks :

Automotive

The automobile is rapidly becoming an entertainment environment. through the popularity. of rear
seat DVD entertainment systems and with digital radio fueling the desire for surround sound audio..
This phenomenon has opened up opportunities to license several of our audlo technologles mcludmg
Circle:Surround, TruSurround, WOW and VIP. :

‘An automobile has multiple speakers installed in both the front and rear, making it an ideal
environment for enjoying music in surround sound. Unfortunately, there is very little surround sound
material available in a car. In 2003, we developed Circle Surround for Automotive, a special version of
our Circle Surround technology that can be customized by car manufacturers for the specific audio
requirements of each type-of vehicle. Now, surround sound entertainment in a car can be a reality.”
Circle Surround delivers.up to 6.1 channels of full-bandwidth surround sound from any audio source,
mcludlng the radlo, CDs and even MP3 . files burned onto a CD..

Rear seat passengers are 1ncreasrng1y using DVD systems for entertainment. Our TruSurround
technology, which is widely used by traditional DVD player manufacturers transforms the- hstenmg
experlence over tradltlonal headphones into a realistic virtual surround sound experience.

It is also challenging to create a quality stereo audio experience in a car due to a variety of
speaker 1ssues, including limited speaker driver sizes and the less than ideal placement of front
speakers in a door facing each other. These challenges are solved with our WOW technology, which
utilizes both FOCUS and TruBass, to provide remarkable improvement in the width, height and depth
of any mono or stereo audio source, as well as prov1d1ng deep, rich bass enhancement..

The design cycle for automobile electronics is long, often taking up to 36 months for the fea31b1hty
and implementation studies to-occur. While no significant revenue was generated from this market~
segment during 2003, we continue to believe that this market holds opportunity for the license of our. -
technologres and antlcrpate progress in thls segment to be announced durlng 2004, ;
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The following table identifies many of our OEM licensees and the market or markets in which*
such licensees are participating or are planning to participate, as of December 31, 2003:_

Home Theater

Aiwa

Changhong

Daewoo |

Denon

Hitachi Ltd.

Hughes Network Systems
Kenwood Corporatlon

Konka Group

LG Electronics
. Marantz Japan Inc

Metz

Mitsubishi Electric Corporatlon
Motorola Consumer:Solutions:-Business
Philips:Consumer:Electronics.
Pioneer Corporation ..

Thomson Multimedia (RCA)
Sampo Electric

Samsung. Electronics:

Sharp Manufacturing Company of Amenca

Skyworth

Sony Corporation
Toshiba Corporation
Yamaha Corporation ~
Zenith I

Mobile Phone and Vmce Commumcatlon

Mitsubishi Electnc Corporanon
NEC o
Samsung Electronics

Sharp Corporation

Portable Audio ‘
Digital Way.

~Dioneer

e:Digital -. .
Etronics Corporatlon
iBead

iRiver

MPMan.com

.. Olympus Optica‘l

Samsung-

. .~ Sennheiser. Electromc

Sony C_orpora_non ‘

' ‘_ Personal Computer

z.Cyberlmk Corporation

- .. InterVideo Inc.
~. M-Audio - -+

 Microsoft Corporatlon

Orion Studios . .
Sony Corporatlon

B Toshiba

' Automotlve

- Kenwood
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Platform Strategy o L , . R

The mission of our licensing platform strategy is to achievé ¢omprehensive and stfategic covérage
for our technology solutions within all of our targeted vertical product markets in order to expand sales
and licensing opportunmes By developing strong relationships with the leading software and -
semiconductor companies, our audio technologies can be delivered to customers worldwide across hlgh
growth and high volume product applications:

Our licensing model most often employs a system whereby semiconductor manufacturers are ©
recruited to build and sell semiconductor implementations that involve our technology solutions (our
“Chip Partners”). Under this system, revenue.is not received directly from our Chip Partners. We also -
enter into licensing arrangements with OEMs:for the use of our technology solutions in consumer and
other products manufactured by the OEM. Our Chip Partners then sell these semlconductor technology
solutions directly to the licensed OEMs. Under this licensing method, OEM product licensees are free .
to choose a semiconductor solution from the SRS-Chip Partner that best suits their requlrements and.
matches their price expectations. We receive royalties directly from the licensed OEM for the use of
our technologies in licensed products manufactured and shipped by the OEM. Many major OEMs have ‘
licenses for the use of one or more of our technologles and for the use and dlsplay of our trademarks

The licensing methodology above is not well established in certain industries:or in-certain -
geographic regions such as the PRC and India. To address these market conditions, we implement an
alternate royalty collection method, where the royalty is “bundled” into the cost of the semiconductor
product and remitted directly to us from our:Chip Partner when the semiconductor.productiis sold.and
shipped to the OEM. This system simplifies the business process for the OEM, our Chip-Partner and
SRS Labs. We determine which licensing model to follow based on factors involving mutual-discussions
with our Ch1p Partner and consumer product manufacturer, the particular market segment involved, the
particular region where the products are manufactured and sold, as well as other factors.

Our process for selecting parucular Chip Partners and platforms for distributing our technology is”
based on several criteria including: (a) Segment Leadership—we target Chip Partners that hold
preeminent positions in market segments characterized by high growth, volume and/or margins; ‘
(b) Volume—platforms which will maximize exposure of our IP to a large number of potential OEMs;
(¢) Synergy—platforms which serve to position our IP along with compatible and additive technologles
for integrated delivery; and (d) Convergence Potential—which enablé us to establish a presence on ‘
platforms that intersect merging functional features. An example of this would be the platforms for new
personal multifunctional devices that include mobile phone, personal digital assistant (“PDA”) and MP3
capabilities. -

The following table identifies the Chip Partners who have entered into licensing agr'é'eméi‘lts thh
SRS Labs as of December 31, 2003, or who have software or digital platforms that offer our
technologies to licensed OEMs:

AKM Semiconductor Motorola

Analog Devices New Japan Radio Corporation (“NJRC”)
ARM Packet Video

ASP Microelectronics Philips Semiconductor
Broadcom Corporation Rohm

Cirrus Logic Samsung Electronics
DSP Factory Sigmatel, Inc.

ESS Technology, Inc. ST Microelectronics
Intel Texas Instruments

LG Semlconductor Toshiba Corporation
Micronas Zoran Corporation

Mitsubishi Electric Corporation
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Licensee Sales Support

To implement our licensing sales strategy within our identified vertical markets, we have
established a direct sales force and a worldwide network of independent sales agents In North
America, we employ a direct sales force to market our portfoho of audio and voice technologles to the”
OEM community. Internat1onally, we maintain support offices in the Czech Repubhc RE apan, Hong
Kong and Korea to support our multi-national OEM customers. We actlvely promote the use of our
trademarks and logos and direct customers to prominently drsplay the appropriate SRS technology logo
on products, packagmg and in advertising. We work closely with our licensees to enhance their success
in selling finished products and semiconductor products that incorporate our technologies through a
variety of licensee support programs. These programs include: engineering support, sales training, -
tradeshow support, press support, customized marketing materials and' corporate communicatiens.-Qur
corporate communications program includes press releases, advertising, industry conferences and:.
corporate newsletter dissemination to our customers around the world;:primarily through e-mail. We
use the Internet to provide easy-to-use audio technology demenstrations for those technologies that can
be appropriately demonstrated on the World Wide Web. We conduet in-person technology
demonstrations or presentations for the press and other companres to promote our technologres and
products.

We- also regularly participate in tradeshows-and conferences to increase awareness .of our
technologies and-to market our technologies and products. We work: closely. with :our licensees and
Chip Partners to actively explore additional opportunities to place our technologies in new products
and/or markets

SRS Labs’ Speaker Products '

In January 2003, we unveiled a line of speakers based ‘on proprletary ﬂat panel designs. :
Throughout the year, we focused on building relationships in.the retail network but by the third quarter
‘of 2003,:we decided to no longer emphasize this business and focus-our sales and marketing efforts on
highér margin licensing revenue. The revenues from.this segment in 2003 were minimal and we expect
that it will continue to account for an insignificant portion of revenue for the year ended December 31,
2004 as we sell off the existing inventory of manufactured speaker products.

SRSWOWecast

Through our SRSWOWcast segment, we develop, license and sell _professional hardware and
software products and consumer software pluglns that feature our SRS’ audio technologles

In 1999 we established SRSWOWCcast as an entertamment portal with original Internet .
programming, syndicated programming and as a demonstration platform for SRS audie technologies. In
2001, we revised our business strategy in order to focus on the licensing of our audio and voice_
enhancement technology solutions for Internet audio, onhne radio and’ tradmonal broadcast
applrcatxons, such as telev1sron radio, cable and satelllte

During 2003, we. concentrated on marketing Circle Surround technology to the radio and televrsron
broadcast and professional audio communities and developing additional hardware and software
products to support these markets. Our line of professional hardware and software tools provide the
most flexible solutions for enhancing content, correcting.common problems that occur in audio chains, .
and delivery of multichannel surround sound over existing stereo carriers. Products available by the end
of 2003 include: SRS CSE-07 Circle Surround® Reference Encoder; SRS CSD-07 Circle Surround
Reference Decoder; SRS BSP-02 Broadcast Stereo Processor; SRS BPP-02 Broadcast Phase Protector;
SRS BAP-02 Megawrde Processor; and SRS Circle Surround VST Pro software plug-in. These products
are sold drrectly to professional customers; as well as available from selected dealers and distributors -
servicing the ‘professional audio and broadcast communities.
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By the end of 2003, Circle Surround encoding had made inroads to many of Hollywood’s most
influential creative talent and professional broadcasters. It is the optrmum surround solution for
television because it enables .any network currently broadcastmg in stereo to now deliver up t6 6.1
surround sound to its viewers with no change to the distribution or broadcast infrastructure. Current
broadcasters include ABC, CBS, NBC, ESPN, ESPN 2, ESPN HD, FOX, FX, TNT, PBS and over two,
dozen programs mcludmg the 2003 Latin Grammy Awards, 55" Annual Prime Time Emmy Awards, X
Gamés, NFL and NBA broadcasts. Some of the new 2003 fall televrsron shows launched with Circle
Surround 1ncluded “It’s all Relatwe” on ABC, “A Mrnute with Stan Hooper,” “Run of the House,” and
“Luis” on FOX.

We did not generate significant revenue from the sale of professxonal hardware equ1pment in- 2003
and the outlook for significant revenue generation remains unproven but-an important element of our
strategy for entering the broadcast and television recording market is leveraging the SRS brand name. .
Many.of our broadcast partners display the SRS and:Circle Surround logos at the beginning and the
end of each: Circle Surround-encoded telecast. This increased visibility to ‘millions of television viewers
continues to remforce the brandmg of the SRS name as a premier audio technology and provrder

Consumer Hardware and Software Products

Through our SRSWOWocast division, we also develop and market hardware and software products
for consumers that feature our SRS:audio technologies. These products are sold cxclus1vely onhne
through .our e-commerce site, www.wowthing.com. :

The WOW Thing is a small processor that can be installed between speakers or headphones and
the sound card or CPU of most personal computer systems. It enhances the sound quality of CDs as
well as digitally compressed audio, which is downloaded or streamed over the Internet. During 2003,
we continued to market our remaining inventory to consumers online. The ‘CS II Plug-in‘for the
Windows Media Player was also made available in 2003. Developed exclusively for the Windows Media -
Player, our CS I plug-in delivers a full 5.1 surround sound experience for stereo & mono music, videos
and-streaming audio. Revenue from the sale of these products is insignificant but gives us a valuable -
demonstration platform to showcase our audio technologres

Valence
Description of Business

Our Hong Kong- based subsrdlary, Valence, is a fabless semiconductor company ‘that desrgns
develops and markets custom and proprietary analog, digital and mixed signal integrated circuits. These
products address a wide range of applications in the consumer electromcs portable audio;
telecommunications and personal computer markets

Valence operates pnmanly in two. drfferent areas: the de51gn and sale of custom chips and standard
IC semiconductor solutions; anid the distribution of semiconductors and components Consistent with’
our strategy to focus on high margin business opportumtres Valence has been gradually phasing out the
component distribution area of their business, which has historically provided significant top line
revenue but'very low margins. Concentrating sales, engineering and marketing. efforts on the high
margin custom semiconductor design and semiconductor sales businesses have contributed to a
decrease in overall revenue but resulted in improved: margms and financial - performance

Deszgn and Sale of Semzconductor Solutzons and IP chensmg

Estabhshed in 1985, Valence has over 18 years of experience in the design and sale of integrated
circuits and markets these products in two categories: (a) custom application specific ICs (“ASICs”) for
specific OEM customers, and (b) standard ICs marketed under their own brand name, ASP
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Microelectronics (“ASP”). As of the end of 2003, approximately 43 engineers supported our IC design
capabilities, which for the past six years have been awarded one of the Hong Kong Industry’s
(HKITCC) Technology Achievement Awards.

Our custom ASIC customers include the Asia-based manufacturing facilities for consumer
electronics, telecommunications and personal computer manufacturers headquartered in North
America, Europe and Asia Pacific. Custom ASIC projects include: single chip for LED/LCD clock
radio; RISC Processor system on a chip; singe chip PDA solution; and a variety of wireless devices,
including infra red, remote controller and RF controller.

Due to nondisclosure agreements, specific customers cannot be _disclosed; but under many of the
design contracts, we: have negotiated to retain ownership of the specific designs. These designs form a
significant library of intellectual property (IP) that can be utilized in future projects.

Our reusable IP designs include analog and digital macro libraries, as well as the fundamental
building blocks of a system-on-chip (SOC) design. We specialize in low power and low current mixed
signal design projects. The conversion of the many technologies and processes usually contained on an
application board, such as gate arrays, TTLs, ROMs, RAMs, analog to digital converters and MCUs,
into one single ASIC chip is the trend for chip technology development. Our expertise in this type of
integrated design work allows us to offer our customers a shorter development cycle, smaller die size
and faster turnaround time for final production, which strengthens our relationships with our customers
and helps us retain our competitive advantage in the important manufacturing region of Asia Pacific.
We outsource the manufacturing of these ASICs to a network of fabrication partners throughout Asia
Pacific, including Chartered Semiconductor, Samsung, Toshiba Semiconductor and Tower :
Semiconductor Limited in Israel. Our extensive network of fabrication partners allows us to remain
competitive and minimizes our risk.

In addition to performing contract design work, we also design, produce -and sell standard ICs.in
the burgeoning China manufacturing market under the ASP Microelectronics brand name. China’s
demand for semiconductors was estimated at US $28 billion in 2002, as reported at the Chinese IC
Design Forum in October 2003. Our target customers for this segment are the original design
manufacturers (“ODMs”) and OEMs of a variety of television applications, including LCD, Projection,
CRT and plasma televisions, as well as automotive, portable audio and personal computer equipment.
Our chip product offerings include a digital timing system (DTS) controller for portable radio; remote
fan controller; a universal serial bus (“USB”) 1.1 memory controller; a single chip PDA reduced h
instruction set computer- (“RISC”) processor; low an electronic shock protection controller for digital. -
compact disk (“CD”); a liquid crystal display (“LCD”) driver; a 16-bit and 24-bit DSP as well as 4-, 8-,
and 16-bit micro-controllers for applications in DVD players, set-top box receivers, audiofvideo _
equipment, telecommunication and game equipment, MP3 players, televisions and mini and micro
stereo hi-fi systems. The products created are based upon management’s analysis of trends in the
market, knowledge gained from long standing relationships with customers and overall business
experience. Many of these products are developed by capitalizing upon Valence’s extensive custom

design libraries, advanced mixed signal design technologies, system level expertise, ‘software knowledge
and a deep understanding of customer requirements.

In 2002, Valence began development work on audio processor ICs based on SRS audio, voice and
surround sound technologies targeting the high growth, mass volume consumer electronics products, »
such as boom boxes, telévisions, LCD monitors and surround headphones. Samples of the first
generation analog ICs incorporating SRS audio technologies were released to the market during the
fourth quarter of 2002. By the end of 2003, a wide variety-of SRS audio- chip products had been .
developed and released including: universal processors combining SRS audio ‘technologies with standard
audio functions such as.volume, tone and level, as well as stand alone, low: voltage audio processors
with SRS WOW, SRS Dialog Clarity and SRS. TruBass.
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_Our experience and knowledge in mixed signal design has also enabled us to develop powerful-16-
and 24-bit high speed DSPs with low power consumption and high performance features using deep
sub-micron technology down to 0.18 microns. This DSP core technology will enable us to optimize SRS
audio solutions that are applicable to new digital product apphcatrons for telecommunications, audio/
video and Internet appliances.

Components '

As previously announced during 2001, we continued to decrease our emphasrs on the low margin
distribution businesses, which resulted in minimal revenue from this segment. We-expect future
revenues to be immaterial, therefore we will not continue to break out this segment.

Backlog

-Backlog i is apphcable only to our Valence operating unit. Sales at Valence are pnmanly made ,
pursuant to standard purchase orders for the delivery of ASIC, IC and component products. Order -
quantities and delivery schedules are frequently changed to reflect product availability, scheduling at
our fabrication partner facilities or changes in our customers’ needs. Customer orders can be canceied
or fescheduled without significant penalty to the customeér. Accordingly, our backlog at any partrcular
date is not representative of actual sales for any succeeding period, and we therefore believe that
backlog is not generally 2 good indicator of future revenue. As of December 2003 and 2002, the
backlog of orders for ASIC and IC products to non-affiliated parties was $2,204,991 and $2,051,267,
respectively. As of December 2003 and 2002, the backlog of orders for components was $14,310- and -
$82,338, respectlvely We expect that all or a substantial amount of the current backlog of orders for :
2003 will be completed in 2004, ‘ S

Research and Development

Our customers compete in markets that are characterized by rapidly changing technology and
continuous improvement in products and services. Our research and development expenditures in 2003
2002, and 2001 were approxrmately 28.9%, 30.6% and 27.0% of total operating expenses respectively.-
These expenses consist of salaries and related costs of employees and consultants engaged in ongomg
research, design and development activities and costs for engineering materials and supphes

As of December 31, 2003, we had 57 employees in our R&D group representing 51% of our: total
human resources. Our software, hardware and application engineers focus on developing intellectual :
property, technology solutions and consumer products Fourteen engmeers are based in the U.S. w1th
the remainder based in: Hong Kong : : ‘ : : : ' :

Competmon

We compete m each of our busmess segments with a number of dlfferent compames whrch
produce a varlety of technologles processes and products C

SRS Labs

Competrtron in the audlo voice and surround sound technology licensing busrness includes other
licensing companies who offer competing technologies as well as the internal engineering department of
our lrcensees who may develop audro enhancement techniques for their own products

In the field of 3D audio enhancement, we .compete directly with other audio provrders 1nclud1ng
Qsound, Spatializer; Aureal, and BBE Sound. We believe that our bass enhancement technology,
TruBass, competes:directly with several technologies, including MaxxBass from Waves, Ltd, Vi.B.E from'
Spatializer, and non-proprietary bass systems, such as Bass Boost, that are included on a variety of
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electronics products, including audio systems, televisions, boom boxes and speaker products. Because
our audio enhancement techniques work with any existing recorded material whether mono, stereo or
surround sound, most of our audio enhancement technologies, including SRS 3D Sound, SRS FOCUS,
SRS TruBass, and SRS Dialog Clarity, can be used either as an alternative or as a cornplement and
enhancement to almost any competing audio technology.

Many companies in the wireless and telecommunications industry are 1nvest1gat1ng methods to
increase the quality of a voice signal; but we believe that their development work centers on techniques
to reduce noise and provide echo cancellation. We are not aware of any direct competing technologies
to our voice technology, VIP, which processes the actual voice signal to improve intelligibility and works
on the formants of the human speech pattern. VIP is compatible to these other noise cancellation
techniques.

. Several technologies within our surround sound portfolio, including TruSurround, TruSurround XT,
Circle Surround and Circle Surround II, compete directly with a variety of technologies from
Spatializer, Qsound, Dolby Laboratories and DTS, Inc. These competing processes include: Dolby
ProLogic™ and ProLogic II, which are analog, surround sound systems that can-encode surround
content as well as decode up-to 5.1 channels of surround sound from mono or stereo; Dolby Digital
(AC-3) and Dolby Digital EX, that encode a six channel digital sound track on a movie print and
decode six channels of digital audio in a consumer electronics device; Dolby Virtual Speaker, which
processes the multichannels-of Dolby Digital or Dolby Surround over just two channels, creating a
virtual surround sound experience; DTS®, which uses CDs to teproduce six channels of digital sound
synchronized with a movie print and decodes the six channels of sound in a consumer electronics.
device; DTS NEO 6, which decodes up to 6.1 channels of surround sound from mono or stereo; and
N-2-2™ from Spatializer, which processes the multichannels of surround sound over two speakers.

Certain of these companies referenced above have, or may have, substantlally greater resources
than us to devote to further technologies and new product developments. We believe that we will
compete based primarily on the quality and performance of our proprietary technologies, brand name
awareness, the ease and cost of implementing our technologies, the ability to meet OEMs’ needs to
differentiate their products, and the strength of our licensee. relationships. However, there can be no .
assurance that based on these factors, we will continue to be competitive with existing or future
products or technologies of our competitors.

SRSWOWcast

. In the broadcast and professional audio markets, our Circle Surround technology competes directly
with surround sound formats from Dolby Laboratories and DTS, Inc., which market professional -
products for the encoding and creation of multichannel content. Both of these companies have more
established reputations, greater technical, sales, marketing and distribution capabilities and stronger .
brand presence in the movie/cinema, television broadcast and music recording segments of professional -
audio. These competitors also have established or may establish strategic relationships with potential
customers of our Circle Surround technology that may affect our customer s decisions  to purchase
products or hcense technology from us.

Valence

The Asia Pacific semiconductor mdustry is dommated by several major supphers such as
Motorola, National Semiconductor and Texas Instruments. These established semiconductor companies
usually do not offer custom design services to manufacturers and will only do so. if the number of
semiconductors required by such manufacturers is very large. Instead, they supply standard IC products
to their customers: We do occasionally compete with-smaller design houses in Japan, Taiwan or Korea,.
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such as Sunplus but most of these houses are focused on standard semiconductor Chlp categorles such
as random access memory, micro-controller and other non-proprietary functional pracesses.

We believe that our ASIC teami is more ﬂexrble in its strategy of designing new products, as well
as more responsive in the service provided to clients. With 18 years of experience in the Asian Pacific -
semiconductor market, our large accumulated design IP library can be reused for drfferent designs and
can support: shorter chip development cycle and a lower chip cost. Usrng our propnetary software, -
many of our designs can be re-targeted for different foundries and processes, which allows us to teéduce’
risk and cost. We have a strong in-house testing capability, using state-of-the-art software and hardware -
development tools. We also believe that our expertise in local business practices and a strong franchise..
of relationships with clients gives us a competitive advantage over newcomers to the industry-or the
large multi-national firms. : :

Our ability to develop standard ICs-that incorporate SRS audio technoIOgies"ha's opened ‘up"new-'
chip sales opportunities, but could in the future cause channel conflict with our network of SRS B
technology semiconductor partners. Our objective is to minimize this conflict by concentrating our
design and sales efforts on ¢hip products for markets and product apphcatrons that are underserved by
our existing semiconductor partners. :

The markets in which we sell our products are also subject to extreme price competrtlon _ |
Accordingly, we expect to continue to experience declines in the selhng prices of our products over the
life cycle of each product In order to offset declines in the sellmg prices of its products we must "
continue to reduce the costs of products through product design changes, manufacturmg process -
changes, volume discounts and other savings negotiated with our manufacturmg subcontractors. Since*
we do not operate our own manufacturmg facilities with respect to- ASICs, products or components, it |
may not be ablé to reduce its costs as rapidly as competitors who perform their own manufacturing.

Our ability to design and introduce, in a timely manner, lower cost versions of existing products or
higher gross margin new products, or to successfully manage our: manufacturmg subcontractor
relationships could have a materxal adverse effect on our gross margms

Intellectual Property Rights and Proprietary Informatlon

We operate in industries where innovation, 1nvestment in new ideas and protection of intellectial
property rights are 1mportant for success. We rely on a variety of intellectual property protectlons for
our products and services, including patent, copyright, trademark and trade secret laws, and contractual
obligations. We pursue a policy of enforcing such riglits. There can be no assurance, however, that our
intellectual property. rights will be adequate to enstre our competitive position, or that ‘competitors will
not be able to produce a non-infringing competitive product or service. There can be no assurance that:
third parties will not assert infringement claims ‘against us, or that if required to obtain any third party
licenses as a result of an infringément dispute, we will be able to obtain such licenses. Although we
believe that our patents and trademarks are important to each of our business segments such patents N
and trademarks are especially important to the licensing business segments.

In order to protect the underlymg technology concepts we have filed: and/or obtarned patents for ‘
all of our marketed technologies including technologies marketed under thé trademarks SRS, B
TruSurround, TruSurround XT, FOCUS, Circle*Surround, Circle Surround 11, WOW, VIP and TruBass
In addition, we have numerous issued patents and patents pending for speaker and other acoustic ~
reproduction technologles We pursue a general practice of filing patent apphcatlons forour -
technologles in'the United States and various foreign’ countries where our hcensces manufacture
distribute or sell licensed: products. We contmually update ‘and add new: applications' to our patént
portfollo to address: changing worldwide market conditions and our new technological innovations. The
., range-of expxratlon dates for our-patents extend between the years- 2005 t02018. We have multrple ‘
pateiits covering unique aspects -and improvements for many’ of our technologres Accordmgly, the
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expiration-of any single patent is not likely to significantly affect our 1ntellectual property posmon or
the ability to generate licensing revenue.

Our strategy for protection of our trademarks identifying the various SRS technology solutions is
commensurate with our strategy for obtaining patent protection. Specifically, we routinely file U.S.
federal and foreign trademark applications for the various word names and logos used to market our
technology solutions to licensees and the general public. The duration of the U.S. and foreign
registered trademarks can typically be maintained indefinitely, provided proper maintenance fees are
paid and trademarks are continually used or licensed by. us.

Season’ality

‘Dueé to our dependence on the consumer electronics market, we experience seasonal fluctuation in
sales and earnings. In particular, we believe that the licensing business experiences seasonality relating
to the Christmas season in the fourth quarter, and the semiconductor business located in the Asia
Pacific region experiences seasonality related to the Chinese New Year in' the first quarter. We are.
moving toward diversifying our key market segments in the consumer electromcs industry in an effort
to even out our seasonal ﬂuctuatlon

Employees

We employed 112 persons as of December 31, 2003, including 23 in finance and adrmmstratron, 57
in R&D, engineering and product development and 32 in sales and marketing. Of the aggregate.
number of employees, 69 are employed by Valence and are located overseas. None of our employees
are covered by a collective bargaining agreement or are presently represented by a labor union. We
have not expenenced any work stoppages and cons1der our employee relations to be good.

Item 1A. Executive Offi}cers' of the_ Registrant

Name ‘ . ’ Agé : "Position

Thomas CK. Yuen .............. 52 ‘.Chaxrman and Chief Executive Officer . ,
Janet M. Biski ................. 48 . Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretary -
Philip C. Maynard ............... 49 ‘Executlve Vice President and Chief Legal Offlcer
Theodore A. Franceschi .......... 46  Executive Vice President of Llcensmg arid General

' o ‘Manager _
Alan D. Kraemer ............... 53  Executive Vice President of Technology and Busmess'

- N R Developmient

Jennifer A. Drescher. .. .... “..... 39 Vice President of Corporate Communlcatlons
David M. Lanthier .., ....... ... 43 Vice President of Strategic Marketing

Thornas C.K. Yuen -

Mr. Yuen has served as chairman, chief executive officer and director of SRS Labs since
January 1994. Prior to joining SRS Labs, Mr. Yuen co-founded Irvine-based AST Research, Inc. in
1981. He served as AST’s co-chairman and chief operating officer. Under his leadership, AST became a
Fortune 500 company in 1991 and its stock was named the Best Perforrmng NASD Stock of 1991.
Mr. Yuen departed AST in 1992 and focused his efforts on investing in new projects. Before *
co-founding AST, he held various engineering and project management posmons with Hughes Alrcraft
Company, Sperry Univac and Computer Automation. Yuen was born in Shanghai, China and raised in .
Hong Kong. He received his Bachelor of Science Degree in Electrical Engrneenng from University of
California, Irvine in 1974 with School Honors. He is also an Honorary Professor of China Nationality
University in Beijing. Mr. Yuen is the recipient of several awards from University of California, Irvine,
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including the UCI Medal in 1990; the outstanding Engineering Alumni Award in 1987 and the
Distinguished Alumnus Award in 1986. He was named one of the top 25 executives of the computeér
industry by the Computer Reseller News Magazine in 1988 and 1991. In 1997, Mr. Yuen received the
Director of the Year award from the Orange County Foundatlon of Corporate Drrectors

Janet M. Biski ~

Ms. Biski has served as Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretary of the Company since
December 2002. Previously, she was a founder and served.as Chief Financial Officer and VP of .
Operations for AccentCare, Inc. from April 1999 to December 2002. During that time, the Company
successfully completed 15 acquisitions and grew revenues to approximately $100M. Previous to : :
AccentCare, she served as Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and Treasurer of SRS Labs
from 1994 to 1999. Ms. Biski was involved with SRS Labs in the early start-up phase and led the
company through the successful completion of its m]ual public offermg While at SRS Labs, Ms. Biski
partlcrpated in several acqursmons of technologles as well as thé acquisition of its wholly-owned ‘
subsrdlary in Hong Kong Prior to SRS Labs, Ms. Biski was a “regional controller for Fujitsu Business
Systems, and held various financial management positions at IBM/ROLM. ‘Ms. Biski has BS in
Accounting from the State University of New York, and is a Certified Public Accountant in the State of
California.

Philip C. Maynard

Mr. Maynard has served as Exective Vice Presrdent and Chief Legal Officer of SRS Labs since
March 2004, Prior to joining the company, he was Of Counsel with the law firm Stradhng, Yocca ,
Carlson & Rauth. From 1997 to 2000, he was general counsel for Wonderware Corporatron a leadlng
developer of industrial automation software solutions. Wonderware was acquired by Invensys plc in
1998, -and from 2000 through 2002 he served as Vice President and Division General Counsel of
Invensys Software -Systems, a newly created division of Invensys plc. From 1994 to 1997, Mr. Maynard
served as Vice President, Secretary and General Counsel for National Education Corporation, an
NYSE-traded provider of educational products and services.

Theodore A. F‘ranceschl

Mr. Franceschi has served as Executrve Vlce President of Licensing and General Manager since
May 2003. Prior to that he served as Executive Vrce President of Sales and Marketing since the third
quarter of 2002, and EVP of Sales upon joining ‘the company in January 2002. Prior to joining the
Company, Mr. Franiceschi served as Chief Operatmg Officer of BT, a fabless RFIC company from
December 2000 to November 2001. Prior to his service at BTI, Mr. Franceschi served as the Senior
Vice President of Business, Development for Toshrba America. Electronic Components, the North
American sales, marketing and engineering arm of Toshiba’s semiconductor and electronic components
operations. His employment with TAEC began in 1981 and spanned a variety of senior executive |
management assignments throughout the company. ' B

Alan D. Kraemer

Mr. Kraemer has served as Vice Presrdent of Engrneermg of the Company since Apnl 2000 and
prior thereto, as Director of Engmeermg of the Company since February 1994. In addition,
Mr. Kraemer has served as President of Slerra Digital Producnons, Inc,a compact disc. productron and
recording company, since August 1989. Prior to Jjoining_ the Company, Mr Kraemer also served as |
President of Engmeenng of De LaRue Printrak, a manufacturer of automatrc fingerprint identification
systems from January 1989 to December 1989. Prior thereto, Mr. Kraemer served as Vice Presrdent of
Engmeenng for AST Research a personal computer manufacturer Mr Kraemer also. served as che '
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President of Engineering with Point4 Data Corporation from May 1986 to December 1986, and as
Director of- Software Engmeermg of Northrop. Electromcs from May 1984 to May 1986. -

J enmfer A Drescher

Ms. Drescher has served as Vice President of Corporate Communications since December 2002
and previously served as Vice President of Marketing for SRS Labs from December 2001. She
previously served as Vice President of Marketing for the company’s majority-owned Internet and
broadcast subsidiary, SRSWOWcast Technologies from December 1999-2001. Ms. Drescher was SRS
Labs’ first employee joining at the Company’s inception and working as Director of Marketing for SRS
. Labs until the formation of SRSWOW-cast Technologies. Prior to joining SRS Labs; Ms. Drescher’s:
career has included various senior level marketing, public relations and operational posmons with audio
technology licensing and products compames

David M. Lanthler

Mr. Lanthier has served as Vice Presxdent Strateglc Marketmg since May 2003 Prior to joining
the Company, Mr. Lanthier was a marketing consultant to the Company from October 2002 to
May 2003. From January 2001 to May 2002 Mr. Lanthier was Vice President, Marketing for
Betheltronix, (“BTI”) a fabless radio frequency integrated circuit company. Prior to BTI, he served as
Vice President, Business Development for Toshiba America Electronic Components, Inc. (“TAEC”) .
semiconductor division. His employment with TAEC began in 1983 and covered a variety of sales and
marketmg responsxbllltles in semlconductors and clectronlc components

Item 2. Properties

Our worldwide headquarters are located in Santa Ana, California, in a 23,400 square foot facility
consisting of office and warehouse space. We lease the facility from Daimler Commerce Partners, L.P.
(the “Partnership”), an affiliated partnership. The general partner of the Partnership is Conifer
Investments, Inc. (“Conifer”). The sole shareholders of Conifer are Thomas C.K. Yuen and Misako
Yuen, as co-trustees of the Thomas Yuen Family Trust (the “Trust”), and the executive officers of
Conifer include Mr. and Mrs. Yuen. Mr. and Mrs. Yuen, as co-trustees of the Trust, also beneficially
own a significant amount of our outstanding shares of common stock. Mr. Yuen is our Chairman of the
Board and Chief Executive Officer.

~ Pursuant to the lease agreement with the Partnership, we lease all 23,400 square feet of space at
the above-referenced facility. The lease is for a term of three years, which commenced June 1, 2002
and is scheduled to-expire on May 31, 2005. At the time of expiration, we will have an option to renew
the lease, under similar terms and conditions, for three additional years commencing on June 1, 2005
and terminating on May 31, 2008. We paid the Partnership rent of $208,260 during 2003, $198,900
during 2002, and $182,520 during 2001. The terms and conditions of the lease are competitive based on
a review of similar properties in the area with similar terms and conditions. .

For the majority of 2003, Valence’s principal operations were conducted at two leased facﬂmes in
Hong Kong. The principal executive offices were located in Kowloon ‘Tong, Hong Kong in a 5,887
square foot office facility under a lease, which expired in August 2003. Valence’s other principal office,.
which houses it’s R&D division is located in Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong, in a 9,918 square foot
office facility under a lease, which expired in December 2003. Pursuant to these leases, we pald rent of
$330,826 during 2003, $256,542 durmg 2002 and $301,686 during 2001.

In November 2003, Valence renewed its lease in Kwun Tong and leased an additional 6,682 square
feet to house its executive offices, which it relocated from Kowloon Tong in December 2003. The two
leases for the above referenced facilities will expire in November 2006, at which time Valence can
negotiate renewal agreements. To the extent that management is unable to reach such agreements, it
believes that it will be able to secure comparable space at reasonable rates.
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Our worldwide headquarters house personnel responsible for. the development of our. technologies,
including SRSWOWcast, as well as the administration of the license program, while the Valence
facilities are used in connection with the design and marketing of ASICs, ICs and the sale of consumer
electronic products and components. We believe that our current fac1l1t1es are adequate to support our
current requirements.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

From time to time we may be involved in various disputes and litigation matters arisiﬁg in the .
normal course of business. As of the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, we are not involved ‘in-
any legal proceedings that are expected to have a matenal adverse effect on our consolidated flnancral -
position, results of operations or cash flows. - - '

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

No matters were submrtted to a vote of our stockholders durmg the fourth quarter of 2003

_ PART II
Item 5 Market for Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters
Market for Common Stock

Our common stock par value $0.001 per share (the “Common Stock”) trades.on the Nasdaq ,
Stock Market as a National Market System Security under the symbol SRSL. The table below reflects
the high and low sales pr1ces of the Common Stock as reported by The Nasdaq Stock Market, Inc. for.
the periods 1nd1cated :

o . High . Low .

Fiscal 2003 | , .

" First Quarter . . .. .. [ [, ceeeeee. $323 8205
Second Quarter . ... .... . .. e e . $492 $2.10
Third Quarter ........ e e e $ 619 $3.60

"Fourth Quarter ................. e e .. $11.00 $5.20

Fiscal 2002 » < :

First.Quarter . . .. ... e e N L. $.505 $254
Second QUATET . . o\ ot v e e i .. $295 $1.87
Third Quarter . .. ... vttt ittt e, veeie... $350 $225

Fourth Quarter . ........... L $ 3.48 3$1.80
At March 15, 2004, the last sale price of the Common Stock was $9.20 per share.

Holders
At March 15, 2004, there were 429 stockholders of record.
Dividend Policy

‘We have never paid cash dividends on the Common Stock. We currently intend to retain our
available funds for future growth and, therefore, we do not anticipate paying any dividends in the
foreseeable future.
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Securities Authonzed for Issuance Under Equlty Compensatron Plans

The followmg equity compensatxon plans have been approved by our stock.holders ‘the SRS ,
Labs, Inc. Stock Option, Nonqualified. Stock. Optlon and Restricted Stock.Purchase Plan (the “1993
Plan™), the SRS Labs, Inc. Amended and Restated 1996 Long-Term Incentive Plan (the “1996 Plan”),
and the SRS Labs, Inc. Amended and Restated 1996 Non-employee Directors’ Stock Option Plan (the
“Non-employee Directors Plan). We do not have any.equity compensation plans other than those
approved by our stockholders, with the exception of one- tlme grants of warrants or optlons made by
the Board of Directors from time to time. :

The followmg table sets forth mformatlon regardlng the. number of shares of our common stock

that may be issued pursuant to our equity compensation plans or arrangements as of the end of flscal
2003. ‘

Equity Compensation Plan‘Inforniation

(@) (b) ©

Number of Number of securmes
securities to be : remammg available for
issued upon, .  Weighted-average . future issuance under
-gxercise of - exercise price of equity ‘compensation plans
: . : outstanding options, outstanding options, (excludmg securities
Plan category _ _ warrants and rights  warrants and rights - ‘reflected in column(a))‘ ‘
Equity compensation plans approved by ‘
security holders ... DU 5457 835(1)(3) 8. 9 - . 2 888 276(2)

(1) Represents shares of common: stock that may be issued pursuant to outstandmg optrons granted
“under the following plans: 117,181 shares under the 1993 Plan, 5,205,654 shares under the 1996
Plan and 135 OOO shares under the Non-employee Directors Plan.

) Represents shares of common stock that may be issued pursuant to options available for future -
grant-under the following plans: 2,523,276 shares under the 1996 Plan and 365 000 shares under
the Non-employee Directors. Plan.

3) No optlons have been granted under the 1993 plan since June 7, 1996. The 1993 plan explred on :
"~ December 10, 2003. _
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table sets forth selected financial data of the Company for the fiscal years ended
December 31, 2003, 2002, 2001, 2000 and 1999, which: has been-derived from our consolidated audited .
financial statements.- In 2003, we condensed our revenues to three major categories: semiconductor,
licensing and other. Revenue information for-2002, 2001, 2000 and 1999 previously five categories. has
been restated to conform to the current year presentation. The following information should be réad in
conjunction with Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis and Results of Operations—Liquidity
and Capital Resources and the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto included

elsewhere in this Report.

" Years Ended December 31,
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2003 2002 2001 2000 " 1999
: (In thousands- except per share data) '
Revenues: . o o T : ' S
Semiconductor. . . . . e T POV $10,491 $:9,780 - $ 5,647 $ 10,168 $15,247
Licensing........ R . 8,822 8,097 4,973 2,930 3,378
Other ...... e N © 501 1,125 4811 - 14874 17,171
Total revenues .. ....... ... uueeenun.. .t 19,814 19,002 15,431 27,972 35,796
Costofsales . .......o....oooonnn., .o 4056 4,754 6,704 16,611 22,003
GroSSMargin. . .....oovvvvueenennnnn ... 15758 14248 8,727 11,361 13,793
Operating expenses . : e T
Sales and marketing . .. ........ e 5487 4,626 4,475 6,355 . 5,148
Research and development ... . .............. 4,264 4,189 3,576 4,151 4,142
General and administrative . . ... ... e '5,053 4890 5,167 10,357 -+ 6,932
Non-cash stock issuance cost ... ....... L L — — — 3,112, - —
Total operating expenses. . . . ... .. veee...... 14804 13705 13218 23975 - 16,222
Income (loss) from operations . ......0........ 954- - 543 (4,491) (12,614) (2,429)
Other income, net . ........ovne .. Lo 538 774 797 1,180 . 735
Minority interest .............. e 5 78 193 250 -
Income (loss) before income tax expense ........ 1,497 1,395 (3,501) (11,184) (1,694)
Income tax expense . . ....... ... ... ... e 1,038 589 ‘ 25 . 50
Net income (1055) + - .. cvnniin $ 459 - $ - 806 $(3,878) $(11,509) $(1,744)
Net income (loss) per common share - o .
Basic............. ... . 0 oo $ 004§ 006 $§ (0.31) $ (093) $ (0.15)
DIUted ... vvor et $ 003 $ 006 $ (031) $ (0.93) $ (0.15)
Weighted average number of shares used in the ' '
calculation of net income (loss) per common
share: o ' _ . . B L
BasiC. . iv i e e e 13,033 12,648 12,630 12,379 11,696
Diluted ................ ... .o 14,421 12862 12,630 12,379 11,696
Balance sheet data: o ' ' o
Working capital : .. ......... $12,335 . $14,401 $19,615 § 21,914. $10,953
Total assets .. .........c.c0vinnenennnn.. 31,491 29,307 28,263 41,569 - " 39,101
Short-term debt and current portion of long-term ' . ‘
obligations .. ...... P e — = = . 8,000 ~ 8,000
Stockhqlde;s_ equity ... ... 27,950 25,‘28_2 24,536 28,303 25,040



Item 7. Man’ageinent’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results. of 'Opefation S

The following discussion and-analysis should be read in conjunction:with Item. 6. Setected Financial
Data and our consolidated financial statements and related notes. contained elsewhere in_this Annual .
Report on Form 10-K. For additional information related to our industry segments, see Note 10 of . - -
“Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements,” which are included in Item 8 hereof. For information
regarding our revenues, proﬁts/losses and assets, see -our consolidated financial statements included in
Item 8 hereof : : :

Overview

SRS Labs is a leading developer and provider of audio, voice and surround sound technology
solutions, application specific integrated circuits (“ASICs”) and standard integrated circuits (“ICs”) for
the home theater, gaming, portable audio, mobile phone, computer, automotive and broadcast markets.
We operate our business through three operating units: SRS Labs, the parent company; its wholly-
owned subsidiary, SRSWOWcast.com, Inc., doing business as SRSWOWcast Technologies -
(“SRSWOWcast”); ‘and its wholly-owned subsidiary, ValenceTech Limited, and ValenceTech lelted S
wholly-owned subsxdlanes (collectively “Valence”). As discussed herein, SRS Labs, SRS, the
“Comipany,” “we” or “our” means SRS Labs, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries.. -

' We operate in the following five business segments:

SRS Labs

chensmg Our licensing segment develops and hcenses audlo enhancement, voice and surround -
sound technologies to many of the world’s leading manufacturers of hardware and software products as
well as semiconductor solution providers. Licensing revenues comprised 45%, 43%, and 32% of total
consohdated revenues in fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectlvely

Speaker Products: - Our. product segment develops and markets consumer speaker products that
incorporate proprietary audio and speaker. technologies. Product revenues comprised less than l% of
total consohdated revenues in fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001

SRS WOWcast

Professzanal and Consumer Audto Products: Our professional and consumer audio products
segment develops and markets professional software and hardware products and consumer software
plugins that incorporate proprietary -audio enhancement, voice and surround sound technologles ‘
Revenue from this segment compnsed of 1% of total consolidated revenues in fiscal 2003 and less than
1% of total consohdated revenues in fiscal 2002 and 2001. : :

Valence o : .

- Semiconductor: Our semiconductor segment designs, develops and markets technology solutions in
the form of analog and digital signal processor (“DSP”) semiconductor products or custom ASIC
solutions to original equipment manufacturers (“OEMSs”) around the world. Semiconductor revenues
comprised 53%, 52% and 37% of total consohdated revenues in fiscal 2003, 2002, and 2001 '
respectively.

Component Distribution: Our component distribution seg‘ment” is an authorized, non-exclusive
distributor. of semiconductor components, subassemblies and finished goods for selected OEM
customers. Component distribution revenues comprised 1%, 5% and 30% of total consolidated
revenues in 2003, 2002 and 2001 respectively. We are no longer emphasizing this business due to our
decision to focus on higher margin revenue and we expect future revenue to be 1mmater1a1 to our total
business, therefore we will not continue to break out this segment. :
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Critical Accounting Policies -

" Our discussion and analysis of our results of operations and liquidity and capital Tesources are
based on-our consolidated financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States,

The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that
affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and disclosure of contingent’
assets and liabilities. We base our estimates on historical and anticipated results and trends and on
various other assumptions that we believe are reasonable under the circumstances, including
assumptions as to future events. These estimates form the basis for making judgments about the
carrying value ‘'of assets-and liabilities- that are not readily apparent from other sources. By their nature,
estimates-are subject to an inherent degree of uncertainty. Actual results may differ from our estimates.

The followmg represents a summary of our critical accountmg policies, defined as those policies
that we believe are: (a) the most important to the portrayal of our financial condition and results of
operations, and (b) that require management’s most difficult, subjective or complex judgments, often as’
a result of the need to make estimates about the matters that are inherently uncertain. Qur most. N
critical accounting estimates include valuation of accounts receivable, which impacts operating’ expenses
valuation of inventory, which impacts gross margin; valuation of intangible assets and capitalization of
software, which primarily impacts operating expenses when we impair assets or accelerate their
depreciation; and recognition and measurement of current and deferred income tax assets and
liabilities, which impacts our tax provision. Below, we discuss these policies further, as well as the: -
estimates.and judgments involved. We also. have other policies that we consider key accounting policies,
such as our policies for revenue recognition; however, these pohc1es do not. meet the definition of

critical -accounting. estimates, because they do not generally require us to make estimates or judgments
that are difficult or subjective. :

Accounts Receivable

We perform ongoing credit evaluations of our custoniers and adjust credit limits based upon ,
payment history, the customer’s current credit worthiness and various other factors, as determinéd by
our review of their current credit information. We continuously monitor collections and payments from _
our customers and maintain allowances for doubtful accounts based upon specific customer
circumstances, current economic trends, historical experience and the age of past due receivables.
While such credit-losses have historically been within our expectations and the provisions established,
we cannot guarantee that we will continue to experieénce the same . credit loss rates that we have in the
past. Unanticipated changes in-the liquidity or f1nanc1al posmon of ‘our customers may requ1re
additional provisions for doubtful accounts. :

Inventory

Inventory is'stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. We periodically assess our inventory
for potential obsolescence and lower-of-cost-or-market issues. We make estimates of. inventory :
obsolescence, providing reserves when necessary, based on, among other factors, demand for inventory
based on backlog, product pricing, the ability to liquidate or sell older inventory, and the impact of
introducing new products. If actual market conditions or our customer’s product demands are less
favorable than those projected, additional provisions may be required.

Intangible Assets & Capztalzzatton of Software

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accountmg Standards (“SFAS™). No 142 “Goodwill.
and Other Intangible: Assets”, we assess potential impairments to intangible assets-when there is -
evidence that events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not
be recovered. Our judgments regarding the existence of impairment indicators and future cash flows
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related to intangible assets are based on operational performance of .our acquired businesses, market

conditions and other factors.-If the carrying value of a reporting:unit exceeds its fair value, goodwill is .

consideréd impaired and a second test is performed to-measure the amount of impairment loss, if any.

For fiscal 2003, an independent valuation of goodwill and other intangibles was performed. To date, we:

have not recognized any impairment of our goodwill and other.intangible assets in connection with our

adoption of SFAS 142. However, no assurances can be given that future evaluation of goodwill will not
. result in charges as a result of future impairment. :

Costs incurred in the research, design-and development, of software for sale to others as a separate
product or embedded in a product and sold as part of the product as a whole-are charged to expense
until technological feasibility is established. Under SFAS No. 86, “Accounting for the Costs of
Computer Software to be Sold, Leased or Otherwise. Marketed,” we capitalize software purchased from
third parties if the related software product under development ‘has reached technological feasibility or
if there are alternative future uses for the purchased software, provided that capitalized amounts will
be realized over a period not exceeding five years. Costs incurred prior to the establishment of
technological feasibility are charged to research and development expense. The establishment of
technological feasibility and ongoing assessment of recoverability of capitalized software development
costs require considerable judgment by management with respect to certain external factors, including,
but not limited to, anticipated future revenues, estimated economic life and changes in software and
hardware technologies. Upon the general release of the software product to customers, capltahzatxon
ceases and such costs are amortized to cost of sales usmg the straight-line method on a '
product-by-product basis over the estimated life, which is generally three years. To-the extent that -
amounts capitalized for R&D become impaired due to a decline in demand or the introduction of new
technology, such amounts will be written-off. All other research and development expendlmres are
charged to research and development expense in the period 1ncurred

Income Taxes

In preparing our consolidated financial statements, we go through:a process to estimate our -
income taxes in each of the countries in which we operate. The process includes an .assessment of the
current tax expense, the results from tax examinations and the effects of temporary differences resulting
from the different treatment of transactions for tax and financial accounting purposes. These
differences result in deferred tax assets and liabilities, which are included in the Consolidated Balance
Sheet. We account for income taxes in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 109, or SFAS 109, ‘Accounting for Income Taxes,” which requires that deferred tax assets and
liabilities be recognized using enacted tax rates for the effect of temporary differences between the
book and tax bases of recorded assets.and liabilities: SFAS 109. also requires that deferred tax-assets be:
reduced by a valuation allowance if it is more likely than not that some portion or ail of the deferred .
tax asset will not be realized. We evaluate the reliability of our deferred tax assets by assessing our
valuation allowance and by adjusting the amount. of such' allowance, if necessary. At December 31,
2003, we had net deferred tax assets primarily resulting from temporary differences between the book . .
and tax bases of assets and liabilities, and loss and credit carry forwards, We continug, to provide a .
valuation -allowance on certain deferred tax.assets based on an assessment of the likelihood of their
realization. In reaching our conclusion, we evaluated certain relevant criteria including deferred tax
liabilities that can be used to offset deferred tax assets, estimates of future taxable income of
appropriate character within the: carry forward period available under the tax law, and tax planning
strategies. Our judgments regarding future taxable income may change due to market conditions,
changes in U.S. or international tax laws, and other factors. These changes, if any, may require material
adjustments to these deferred tax assets, resulting in either a tax benefit, if it is estimated that future
taxable income is likely, or a reduction in the value of the deferred tax assets, if it is determined that
their value is impaired, resulting in-a reduction in net income or an mcrease in'net 16ss in the penod
when 'such determinations are made. - ' ‘
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Our-income:tax provision is based on calculations and assumptions that will be subject to-. .
examination by the taxing authorities in the jurisdictions in'which we operate. Should_the actual results
differ from our estimates; we wouid have to adjust the income tax provision in the .period in which the-
facts and circumstances that give rise to the revision become known. Tax law and rate changes are
reflected- in the income tax provrsron in the period in which such- changes are cenacted. - :

Results of Operatrons

The followmg table sets forth certain consolidated operatlng data as a percentage of total revenue ‘A
for the years ended December 31 2003 2002, and 2001

Percentage of Total Revenue

T N o o Years Ended December 31,
Revenues S S } Coe o 2003 o 2002. 2001

Sexruconductor Cee e I APERE R e el 53% . - 52% 37%

~ Licensing . . v i v e e IR &1 43 - 32

" Other. ... ..., R S R P Geeadiaaie 220 5 3
Total TEVENUESs .. .. vwtivn e i L.o100°0 100 100

Costofsales ................. PR Siieiielie 200 250 43
Gross margin . ................ R ... 80 75 57

Operating expenses = . ‘ _ I
Sales and marketing . ... .. e e e, “.. 28 24 29 -
Research and development . ......... e civele. 220022 23.
General and administrative . . . .. e e Le.o 250 260 34

Totavl‘operating‘e}rpen'Ses e PR _.‘ ....... LS 86

Operating income (loss) .. ... ... vvvnon. .. e 5 3 -(‘29)‘ :
Other income; net ..o oo v o i Vs 3 4 5
Mlnontymterest ....... e eeenes 0 0 1

Income (loss) before income taxes - 7 @3

INCome tax eXPense . ... ......vooiseaserinnn.n .. 6003 2

Net income.'(loss). e e e P e 2% 4% ;(_%5_)% -

Year Ended December 31 2003 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2002
Revenues

Total révenues for fiscal 2003 were $19, 813 780 compared to $19,001,793 i in ﬁscal 2002, an increase
of $811,988 or 4.3%. Semrconductor revenues were $10,490,935 in fiscal 2003 compared to'$9, 779, 712 '
in fiscal 2002 an increase of $711,223 or 7.3%. Semiconductor sales consrst of two ‘categories: -

(a) custom application specific ICs (“ASICs”) for specific OEM customers, and (b) standard ICs
marketed under the brand name, ASP Microelectronics (“ASP”). The increase in semiconductor - :
revenue-in 2003 was due to expansion of Valence’s ASIC customer base, increased -design wins in- ASIC
and new ASP chip offerings,-many of which include SRS technologies. In 2003, ASIC sales accounted:
for 76% ‘and ASP sales accounted-for 24% of semlconductor revenues compared to 86% and 14% =
respectrvely in 2002.. : : - » :

chensmg revenues were $8.822, 357 in fiscal 2003 compared to $8 097, 394 in fiscal 2002 an
increase of $724, 963 or 9.0%. This i increase was attnbutable to the sales ‘growth of home entertamment
products such as DVD players and portable products such as mobrle phones and MP3 players. that '
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incorporate our: technologies The major component of our licensing revenues is from the home-theater
market. Our strategy is to diversify our licensing revenue among five major markets: home ‘theater,
mobile phone/voice communications, portable audio, personal computer, and automotive. Although, we
have started.to demonstrate success in our diversification strategy in 2003, we still expect the home
theater market to continue to be a significant component of total licensing revenue. In fiscal 2003, 81%
of licensing revenue was derived from the home theater market which includes televisions, DVD
players and set-top boxes; 6% of revenue was attributable to mobile phones and voice communications;’
5% of revenue was attrrbutable to portable audio devices which include MP3 players; and the
remaining 8% was other products’ including PCs and car audio. In fiscal 2002, 93% of licensing revenue
was derived from ‘home theater; 2% from mobile phones and voxce communications; 1% from portable
and wrreless and 4% from other

Component distribution revenues were $221 447 in flscal 2003 compared to $997,857 in frscal 2002
a decrease of $776,410 or 77.8%. This decrease was due to our decision to focus on higher margin
semiconductor and licensing revenues and de-emphasize certain lower margin distribution activities.
Product revenues were $9,720 in fiscal 2003 compared to $56,961 in fiscal 2002-a decrease of $47,241 or
82.9%. This decrease was due to the decreased on-line merchandising of the SRS products. Revenues
generated by our Internet and broadcast based business were $269,322 in fiscal 2003 compared to
$69,869 in fiscal 2002, an increase of $199,453 or 286%. The increase in revenues resulted from the
increased sales of professional hardware equipment contammg our Circle Surround technology to the
broadcast market '

Gross Margm

Cost of sales consrsts pnmarrly of fabrication costs, assembly and test costs; and the cost of
materials and overhead from operations. Gross margins are dependent on the mix of products sold,
services-provided and:royalties earned: The gross margin percentage for fiscal 2003 increased to 79.5%
as a percentage. of total revenues as compared to 75.0% for fiscal 2002. The increase in gross margin
was primarily due to a favorable mix as we focused the revenue base towards higher margin
semiconductor and licensing revenues and away from lower margin component drstrrbutron

Gross margins for the semiconductor business for fiscal 2003 were 64.9% compared to 64 1% in
2002. Semiconductor revenues accounted for 53% of total revenues in fiscal 2003 compared to 52% in
fiscal 2002. Gross margins. for the licensing business for fiscal 2003 were 99.6% compared to 99.2% in
2002. Licensing revenues a¢counted for 45% of total revenues in fiscal 2003 compared to-43% in fiscal
2002. Gross margins for other revenues for fiscal 2003 were 32.9% compared (5.2)% in 2002. Other -
revenues accounted for 2% of total revenues in fiscal 2003 compared to 5%.in fiscal 2002, The increase
in gross margins for other revenues resulted from our shift away from the component distribution
business into developmg and selling professional products for the broadcast market. We expect gross -
margins in 2004 to be in a range consistent with those achieved in 2003, however, gross margms may
fluctuate in future quarters dependmg on the mix of products sold and services prov1ded royaltxes
earned, competmve pricing, new product 1ntroduct10n costs.and other. factors. :

Sales and Marketmg

_ Sales and marketmg expenses consxst pnmanly of employee- related expenses, sales commissions,
sales consultant fees and related expenses and. product promotion costs. For fiscal 2003, sales and
marketing expenses were $5,487,159 or 27.7% of total revenue compared to $4,625,833 or 24.3% of
total revenue for fiscal 2002. The increase of $861,326 or 18.6% is attributable primarily to investments-
in branding and promotion of our technologies and products in new markets designed to increase
future revenues, co-promotronal activities with our licensees and relocation of our sales and marketmg
offices in Hong Kong. ‘We believe: sales and marketmg expendltures will continue to be a srgmf’ cant
component of operating costs in the future to increase brand awareness and promote the adoptron of
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our technology in new and- existing markets. Whether such expenses increase or decrease, as a
percentage. of total revenues will be- substantlally dependent upon the rate at Wthh our revenues
change : : :

Research and. Development

‘Research and development expenses consist of employee rélated expenses and expenses of
consultants engaged in ongoing research, desxgn and development activities and costs for engmeermg
materials and supplies. For fiscal 2003, reséarch and development expenses were $4,263,682 or 21.5%
of total réveriue compared to $4,189,379 or 22.0% of total revenue for fiscal 2002. The increase of
$74,303 or 1.8% is primarily attributable to the addition of research and development personnel in the
last quarter of 2003. This increased research and development headcount has resulted in the
completion of the design of several new products including WOW XT for mobile technology suite.
Since the personnel were substantially added in the fourth quarter of 2003, we expect that research and
development expenses will increase in absolute dollars in future periods. We expect: that research and
development will continue to be critical to our business:as we introduce new products, but such ’
expenses will fluctuate as-a percentage of revenue due to change in-sales Volume e

General and Admmzstrattve

General and administrative expenses consist pnmarlly of employee related expenses legal costs
associated with the administration of intellectual property, and general corporate purposes, professional
fees and various other administrative costs associated with being a public company. For fiscal 2003,
general and administrative expenses were $5,053,387 or 25.5% of total revenue compared to $4,889; 484
or 25.7% of total revenue in fiscal 2002: The increase of $163,903 or 3.4% was primarily attributable to
additions to infrastructure and personnel for management. of our foreign operations, increased ’
profess1onal fees and public company expenses. We expect general and administrative expenses will
increase in- absolute dollars in future periods as we continue to increase our associated costs, but such
extremes will fluctuate as a percentage of revenues due to changes in sales volumes.

Other Income, Net

Other income, net’ cons1sts pnmarxly of 1nterest mcome reahzed gains and losses on the sale of
investments and foreign currency transaction gams and losses at Valence. Other income, net was’
$538,278 in fiscal 2003 compared to $774,125 in fiscal 2002, a decrease of $235,847 or 30.5%. Other

income, net was higher in fiscal 2002 due'to realized gams on sales of 1nvestments and hlgher interest: -
income earned on investment balances : ‘ .

Minority Interest

Minority interest represents the minority shareholders’ proportionate share of losses in.
SRSWOWecast. For fiscal 2003, minority interest was $5,430 compared to $77,708 in fiscal 2002, a
decrease of $72,278 or 93.0%. In Februaty 2003, SRS Labs completed an exchange offer with the
minority shareholders of SRSWOWcast, pursuant to which SRS Labs acquired all 3,000,000 outstanding
shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock in exchange for the issuance of. 332,184 shares of SRS
Labs common stock. As a result.of the exchange offer, an intangible in the amount of $640 071 was
recorded .and- SRSWOWcast became a wholly-owned subsxdlary of SRS Labs.

Provzszon for Income Taxes

The income tax provision for fiscal 2003 was $1 038 463 compared to $588,333 for fiscal 2002. The
higher tax expense in fiscal 2003 resulted almost entirely from taxes paid on earnings in our Hong
Kong subsidiary at the tax rate of 17.5% and higher levels of foreign tax paid on licensing revenues
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sourced from countries requiring foreign tax withholdings. Additionally, in 2002 the Company revised
estimated related to income tax payables resulting in a benefit of $882,717 in the 2002 current income
tax provision. The Company had federal and state net operating loss carryforwards at December 31,
2003 of approximately $19,778,000 and $11,487,000 respectively. These net operating loss carryforwards
began expiring in 2003 and will continue through 2019. In addition, the Company has federal tax credit
carryforwards of approximately $362,000, which begin to expire in 2011. As of December 31, 2003, a
valuation allowance of $9,284,836 has been provided based on our assessment of our future ability to
realize certain deferred tax assets.

Year Ended December 31, 2002 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2001
Revenues

Total revenues for fiscal 2002 were $19,001,793 compared to $15,430,930 in fiscal 2001, an increase
of -$3,570,863 or 23.1%. Semiconductor revenues were $9,779,712 in fiscal 2002 compared to $5,646,724.
in fiscal 2001 an increase of $4,132,988 or 73.2%. This increase was due to expansion of Valence’s:
ASIC customer base, increased design wins and new chip offerings: Licensing revenues were $8,097,394
in fiscal 2002 compared to $4,973,584 in fiscal 2001 an increase of $3,123,810 or 62.8%. This increase
was attributable to the sales growth of home entertainment products such as DVD players and other
products that incorporate our technologies. Component distribution revenues were $997,857 in fiscal
2002 compared to $4,602,819 in fiscal 2001 a decrease of $3,604,962 or 78.3%. This decrease was due
to our decision to focus on higher margin semlconductor and llcensmg revenues and de-emphasize
. certain lower margin distribution activities. Product revenues were $56, 961 in fiscal 2002 compared to
$189,820 in fiscal 2001 a decrease of $132,859 or 70.0%. This decrease was due to the decreased ‘
on-line merchandlsmg ‘of the WOW Thing processor box. Revenues generated by our Internet and
broadcast based business were $69,869, in fiscal 2002 and $17,983 in fiscal 2001. The increase in
revenues resulted from sales of professional hardware equipment to the broadcast market.

Gross Margin

Cost of sales consists primarily of component costs, fabrication costs, assembly and test costs, and
the cost of materials and overhead from operations. The gross margin percentage for fiscal 2002 '
increased to 75.0% as a percentage of total revenue from 56.6% for fiscal 2001. The increase resulted
primarily from our decision to focus the revenue base towards higher margin semiconductor and -
licensing revenues and away from lower margin component distribution. Gross margins may fluctuate in
future quarters dependmg on the mix of products sold and services prov1ded royaltles earned,
competitive pricing, new product introduction costs and other factors

Sales and Marketing‘

Sales and marketing expenses consist primarily of employee-related expenses, sales commissions,
sales consultant fees and related expenses and product promotion costs. For fiscal 2002, sales and

marketing expenses were $4,625,833 or 24.3% of total revenues compared to $4,474,575 or 29.0% of
total revenues for fiscal 2001. The increase of $151,258 or 3.4% is attributable primarily to increased
sales commission and product promotion costs associated with the increase in licensing revenues. We
believe sales and marketing expenditures will continue to be a significant component of operating costs
in the future to increase brand awareness and promote the adoption of our technology in new and
existing markets. Whether such expenses increase or decrease, as a percentage of total revenues w1ll be
substantially dependent upon the rate at which our revenues change
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Research and Development ‘

Research and’ development expenses consist of salaries and related costs of employees and
consultants engaged in ongoing research, design and development activities and costs for engmeermg
materials and supplies. For fiscal 2002, research and development expenses were $4,189,379 or 22.0%
of total revenue compared to $3,576,170 or 23.2% of total revenues for fiscal 2001. The increase of
$613,209 or 17.1% is pnmarrly attributable to the increased level of ASIC business activity. We expect
that research and development will continue to be critical to our business as we introduce new
products. '

General and Administrative

General and administrative expenses consist primarily of employee-related expenses, legal costs
associated . with the administration of intellectual property, professional fees and various other -
administrative costs. For fiscal 2002, general and-administrative expenses were $4,889,484 or 25.7% of .
total revenue compared to $5,167,396. or 33.5% of total revenues in fiscal 2001. The decrease of
$277,912.0r 5.4% is primarily attributable to.the discontinuation of goodwill amortization in accordance
with Statement of Fmancral Accountmg Standards (“SFAS”) No. 142.

Other Income Net

Other mcome net consrsts prlmarrly of mterest 1ncome interest expense, realized gains and losses
on the sale of investmeénts and foreign currency transaction. gains and losses at Valence. Net interest
income was $774, 125 in fiscal 2002 compared to $796,504 in fiscal 2001, a decrease of 2. 8%. The

decrease is primarily attnbutable to lower 1nterest rates earned on mvestment balances dunng fiscal
2002, '

Mmonty Interest -~

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, SRS Labs owned approximately 87% of the capital stock of .:
SRSWOWcast. Minority interest represents the minority shareholders’ proportionate share of losses in
SRSWOWcast. For fiscal 2002, mmonty interest was '$77,708 compared to $193,005 in fiscal 2001 a
decrease of $115,297 or 59.7%. The decrease is prrmarlly attnbutable to a general reduction in
expenses which resulted in decreased losses. Losses in SRSWOWcast are expected to continue as a
result of expenditures exceeding revenues in an effort to support the expansion and growth of
SRSWOWecast business operat10ns “Should losses continue in SRSWOWcast, the minority interest
adjustment in thé consolidated statement of operatlons will continue to reduce the Company’s. net o
losses by the minority shareholders’ proportionate share of SRSWOWcast’s nét losses to the externt of
their investment. In February 2003, SRS Labs completed an exchange offer with. the minority
shareholders of SRSWOWcast, pursuant to which SRS Labs acquired all of the outstanding shares of
Series A Convertible Preferred Stock in:exchange for the-issuance of shares of SRS Labs common
stock. As a result of the exchange offer, SRSWOWcast ‘became a wholly-owned subsrdlary of SRS L.abs.

Provzszon for Income Taxes

' The i mcome tax provision for fiscal 2002 was $588,333 compared to $377,519 for fiscal 2001. The
higher tax expense in fiscal 2002 was primarily a result of higher levels of foreign tax on hlgher .
licensing revenues sourced from countries’ requiring. foreign tax withholdings. Additionally, in 2002 the
Company’s revised estimates related to income tax payables, resulting in a benefit of $882,717 in ‘the
2002 current income tax provision. We had federal and state net operating loss carryforwards at
December 31, 2002 of approximately $18,230,000 and $11,000,000, respectively. These net operating loss
carryforwards will begin to expire in 2019. and 2003, respectively. In addition, we have federal tax credit
carryforwards of approximately $382,000, which will begin to expire in 2011. As of December 31, 2002,
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a valuation allowance of $8,087,778 has been provided based on our: assessment of our future abrlrty to:
reahze certain deferred tax assets.

Se]ected Quarterly Operatmg Results (Unaudlted) ,

The followmg table sets forth certain quarterly summary f1nanc1al data for the erght quarters in the
period ended December 31, 2003. The ‘quarterly information is based upon unaudited financial -
statements prepared by the Company on a basis consistent with our audited consolidated financial’
statements and, in management’s opinion, includes all adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring
adjustments necessary for a fair presentation of the information for the periods presented. This

. information should be read in conjunction with our audited Consolidated Financial Statements and
Notes thereto appearing elsewhere in this Report Our quarterly operatmg results have vaned '
srgmﬁcantly in the past and are expected to vary significantly in the fature. Due to roundmg ‘
differences, the quarters in a given year may not add precisely to the annual numbers for that year

Three Months Ended .

‘Mar 31, June30, ‘Sep30, Dec3l, Mar3l, Jun?3), Se§,30 Dec 3,
2003 2003 20037 2003 02002 2002 2002 2002

(In thousands éxcept per share amounts) =~

Revenues: e - R o g - co
Semiconductor .. ........... $1,712  $2,467 $2,884 $3,428 $1,471 $2,365 $2,946 - $2,998
Licensing . ............c.... 2,628 1,958 1,855 2,381 1,796 1,436 2,009 2,856
Other ................ coos 21300 - 101 ¢ 0147 - 1220 ¢ 288 227 on - 45753
Total revenues. . .............. 4,470 4,526 4,886 5931 3,555 . 4,028 .. 5412 :.6,007

Gross, margin . .. .... e . 3,801 3,625 3,644 4688 2,762 2914 . 3 906, 4,666

Operating expenses .. . . . ........ 3,748 3451 3393 4212 3459 2750, 3261 .4, 235

Operating (loss} income . ....... 52 174 251 476 (697) 163 646 431

- Net (loss) income ........... "$ 43 $ (34) $ 119 $ 331 $(691) $ 205 $ 596 $ 696

Net (loss) income per Common ‘ .
share: . S '
Basic.............. e $000 $000 $001 $002. $0.05 -$002 3005 $0.04

Diluted .................. $000 $000 8001 $002 $(005 $002 § 005 $ O.‘0'4

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Since inception, we have financed our operations from the sale of equ1ty securmes cash generated
by operations, and short-term borrowings under revolving credit facilities. Our principal source - of -
liquidity to fund ongoing operations at December 31, 2003 was.cash, cash equivalents-and long:term-
investments ‘aggregating $23,285,830. At December 31, 2003, we had cash and cash equivalents of -
$12,795;620 -and’ investments ‘of $10,490,210. Cash and cash equivalents generally consist of ‘cash, money’
market funds and other money:market instruments with original maturities of three months or less:' “:*"
Investments consist of U.S. government;securities rated AAA. As of December 31, 2003, cash, -cash
equivalents and long-term investments were $23,285,830 compared to- $22,351, 631 as of December 31,
2002, an-increase of $934,199. : S :

Net cash provrded by operatmg activities dunng fiscal 2003 was $807 886 resultmg pnmanly from
an increase in accounts payable offset by increases in accounts receivable, prepaids and other assets
and a decrease in accrued liabilities and income taxes payable as well as certain adjustments to
reconcile net income to cash used in operating activities including depreciation and amortization and "
deferred income taxes.-Prepaids and other assets increased from $462,442 at December 31, 2002 to
$1,073,696:at December 31, 2003. This increase resulted from prepayments for improvements and - . ~
deposits -associated with our new offices in Hong Kong and interest receivable on investments. Accrued:
liabilities decreased from $2,347,702, at December 31, 2002 to $1,606,069 at December 31, 2003 due to
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the payment of sales-.commission and product promotion costs and professional fees associated with -
fiscal 2002. Net cash.used in investing activities during fiscal 2003 was $5,157,635 resulting primarily
from the purchase of U.S. government securities, purchases of furniture, fixtures and équipment and
expenditures related to intangible assets offset by proceeds-received from sales of our. investments. Net
cash provided by financing activities during fiscal 2003 was $1,424,509, reflecting the proceeds from sale
of common stock pursuant to exercise of employee stock optlons : s

Working capital decreased from $14,401,346 at December 31, 2002 to $12,335, 296 at December 31,
2003..The decrease of $2,066,050 was primarily attributable to the purchase of U.S. govemment
securities classified as long-term investments available for sale : ‘

We anticipate that our pnmary uses of working caprtal in future periods will be to a'cquire"new
technologies and to fund increased costs for additional sales, ‘marketing and engmeermg ‘headcounts
and other marketmg activities assocrated with the 1ntroduct10n of new technologles ‘and products mto ,
the market. : '

Based on current plans and business conditions, we expect that our cash, cash equivalents and
mvestments ‘together with any amounts generated from operations, will be sufficient to meet our cash'
requirements for at least the next 12 months. However, there can be no assurance that we will not be
required to seek other fmancmg sooner or that such financing, if required, will be available on terms
satlsfactory to the Company ' '

Contractual Cash Obhgatlons and Contingent Llabllltles and Commltments

We have contractual obligations and commitments with regards to operating lease arrangements.
The following table quantifies our expected contractual obhgatlons and commltments subsequent to -
December 31, 2003 ‘

Payments due by period e
Less than . More than 3. .~

Contractual Obligations ) S Tbtal - 1 year 1-3 years _years
Operating lease obhgatlons. RO . $774,613 $359,437 $405.647  $9,529

Total . oo o . $774,613 - $359,437 $405,647 - $9,529

Recent Accountmg Pronouncements

In December 2002 the FASB-issued SFAS No 148 “Accountlng for Stock Based Compensatlon— :
Transition-and Disclosure—an Amendment .to SFAS No. 123.” SFAS No. 148 prov1des alternative .
methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair value based method on accounting for stock-
based .employee compensation. SFAS 148 also requires that disclosures of the pro forma effect of using:
the fair value method of accounting for stock-based employee -compensation be displayed more
prominently and in a tabular format. Additionally, SFAS 148 requires disclosures of the pro forma
effect in interim financial statements. The Company has not currently. adopted SFAS No. 123 and
accordingly the implementation of SFAS No. 148 has not had a material effect on the Company’s
consolidated financial posmon or results of operatlons The Company has adopted the dlsclosure h
provnslon of SFAS 148. -

"In November 2002 the FASB issued mterpretatlon No. 45 “Guarantor’s Accountmg and
Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees. Including indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others,”
which disclosures are effective for financial statements for periods ending after December 15,.2002.
While the Company has various guarantees included in contracts in the normal course of business,
primarily in the form. of indemnities; these guarantees would only result in immaterial increases in




future costs but.do not represent significant commitments or contingent liabilities of the mdebtedness
of others. R

InJ anuary 2003, the FASB 1ssued mterpretatron No. 46, “Consohdanon of Varrable Interest
Entities” (FIN 46), which requires the consolidation of variable interest entities, as defined. FIN 46 is-
applicable to financial statements to be issued by the Company after 2003; however, disclosures are
required currently if the Company expects to consolidate any variable interest entities. No materlal
entltres were . consohdated as. a result.of FIN 46.

In April 2003, the FSAB issued SFAS No. 149, “Amendnient of Statement 133 on Derivative'
Instruments and Hedging Activities.” This stdtement amends ‘and clarifies financial accounting and
reporting for derivative instruments, including . certain derivative 1nstruments embedded in other
contracts (collectxvely teferred to as_derivatives). and for hedgmg activities under SFAS No. 133,
“Accountlng for Derivative Instruments and Hedgmg Actrvrtres This. statement is effective for :'
contracts entered into or modified after June 30, 2003. Adoption of this statement did not to have a
srgmﬁcant effect on the Company’s financial position or results of operatrons

In May 2003 the FASB issued SFAS No 150, “Accountmg for. Certam Fmancral Instruments w1th
Characterrstrcs of Both Llabrhtres and Equlty ” This statement establrshes standards for how an 1ssuer
classifies and measures certain financial instruments with characteristics of both liabilities and equity.
This statement is effective for financial instruments entered into or modified after May 31, 2003, and, _
otherwise is effective for the first interim period beginning after June 15, 2003. The adoption of SFAS
No. 150 did not have a significant effect on the Company s frnancral position, results of operatrons or
cash flows.

In December 2003 the SEC. 1ssued Staff Accountmg Bulletm (SAB) No 104, Revenue Recogmtxon
(SAB No. 104) which: codifies, revises and rescinds certain sections of SAB No. 101, Revenue
Recognition, in order to . make this interpretive guidance consistent with current authoritative
accounting and auditing guidance and SEC rules and regulations. The changes noted in SAB No..104
did not have a matenal effect on the Company s results of operatrons financial posrtlon or cash ﬂows.

Factors That May Affect Future Results :
We are exposed to risks in our licensing busmess related to product and customer concentration

Currently, our licensing revenue is concentrated in the home theater market with-the majorrty of o
revenue generated from the inclusion of SRS technology inside televisions, DVD players and set-top *
boxes. We expect that the consumer home entertainment market will continue to account for a_ .
significant. portion, of our licensing revenues for the foreseeable future, Whrle consumer spendmg in.
general on consumer electronic products has.increased, retail prices for certain consumer electromcs _
products that include our audio technology, such as DVD players have decreased srgnrflcantly and: |
indications are. that. thls trend will continue for the foreseeable future In addition, from time:to tlme
certain of our ongmal equrpment manufacturer and semlconductor manufacturer customers may
account for a significant portion of revenue ‘from a particular product. application, such as. DVD .
players, set-top boxes or televisions. Consurner electronics products manufacturers.could decide to -
exclude our audio enhancement technology from their home theater products altogether in an effort to
reduce cost. The loss of any such customer could have a materlal adverse affect on the Company’s
financial condmon and results of operatrons

Dechmng prrces of consumer electromc products could put pressure on our hcensmg fees that are
charged to the manufacturers Also, given ‘the current.economic enwronment consumer spendmg on
DVD players and 'other home eléectronic’ products may not increase as expected Such. declines in:
consumer spending, should they occur, and continued decreases in consumer product pricing for
electronic goods may have a srgmﬁcant negative impact on our financial results. The Company’s
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strategy. is to diversify its customer base in an effort to decrease the impact from the loss of a particular
customer, product segment or change in market trend.

Our quarterly results may fluctuate

Our operating results may fluctuate from those in prior quarters and will continue to be subject to
quarterly and other fluctuations due to a variety of factors, including the extent to which our licensees
incorporate our technologies into their products; the timing of orders from, and the shipments to,
major customers; the timing of new product introductions; the gain or loss of significant customers;
competitive pressures on selling prices; the market acceptance of new or enhanced versions of our
technologies; the rate that our semiconductor licensees manufacture and distribute chips to product
manufacturers; and fluctuations in general economic conditions, particularly those affecting the
consumer electronics market. Due to our dependence on the consumer electronics market, the
substantial seasonality of sales in the market could impact our revenues and net income. In particular,
we believe that there is seasonality relating to the Christmas season generally and the Chinese New
Year within the Asia region, which fall into the fourth and first quarters respectively. As a result, we
believe that period-to-period comparisons of our results of operations are not necessanlyimeamngful
and should not be relied on as indications of future performance.

We rely on revenue contribution from our ASIC and standard IC business

We derive a significant amount of our revenue from Valence’s ASIC business. Valence’s
engineering team focuses on the design of custom ASICs to meet specific customers’ requirements and -
outsources the production of the .design to mask houses, foundries and packaging houses located
primarily in Asia. The operations of Valence could be affected by a variety of factors, including the
timing of customer orders, the timing of development revenue, changes in. the mix of products
distributed and the mix of distribution channels employed, the emergence of .a new industry standard,
product obsolescence and changes in pricing policies by the Company, its competitors or its suppliers.

Business revenue from ASICs is concentrated in a limited number of customers in the areas of
consumer electronics, communications products, computers and computer peripherals. The business
generated from any one customer may be for a fixed length or quantity. As such, it is customary in our
ASIC business to have a certain amount of customer turnover as new ASIC projects are obtained for
different customers. However, it is possible that the loss of any particular customer or any bad debt
arising from such customer may have-a material adverse impact on our financial condition and results
of operation. Beginning in fiscal 1999, Valence began to exit from certain lower margin product
offerings in the distribution side. of the business and has placed more emphasis on developing and
distributing products that are related to or iricorporate our proprietary technologies. As a result, the
immediate loss in revenue of the low margin distribution business will not be entirely offset by the new
proprietary techno]ogy based products, which'will take time to develop and be introduced into the
marketplace. There can be no assurance that we will be able to qulckly introduce new ‘products to
offset the loss i in revenue or that the new products developed will receive a favorable market
acceptance. .

Valence adds significant diversity to our overall business structure and opportunmes We recognize
that in the presence of such corporate diversity, and in particular with regard to the semiconductor -
industry, there will always exist a potential for a conflict among sales channels between the Company
and our technology licensees. Although the operations of our licensing business and those of Valence
are generally complementary, there can be no assurances that sales channel conflicts will not arise. If
such potential conflicts do materialize, we may or may not be able to mitigate the effect of such
perceived conflicts, which, if not resolved, may impact the results of operatlons
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We are exposed to risks in our Valence business related to product fabrication outsourcing to third. parties .

Valence is a “fabless” semiconductor company meaning that VaIence designs, develops and markets
our selection of custom and standard integrated circuits but we rely on third party contractors to -
manufacture, assemble and test our products. Although we believe our relationships are generally good,
we do not have long-term supply agreements with our third-party vendors and they are not obligated to
perform services or supply products to.us for any particular period or in any particular quantities, -
except as provided in each separate purchase order accepted by them. Although we have not :
experienced an unavailability of capacity, the cyclical nature of the semiconductor industry could result
in capacity limitations. Also, partrcularly in times of high demand, our third-party vendors may
reallocate capacity to other customers in a manner adverse to us. Accordingly, there are srgmﬁcant :
risks associated with our reliance on third-party vendors including: capacity shortages, potential price .
increases, delays and interruptions in order deliveries, reduced control over product quality and '
increased risk of mlsapproprratron of mtellectual property

We have a new business model for our SRS WOWcast broadcast and Internet buszness

In fiscal 1999, we launched our SRSWOWcast subsidiary to focus on opportunrtles in the Internet
space. In fiscal 2000, SRSWOWcast commenced operations with a business plan which focused on
developing and acquiring audio based content to attract visitor traffic to its website in order to sell
advertising and e-commerce products. In 2001, we revised our strategy to focus on the sale and
licensing of software and hardware products incorporating our audio and voice enhancement
technology solutions. There can be no assurance that this new business model will develop-a sufficient
customer base to be able to.generate meaningful revenue. In 2003, SRSWOWecast introduced a variety.
of audio processing hardware -and software products to the professional audio markets for the encoding
and broadcasting -of content.in SRS Circle Surround technology. There can be no assurance that:this-
new business model or that the Circle Surround technology will develop a. suffrcrent customer base: to
be able to-generate meaningful revenue: : o - : :

We are exposed to certain nsks in produczng professzonal and consumer products

We intend to continue to develop and offer high-end audio enhancement products mcludmg
professional and consumer hardware and software products. We have also developed a line of speakers
that incorporate proprietary flat panel designs, which have been marketed to OEMs and industry retail-
buyers. There can be no assurance that our products will be. accepted-in the market or that we will be
able to develop an effective distribution channel and build acceptable brand recognition as-a product: ..
manufacturer. As the business increases, it is anticipated that significant capital will be required to
finance product inventory and accounts receivable. :As a result, we are subject to risks.of product
obsolescence, bad debt and insufficient finance to grow the business.

We also recognize that as we develop and market riew consumer audro products there w111 always ’
exist a potentral for conflict and competition between SRS Labs and our technology licensees. Although
our intended products and those of our licensees do not generally overlap, there can be no assurances
that our products will not compete with those of our licensees. If such conflicts do materialize, it is
uncertain whether we will be able to mitigate the. effect of such conflicts, which, 1f not resolved, may
adversely impact our business and results of operatlons

We conduct opefations in a number of countries and are subject to risks of international operations,
particularly in Asia and the PRC

We have significant 0peratrons in Hong Kong, the PRC and other parts of Asia that require
refinement to adapt to the changing market conditions in that region. Our operations in Asia, and
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international operations in general, are subject to risks of unexpected changes in, or impositions of,
legislative or regulatory requirements.

Our customers geographically located in the Asia Pacific markets accounted for approxxmately
93%, 90% and 90% of total Company sales in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively and are expected to
continue to account for a substantial percentage of sales in the future. The economic climate in Asia
continues to be impacted by increases in unemployment, declines in consumer spending, currency
devaluation and bank failures. Any of these factors, should they continue, could significantly reduce the
demand for the-end user goods in which our products and technologies are used.

The PRC economy has experienced significant growth in the past decade; but such growth has
been uneven across geographic and economic sectors. There can be no assurance that such growth will
continue or that any potential currency devaluation in the region will not have a negative effect on our
business, including Valence. The PRC economy has also experienced deflation in the past, which may
continue in the future. The current economic situation may adversely affect our profitability over time
as expenditures for consumer electronics products and information technology may decrease due to the
results of slowing domestic demand and deflation. : :

Hong Kong is a Special Administrative Region of the PRC with its own government and
legislature. Hong Kong enjoys a high degree of autonomy from the PRC under the principle of “one

country, two systems.” We can give no assurance that Hong Kong will continue to en]oy autonomy
from the PRC.

The Hong Kong dollar has remained relatively constant due to the U.S. dollar peg and currency -
board system that has been in effect ih Hong Kong since 1983. Since mid-1997, interest rates in Hong
Kong have fluctuated significantly and real estate and retail sales have declined. We can give no
assurance that the Hong Kong economy will not worsen or that the historical currency peg of the Hong
Kong dollar to the U.S. dollar will be maintained. Continued-declining consumer spending in Hong
Kong, deflation or the discontinuation of the currency peg could adversely affect our business.

We are exposed to currency fluctuations and instability in the Asian markets

We expect that international sales will continue to represent a significant portion of our total’
revenues. To date, all of our licensing revenues have been denominated in U.S. dollars and most costs
have been incurred in U.S. dollars. It is our expectation that licensing revenues will continue to be
denominated in U.S. dollars for the foreseeable future. Because Valence and their subsidiaries’ business
is primarily focused in Asia and because of our anticipated expansion of business in the PRC and other
parts of Asia, our.consolidated results of operations and financial position could be significantly
affected by risks associated with international activities, including economic and labor conditions,
political instability, tax laws (including U.S. taxes on foreign subsidiaries) and changes in the value of
the U.S. dollar versus the local currency in which the products are sold. In addition, our valuation of
assets recorded as a result of the Valence acquisition may also be adversely impacted by the currency
fluctuations relative to the U.S. dollar. We intend to actively monitor our foreign exchange exposure
and to lmplement strategies to reduce its foreign exchange risk at such time that we determine the
benefits of such strategies outweigh the associated costs. However, there is no guarantee that we will
take steps to insure against such risks, and should such risks occur, there is no guarantee that we will
not be significantly impacted. Countries in the Asia Pacific region have experienced weakness in their
currency, banking and equity markets. These weaknesses could adversely affect consumer demand for
Valence’s products, the U.S. dollar value of the Company’s and its subsidiaries’ foreign currency -
denominated sales, the availability and supply of product components to Valence and ultimately, our
consolidated results of operations. :
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We are subject to competitive pressures

Our existing and potential competitors include both large and emerging domestic and international
companies that have substantially greater financial, manufacturing, technical, marketing, distribution
and other resources. Present or future competitors may be able to develop products and technologies
comparable or superior to ours, and to adapt more quickly than us to new technologies or evolving
market needs. We believe that the competitive factors affecting the market for our products and
technologies include product performance, price and -quality; product. functionality and features; the.
ease of integration; and implementation of the products and technologies with other hardware and
software components in the OEM’s products. In addition,.the markets in which we compete are
intensely competitive and are characterized. by rapid technological changes, declining average sales
prices and rapid product obsolescence. Accordingly, there can be no:assurance that we will be able to
continue to compete effectively in its respective markets, that competition will not intensify or that
future competition will not have a material adverse effect on our business, operating results, cash flows
and financial condition.

We strongly rely on our mtellectual property

Our ability to compete may be affected by our abxhty to protect our proprietary information. We .
have filed numerous U.S. and foreign patent applications and to date have a number of issued U.S. and
foreign patents covering various aspects of our technologies. There can be no assurance that the steps
taken by SRS Labs to protect our intellectual property will be adequate to prevent misappropriation of
our technology or that our competitors will not independently develop technologies that are
substantially equivalent or superior to our technology. In addition, the laws of certain foreign countries
may not protect our intellectual property rights to the same extent as do the laws of the U.S. The
semiconductor industry is characterized by frequent claims and litigation regarding patent and other
property rights. We are not currently a party to any claims of this nature. There can be no assurances
that third parties will not assert claims or initiate litigation against the Company or our customers with
respect to existing or future products. In addition, we may initiate claims or litigation against ‘third
parties for infringement of our proprietary rights or to determine the scope and validity of our
proprietary rights.

We depend on our executive officers and other key personnel

Our future success depends to a large extent upon the continued service of our executives, as well
as key engineering, sales, and marketing staff, including highly skilled semiconductor design personnel.
We anticipate that any future growth will require us to recruit and hire a number of new.personnel in :
engineering, operations, finance, sales and marketing. Competition for such personnel during times of -
economic growth is-intense, and there can be no assurance that we .can-recruit and retain necessary
personnel to operate its business and support future growth. ‘ '

The market price of our common stock is volatife

The trading price of our Common Stock has been, and will likely continue to be, subject to wide
fluctuations in response to quarterly variations in our operating results, announcements of new products
or technological innovations by the Company or our competitors, strategic alliances between SRS Labs
and third parties, general market fluctuations and other events and factors. Changes in earnings
estimates made by brokerage firms and industry analysts relating to the markets in which we do
business, or relating to the Company specifically, have in the past resulted in, and could in the future
result in, an immediate and adverse effect on the market price of the Common Stock. Even though our
stock is quoted on the Nasdaq Stock Market, our stock has had and may continue to have low trading
volume and high volatility. The historically low trading volume of our stock makes it more likely that a
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severe fluctuation in volume, either up or down, will significantly impact the stock price. Since our
shares are thinly traded, our shareholders may have difficulty selling our common stock.

We may encounter difficulties with acquisitions, which could harm our business

From time-to-time, we expect.to make acquisitions of businesses or technologies that are
complementary to our business strategy. Such future acquisitions would expose the Company to risks -
commonly encountered in acquisitions of businesses. Such risks include, among others, difficulty of
.assimilating the operations,. information systems and personnel of the acquired business(es), the
potential disruption of our ongoing business; and the inability of management to maximize the financial
and strategic position of the Company through successful incorporation of the acquired technologies,
employees and customers. There can be no assurance that any potential acquisition will be
consummated or, if consummated, that it will not have a material adverse effect on our busmess
financial condition and results of operations.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We are exposed to a variety of risks, 1nclud1ng forelgn currency ﬂuctuatlons and changes in interest
rates affectmg investment earnmgs '

Foreign Currency

International Sales represent a significant portlon of our total revenues. To date, all of our
licensing revenués have been denominatéd in U.S. dollars and most costs have been incurred in
U.S. dollars. We have subsidiary operatlons in' Hong Kong and customers in the PRC, and, accordlngly, '
we. are exposed to transaction gains and losses that could result from changes in foreign currency .
exchange rates. We use the local currency (Hong Kong dollars) as the functional currency for our
Valence subsidiaries. The Hong Kong dollar has remained relatively constant due to the U.S. dollar peg
and currency board system that has been in effect in Hong Kong since 1983. To date, most of our
semiconductor revenue and expenses incurred have been denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
Translation adjustments resulting from the process of translating foreign currency financial statements
into U.S. dollars were not significant in fiscal 2003, 2002, and 2001. Cash balances maintained by
Valence in excess of normal operating requirements are invested in U.S. denominated bank accounts
further reducing balance sheet exposure to changes in foreign currency exchange rates. Under the
current circumstances, we believe that the foreign currency market risk is not material; however, we can
give no assurance that the Hong Kong economy will niot worsen or that the historical currency peg of
the Hong Kong dollar to.the U.S. dollar will be' maintained. We actively monitor our foreign exchange
exposure and; should circumstances change, intend to implement strategies to reduce our risk at such’
time that it determines that the: benefits of such strategies outweigh the associated costs. There can be
no assurance that management’s efforts to reduce foreign exchange exposure will be 'successful..

Interest Rates

Our exposure to market risk includes changes in interest rates, which relates primarily to our
invested balances of cash, cash equivalents and investments. Our investment policy. specifies excess
funds are to be invested in a manner that preserves capital, provides liquidity and generates the highest
available after-tax return. To limit exposure to market risk, we place our cash in banks, cash equivalents
in high quality, short-term commercial paper and money market funds and investments consisting of
U.S. government securities and U.S government-backed securities. We do not invest in any derivative
instruments. All cash, cash equlvalents and investments are carried at fair value, which apprommates
cost.

42



Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data -

The financial statement information, including the report of independent accountants, required by
this Item 8 is set forth on pages F-1 to F-25 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and is hereby
1ncorp0rated into this Item 8 by reference. The Quarterly Financial Information required by this Item 8
is set forth in Item 7 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and is hereby incorporated into this Item 8
by reference. ‘

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosures

The information required by‘this Item 9 was previously disclosed in the Company’s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) on October 29,
2002 and the Company’s Current Report on Form §-K filed with the Commission on November 19,
2002.

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures Our President and Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer have evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) as
of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K and, based on this evaluation,
have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were (1) designed to ensure that material
information relating. to us, including our consolidated subsidiaries is made known to our CEO and CFO
by others within those entities and (2) effective, in that they provide reasonable assurance that -
information required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit-under the Securities -
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the
Commission’s rules and forms. :

Changes in Internal Controls There have. been no. material changes in the Company s mternal
controls or in other factors that have materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect,
internal controls subsequent to the date the Company carried out its evaluation. ,

PART 1II
Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

- Information regarding the Company s executive officers is included in Item 1A of Part Iof this
Annual Report on Form 10-K and is hereby incorporated into this Item 10 by reference. The
information set forth under the captions “Election of Directors,” “Information About the Board of
Directors and Committees of the Board” and “Transactions with Management and Otliers—

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in the Company’s definitive proxy.
statement (the “Proxy Statement”) for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders that is scheduled in

June 2004, is incorporated herein by reference. The Proxy Statement will be filed with the Commission
not later than 120 days after the close of fiscal 2003. -

Item 11. Executive Compensatlon

Except as specifically provided, the information set forth under the captxons “Compensatlon Of
Executive Officers” and “Information About the Board of Directors and Committees of the Board—
Compensation of Directors” in the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference. The Proxy
Statement will be filed with the Commission not later than 120 days after the close of fiscal 2003. The
Report on Executive Compensation and the Performance Graph set forth under the caption
“Compensation of Executive Officers” in the Proxy Statement shall not be deemed incorporated by
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reference herein and shall not otherwise be deemed “filed” as part of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

Item 12. Security Ownershlp of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockho]der
Matters

:Information regarding security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management is -
incorporated by reference to the information set forth under the caption “Security Ownership of
Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” in-the Proxy Statement. The Proxy Statement will be filed
with the Commission not later than 120 days after the close of fiscal 2003.

Information regarding equity compensation plans required by this Item 12 is mcluded in Item 5 of
Part 1T of thrs report and is 1ncorporated into this Item by reference :
Item 13; Certam Relatlonshlps and Related Transactmns

The information set forth under the caption “Transactions with Management and Others” in the
Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference. The Proxy Statement w111 be filed with the
Commrssmn not later than 120 days after the close of fiscal 2003.

Item 14. Prmcnpal Accountant Fees and Servrces '

Informatlon regardmg prmc1pal accountant fees and services is mcorporated by reference to the:
information set forth:under the caption “Relationship of the Company with Independent Auditors” in
the Proxy Statement. The Proxy Statement will be filed with the Commrssron not later than. 120 days
after the close of ﬁscal 2003

PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedulés and Reports on Form 8K _
(a) Documents-Filed as Part of This Report: ‘

) Financial Statements

. A : AR Page
Independent Auditors’ Report—BDO Seidman, LLP . ... .... e e e N |
Independent Auditors’ Report—Deloitte & Touche LLP . ... ...... e e e . F-2
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 ... .. wveeineniesi. F3
Consolidated Statements of Operatrons for .the. years ended December 31, 2003

2002 and-200L 4 v vttt v e e e e e e e e e e e e e i e s e - F-4
_-Consohdated Statements of Stockholders Equrty and Comprehensrve Income (Loss) for the
years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 . . ... ... ... i e .. Fs5
- Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2003 L
2002and 2001 ... ... L e e e e F-6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements . ............. e T . .1
(2) Financial Statement Schedules - ’
Page
) Schedule V—Valuatron and Quahfymg Accounts and Reserves for the years ended

‘December 31, 2003,2002 and 2001 ... ... ... . .. ... .. ... i . FE R F25



The financial statement schedule included in Part II, Item 8 herein is filed as part of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K. All other schedules are omitted as the required information is inapplicable or
the information is presented in the consolidated financial statements or related notes. '

(3) Exhibits

The exhibits listed below are hereby filed with the Commission as part of this Annual Report
on Form 10-K. The Company will furnish-a copy of any exhibit upon request, but a reasonable fee
will be charged to cover the Company’s expenses 1n furmshmg such exh1b1t '

Exhibit ) .
Number ) . Descnptlon

3.1  Certificate of Incorporanon of the Company, previously filed with the. Commission as
Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form SB-2, specifically included in
‘Amendment No. 1 to such Registration Statement filed with the Commission on July 3, 1996
(File No. 333-4974-L.A) (the “Registration Statement Amendment No. 1), whxch is.
incorporated herein by reference.

3.2 Bylaws of the Company, previously filed with the Commission as Exhlbxt 3.1-to the. Company ]
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 1999, filed with the
Commission on November 12, 1999, which is incorporated herein by reference.

- Material Contracts Relating to Management Compensation Plans or Arrangements ‘

10.1  Employment Agreement dated July. 1, 1996, between the Company and Thomas C.K. Yuen,
previously filed with the Commission as Exhibit 10.8 to the Regnstratlon Statement
Amendment No. 1; which is incorporated herein by reference. - ‘

10.2  Amendment to Employment Agreement dated as of March 14, 1997, between the Company
and Thomas C.K. Yuen, previously filed with the Commission as. Exhibit 10.2 to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-KSB for the fiscal year ended December 31,-1996,
filed with the Commission on March 31, 1997 (the “1996 Annual Report™), which is
‘incorporated herein by reference. ‘

10.3 Employment Agreement dated July 1, 1996, between the. Company and Arnold I. Klayman,
previously filed with the Commission as Exhibit 10.10 to the Regxstratlon Statement
Amendment No. 1, which is incorporated herein by reference.

104 Amendment to Employment Agreement dated as of March 14, 1997, between the Company '
and Arnold 1. Klayman, previously filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the 1996 Annual Report, which is
incorporated herein by reference.

10.5 Employment Agreement dated July 1, 1996, between the Company and. Alan D. Kraemer,
previously filed with the Commission. as Exhibit 10.11 to the Registration Statement
Amendment No. 1, which is incorporated herein by reference:

10.6 SRS Labs, Inc. Incentive Stock Option, Nonqualified Stock Option and Restncted Purchase

- Plan—1993, as amended and restated, previously filed with the Commission as-Exhibit 10.12:

* to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form SB-2 filed with the Cominission on June 3,
1996 (File No. 333-4974-L.A) (the “Registration Statement”), which is mcorporated herein by
reference.

10.7  Stock Option Agreement-dated January 19, 1994, between the. Company and Stephen V.
Sedmak, as amended, previously filed with the- Commission as Exhibit 10.13 to the
Registration Statement, which is incorporated herein by reference. ‘

10.8 SRS Labs, Inc. Amended and Restated 1996 Long-Term Incentive Plan, as amended,
previously filed with the Commission as Appendix A to the Company’s Definitive Proxy
Statement dated and filed with the Commission on April 26, 2000, which is mcorporated
herem by reference.
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Exhibit
Number

Descnptlon

10:9

1010

10.11

10.12

10:13 -

10.14-

10.15

10.16

1017

10.18

10.19

SRS Labs Inc Amended and Restated 1996 Non-employee Dlrectors Stock Option Plan as
amended, previously filed with the Commission as Appendix B to the Company’s Definitive
Proxy Statement dated and filed with the Commission on April 30, 2003, which is
incorporated herein by reference.

Annual Incentive Bonus Plan, previously filed w1th the Commission as Exhlblt 10.18 to the
Registration Statement Amendment No. 1, which is incorporated herein by reference.
SRS Labs, Inc. Supplemental Executive Incentive Bonus Plan, previously filed with the
Commission as Exhibit 10.14 to the 1996 Annual Report, which is incorporated herein by

.reference.

Form of :Indemnification Agreement, previously filed with the Commission as Exhibit 10.20 to

‘thé Registration Statement Amendment No. 1, which is incorporated-herein by reference.
"Employment -Agreement dated as of March 2, 1998, by and among the Company, Valence

Semiconductor Design Limited, and Choi Yat Ming, previously filed with-the Commission as
Exhibit 10.17 to the 1997 Annual Report, which is incorporated herein by reference.
Employment Agreement dated as of March 2, 1998, by and among the Company, LEC

" Electroni¢c Components Limited, and Wong Yin Bun, previously filed with the Commission as

Exhibit 10.18 to the 1997 Annual Report, which is incorporated:herein by reference. -
Noncompetition Agreement dated as of March 2, 1998, by and among the- Company, Cape
Spencer International Limited-and Wong Yin Bun, previously filed with the Commission as
Exhibit 2.6 to the Form 8-K, which is incorporated herein by reference.
Noncompetition Agreement dated-as of March 2,-1998, by and among the Company, Rayfa
(BVI) Limited: and Choi Yat Ming, previously filed with the Commission as Exhibit 2.7 to the
Form -8-K, which is.incorporated herein by reference:
Employment Agreement dated August 27, 1999 by and between the Company and James F.
Gardner, previously filed with the Commission as Exhibit 10.23 to the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001, filed w1th the Commission on
March 29, 2002 which is incorporated herein by reference.

Other Material Contracts ) :
License Agreement dated as of June 27, 1988, between Hughes Aircraft and Sony
Corporation, as amended and assigned to the Company, previously filed with the Commission

+ as Exhibit 10.6 to the Registration Statement Amendment No 3 whlch is incorporated herein

by reference.

. Industrial Real Estate Lease dated May 30, 1997, between the Company and Daimler

Commerce-Partners, L.P, previously filed with-the Commission as’Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s Form 10-QSB for the quarterly period ended June 30, 1997, filed with the

... Commission-on August 13, 1997, which is incorporated herein by reference. : S
10.20 .

Tenancy Agreement commencing Nov. 16,2003 by and between Jugada Company Limited and

- Valence Technology Limited relating to premiseslocated at workshop No 01-07 on the 20"

10.21

10.22

14

- floor of APEC Plaza,'No. 49 Hei Yuen Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon Hong Kong.

Tenancy Agreement commencing November 16, 2003, by and between Jugada Company

" Limited and Valence Semiconductor Design Limited relating to the premises located at

Workshops Nos. 1through 10-and on the 19® Floor of APEC Plaza, No. 49 Hoi Yuen Road,
Kwun Tong, Hong Kong.

Stock Divestment Agreement dated July 1, 1996 between the Company, Thomas C.K. Yuen,
‘Stephen V. Sedmak and Walter W. Cruttenden III, previously filed with the Commission as
Exhibit. 10.17 to the Registration Statement Amendment No. 2, which is incorporated herein
by reference.

SRS Labs, Inc. Code of Business Conduct and Ethics adopted by the Board of Directors
Nov. 6, 2002.




Exhibit P
Number : Description

21  Subsidiaries:of the Reglstrant o

23.1 Consent of BDO Seidman LLP, dated March 29, 2004.

23.2  Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP dated March 26, 2004.

31.1  Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of SRS Labs, Inc., pursuant to 18 US.C
Section 1350, as adopted putrsuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

31.2  Certification of the Chief Financial Officer of SRS Labs, Inc., pursuant to 18 U.S.C
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.1  Certification of Chief Executive Officer of SRS Labs, Inc., pursuant to 18 U.S.C.

" Section 1350; as adopted pursuant to Sectlon 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

322 - Certification of Chief Financial Officer of SRS Labs, Inc., pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350

as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

(b) Reports on Form §-K

During the three months ended December 31 2003 the Company filed the followmg Current
Reports on Form 8-K: B

On November 13, 2003, SRS Labs Inc (the “Company”) issued a press release announcmg its
operating results for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2003.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securmes Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be-signed on its behalf by the undersxgned thereunto duly
- authorized.

' Dated: March 29, 2004 . By: L ‘THOMAS C.K. YUEN

Chairman. of the Board and
Chief Executzve Officer

Pursuant to the requuements of the Securmes Exchange Act of 1934 thxs report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in'the capacities and on the dates
indicated.

Name » » . | Cépacity a ) _ ]ﬂ'
Y mom CK. YUEN o Director, Chamnan of the Board and L
. Chief Executive. Officer March 29:, 2004

~ Thomas CK. Yuen (Pnnapal_ Executive Officer)

/s/ JANETM BIsSKI ) Chief Fmanaal OfﬁCCI’ ) : ) R ‘
— (Principal Financial and March 29, 2004
Janet M. Biski Accounting Officer)

/s/ DAVID R. DUKES

: Director ’ ' March 29, 2004
David R. Dukes ‘ :
/s/ WINSTON E. HICKMAN L R - :
- - Director-: - : o : March 29, 2004
Winston E. Hickman v .
/s/ STEPHEN V. SEDMAK .
Director : March 29, 2004
Stephen V. Sedmak _ : .
/s/ SAM YAU ) '
Director March 29, 2004
Sam Yau
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INDEPENDEN"I?AUDITQRS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors-and Stockholders of -
SRS Labs, Inc.
Santa Ana, California

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of SRS Labs, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’
equity and comprehensive income (loss), and cash flows for the years then ended. Our audits also
included the 2003 and 2002 consolidated financial statement schedule listed in the Index to Financial
Statements at Item 14(a)(2).:These consolidated financial statements and the 2003 and 2002 . .
consolidated financial statement schedule:are the responsibility of the Company s management. Our -
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and the 2003 and 2002
consohdated financial statement schedule based on our audlts

We conducted our audits in accordance with audltmg standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain‘reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements and. the schedule are free of material misstatement. .
An audit includes examining, on a test basns ev1dence supporting the amounts-and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also- mcludes assessmg the accounting principles used and significant.
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We -
beheve that our audlts provide a reasonable basis for our oplmon

In our opinion, the consolidated fmancxal statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of:-SRS Labs, Inc.'and Subsidiaries as of - _
December-31, 2003 and 2002, and the results-of their consolidated operations and their consolidated ’
cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the -
United States of America. Also, in our opinion, the 2003 and 2002 consolidated financial statement
schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole,
presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

/s/ BDO Seidman, LLP
BDOVSei_dman, ILP

. Costa Mesa, California
February 13, 2004



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
SRS Labs, Inc.
Santa Ana, California

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and
comprehensive income (loss) and cash flows of SRS Labs, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) for
the years ended December 31, 2001. Our audit also included the financial statement schedule for the
year ended December 31, 2001 listed in the Index to Financial Statements at Item 14(a)(2). These
financial statements and the financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the: Company’s .
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and the financial
statement schedule based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing-the. accounting principles used and significant estimates made by -
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
operations and cash flows of SRS: Labs, Inc. and subsidiaries for the year ended December 31,2001, in
conformlty with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our
opinion, such financial statement schedule, for the year ended December 31; 2001 when considered in-
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all matenal respects the
information: set forth therein.

Deloitte & Touche LLP

Costa Mesa, California
March 15, 2002
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SRS LABS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS s

December 31, December 31,

2003 2002
: » ASSETS
Current Assets : : ' ‘
" Cash and cash- equlvalents T S ' $ 12,795,620 - $ 15, 720 860
Accounts recejvable, net of allowance for- doubtful accounts of $87, 628 -
in2003 and $49,049 i1 2002 . ... ... . 1,230,423 1, 074 421
. Inventories, net of reserve of $867,923 in 2003 and $857 986 in 2002 .. 753,020 - 807,382
Prepaid expenses and other current assets, including other receivables S o
of $4,033 in 2003 and $24,346in 2002 ... ........... e ‘ 1,073,696 . 462,442
Deferred income taxes . ................ T . 23406 36,147
Total Current Assets . . ... T ... 15876,165 . 18,101,252
Investments available forsale ... ........... ... ... .. .. ... ... ) 10 490, 210 6,630,771
Furniture, fixtures and equxpment net ...... . ... 1,661,980 1,935,424
_Intangible assets, DL e e e e e R 2,736,810 . 1,957,359
Goodwill. . ............ e e e ©o 533,031 - - 533,031
Deferred income taxes . . . ... .. ..o i e . 193,134 . . 149,498
S Total ASSEtS . ... i e $ 31,491,330  $ 29,307,335
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current Liabilities - ‘ : ' ' R T
Accounts payable. . ... e S 1,503;851 $ 1,011,032
Accrued liabilities . . ........ ... . . . . . .. I 1,606,069 2,347,702
Income taxes payable . . .. ... 430,949 341,172
Total Current Liabilities .. ................................ 3,540,869 - 3,699,906
Minority interest . . .. ........... .. ... .. ... e e e — 325,371
Commitments and contingencies (Note 7) - : )
Stockholders’ Equity
- Preferred stock—$0.001 par value 2,000,000 shares authorlzed no shares
issued and outstanding . . .. ... i e — ‘ —
Common stock—3$0.001 par value; 56,000,000 shares authorized;
13,682,282 and 12,876,314 shares issued; 13,456,982 and 12,651,014
outstanding for 2003 and 2002, respectively . . . .. ............... . 13,683 12,877
Additional paid-in capital . . ...................... [P 58,423,249 55,966,589
Accumulated other comprehensive loss . ............. ... ....... (336,346) (88,564)
Accumulated deficit. . ................ e e e (29,431,524) (29,890,243)
Treasury stock at cost 225,300 shares at December 31, 2003 and 2002,
respectively . ...... e e (718,601) (718,601)
Total Stockholders’ Equity . . . .. ............................ 27,950,461 25,282,058
Total Liabilities And Stockholders’ Equity ..................... $ 31,491,330 $ 29,307,335

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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SRS LABS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS -~
Years Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001

Revenue: e : ‘ :

Semiconductor .. .... e e T $10,490,935 § 9,779,712 $ 5,646,724
~Licensing ................ S e e - 8,822,357 8,097,394 4,973,584

Other................. T 500,489 1,124,687 4,810,622
Total revenues . ........ ... ..o ... 19813781 19,001,793 15,430,930
Costofsales............... .. .uiooiiin il 4,056,079 4,754,245 6,703,550
Gross margin . ............. FE L 15,757,702 14,247,548 8,727,380
Operating expenses ‘ ' o o

Sales and marketlng e e e e e e e e e 5,487,159 4,625,833 4,474,575

‘Research and development ....................... 4,263,682 4,189,379 3,576,170

General and admmlstratlve ................ NI 5,053,387 ' 4,889,434 5,167,396
Total operating- expenses e I _ 14,804,228 13,704,696 13,218,141
Income (loss) from Operations . . .............. S 953,474 542,852  (4,490,761)
Other inCOME, MEL . .\ vt v e ittt v et en s 538,278 774,125 796,504
Minority interest. ............ e R 5,430 77,708 193,005
Income (loss) before mcome tax expense ............... 11,497,182 1,394,685 (3,501,252)
Income tax expense . ............ P .~ 1,038,463 588,333 377,519
Net income (1085) . ...« cvvvennneie S - 458,719 $ 806,352 $(3,878,771)
Net income (loss) per common share: o ' : R

Basic L.l $ 004 $ 006 § (0.31)

Diluted . ..o S T .8 0.03 $ 006 $ . (0.31)
Welghted average shares used in the calculation of Net ‘

income (Ioss) per common share: : o

BasiC ... e e 13,033,002 12,648,373 12,630,199

Diluted . . ............. e PR L 14,420,810 12,862,199 12,630,199

i
i

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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SRS LABS, INC.
" CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Common Stock

Shares

Comprehensive
Accumulated Income, (Loss)
Additional Other for the
Paid-In  Comprehensive Accumulated Treasury Years Ended
Amount Capital Income (Loss) -Deficit Stock Total

BAILANCE, January 1,

Proceeds from exercise

December 31,

12,581,744. 812,653 $55,436455  § (64,950) $(26,817,824)$(263,281)$28,303,053

of stock options % . . 136,800 - 137 184,892 — — — 185,029
Deferred stock option ' ' .
- compensation. . . . . _ = 124,520 — — — 124,520
Treasury Stock ... .. (53,800) . — — — — (188,713) . (188,713) .
Unrealized loss on : L :
investments
available for sale, ) ) ) ) ‘ S
netoftax ....... — — — (13,849) — —  (13,849) $ (13,849)
Currency transiation ' - T
adjustment .. ... . — _ — 4,744 — — 4744 4,744
Netloss™......... . — — — — (3,878,771) — (3,878,771) (3,878,771)
BALANCE, Dec 31, _ S ' S
2000.. ..., .. - 12,664;,744 12,790 55,745,867 (74,055)  (30,696,595) (451,994) 24,536,013 _$(3,887,876)
Proceeds from exercise » : o
.of stock options . .. = 86,670 - 87 131,997 — — — 132,084
Deferred stock option h ’ .
compensation . . . . . — —_— 88,725 —_ —_ — 88,725 -
Treasury Stock . . ... ' (100,400).  — — — — (266,607) (266,607)
Unrealized losson =~~~ v . .
investments
available for sale, ] - L
netof tax .....-.. — — — (14,509) — — (14,509) $ (14,509)
Net income ....... — — — T —~ 806,352 — 806,352 806,352
BALANCE, Dec 31, : ‘ AETT TN CoT
2002......... .. 12,651,014 . 12,877 55,966,589 (88,564) $(29,890,243)$(718,601)$25,282,058 $. -791,843 -
Proceeds from exercise. : ;
of stock options .- . 473,784 474 1,424,035 — —_ — 1,424,509
Deferred stock option - | : S
compensation . .. .-. . — — 72,945 — — — 72,945
Issuance of Common , : : L
Stock .......... 332,184 332 959,680 - — — 960,012 ~
Treasury Stock i .. = S
Unrealized loss on
investments
available for sale, . .
netoftax ....... — — — (247,782) — — (247,782) $ (247,782)
Net income ........ — — - - ‘458,719 — 458,719 - 458,719
BALANCE Dec 31, T , S Lo e
$(336,346)  $(29,431,524)$(718,601)$27,950,461 " $ : 210,937

203, ... .. 13,456,982 $13,683 $58,423,249-

See accompanying: notes to consolidated financial statements -
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SRS LABS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS. OF CASH FLOWS T

“‘Years Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net income (l0SS) . .« oo veeeeeeneennnnnnn PO $ 458,719 $ 806,352  $(3,878,771)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash :
provided by (used 1n) operatmg actlvmes o '
Minority interest /.. ..:.......... e e e (5,430) - (77,708) (193,005)

Provision for doubtful accounts . ................... (38,580) 22,220 50,240
Provision for obsolete inventory ... ................ . (9,937) 490,666 113,920
Deprecxatlon and amortization .. ............ ... ... 1,167,825 1,198,922 = 1,558,299
Deferred income taxes. ................. R (30,898) 833,283 . - (79,973)
Amortization of premium on investments available for sale .. 6,394 S— . 15701
- Stock option compensation expense . .. .............. 72,945 88,725 125,176
Currency translation adjustment . . .................. — — 4744
Loss on. dlsposmon of furniture, fixtures and equipment . . 10,257 4,107 865
Changes in operating assets and llabllmes ' ' A ‘
Accounts receivable . ........ . 0. ce (117423)  (226,625) . (132,348)
Inventories ............ S . . 64,299 326,019 1,330,491
Prepaid expenses and other assets. . ............... (625,742) 169,402 216,109
- Accounts-payable . .. .. .. S SRR 492,819 . = 188,334 -(780,703)
Accrued liabilities . .......... e e (754,367) 990,597 (617,252)
Income taxes payable .. .................. e 117,005 (803,321) . 61,010
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities . . . . . . 807,886 4,010,973 ' (2,205,497)
Cash Flows From Investing Activities: ' B
Purchase of furniture, fixtures and equipment............ © (505,084) - (922,070) - (509,183)
Purchase of investments available forsale .......... oo (5,232,531) - (6,645,280) =
Proceeds from sales of investments available for sale- .. . ... 1,118,916 582,556 5,675,000
Expendltures related to intangible assets .. ............. (538,936) (181,963) (73,949)
Net cash (used in) provided by investing actmtles v e (5,157,635)  (7,166,757) 5,091,868
Cash Flows From Financing Activities: : S
Principal payments on line of credit................... 7 S— . —  (8,000,000)
Exercise of stock options. ... ............... I, 1,424,509 132,084 185,029
Purchase of treasury stock .. ........ [ eel = (266607) (188,713)
‘Net cash (used m) prov1ded by financing actlvmes. ceeee. 1424509 (134 523) (8,003,684)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents . . . e (2,925,240)  (3,290,307) (5,117,313)
Cash and cash eqmvalents, beginning of period . ... ... ... . 15720,860 19,011,167 = 24,128,480

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period .............. $12,795,620  $15,720,860 $19,011,167

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Informatlon
Cash paid during the period for:

CIntereSt . e e U $ — % - — § 151667

‘Income taxes ............... e $ 1,129,334 $ 623,919 $ 396,482
Supplemental Disclosures of Non-Cash Investmg and L -
Financing Activities: . _ L . L o
Unrealized loss on 1nvestments Det $ (247,782) § (14 509) $ (13,849)
Acquisition of minority interest in SRSWOWecast . ... ... $ 960,012 § — $ —

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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SRS LABS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - -

1. Organization and Significant Accounting Policies
Organization

SRS Labs-is‘a leadmg developer and provider of audio, voice and surround sound technology
solutions, Application Specific Integrated Circuits (“ASICs”) and standard Integrated Circuits (“ICs”)
for the home theater, gaming, portable audio, mobile phone, computer, automotive and broadcast
markets. We operate our business through three operating units: SRS Labs, the parent company; its -
wholly-owned subsidiary, SRSWOWcast.com, Inc., doing business as SRSWOWcast Technologies
(“SRSWQWcast”); and its wholly -owned subs1d1ary, ValenceTech Limited, and ValenceTech Limited’s
wholly-owned sub51d1ar1es (collectlvely “Valence”). As discusséd herein, SRS Labs, SRS, the
“Company,” “w or “our” _means SRS Labs, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries.

We operate in- the followmg five business segments:.

SRS Labs

Licensing: Our licensing segment develops and licenses audio enhancement, voice and surround
sound technologies to many of the world’s leading manufacturers of hardware and software products as
well as semiconductor solution providers. Licensing revenues comprised 45%, 43%, and 32% of total
consolrdated revenues in fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Speaker Products: Our product segment develops and markets ‘consumer speaker products that
incorporate proprietary audio and speaker technologies. Product revenues compnsed less than 1% of
total consohdated revenues in fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001

SRSWOWeast |

Professwnal and Consumer Audio Products: Our. professional and consumer audio products
segment develops and markets professional software and hardware products and consumer software .
plug-ins that incorporate proprietary audio. enhancement, voice and surround sound technologies. -
Revenue from this segment comprlsed of 1% of total consolidated revenues in fiscal 2003 and less than
1% of total consolidated revenues in fiscal 2002 and 2001.

I/Ezlenee

~ Semiconductor: Our semiconductor segment designs, .develops and markets technology solutions in
the form of analog and digital signal processor (“DSP”) semiconductor products or custom ASIC
’solutrons to original equipment manufacturers (“OEMs”) around the world. Semiconductor revenues
comprlsed 53%, 52% and 37% of total consolidated revenues in fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001 respectively.

Component Distribution: Our component distribution segment is an authorized, non- exclusrve ,
distributor of semlconductor components, subassemblies and finished goods for selected OEM
customers. ‘Component distribution revenues comprised 1%, 5% and 30% of total consolidated
revenues in 2003, 2002 and 2001 respectively. We are no longer emphasizing this business due to our
decision to focus on higher margin revenue and we expect future revenue to be immaterial to our total
business therefOre we will not continue to break out this segment.

Baszs of Presentatzon

The consolidated financial statements have been: prepared in accordance with accountmg principles
generally accepted in the United States of America and include the Company and its wholly--and
majority-owned subsidiaries, Valence and SRSWOWcast after elimination of all mtercompany -accounts
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and transactions. The equity and net loss attributable to’ mmorrty shareholders are shown separately in
the consolidated balance sheets and statements of operatrons, respectively. -

Cash Equivalents

* Cash and cash equivalents generally consist of cash; money market funds and other money market
instruments with original or. remaining maturities of three months or less at'the date of purchase. The
Company maintains cash and cash equivalents, investments; and. certain other financial instruments with
various major financial institutions. The Company performs perrodrc evaluatrons of the relatrve credrt
standing of these- fmancral mstrtutrons . ‘

Inves'tments

The Company accounts for mvestments in accordance wrth Statement of Fmancral Accountmg
Standards (“SFAS”) No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities.”
Investments, consisting primarily of U.S. government securities, have been classified as available for
sale and are reported at fair value, based on quoted market prices,-in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets. Those securities with a maturation date of .one. year or-less have been classified as
current- assets. Unrealrzed gains and losses net of applrcable mcome taxes, are reported as a separate
component of stockholders equrty . : : v :

Inventones

Inventories, whrch consist of flmshed goods are stated at the lower of cost or net reahzable value.
Cost is calculated using the weighted average method and is comprised of materral costs and, where
applicable, subcontracting and overhead costs that have been incurred in brmgmg the mventones to
their present location and condition. Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price less
costs to be incurred in selling and distribution. Market is determined by comparison with recent
purchases or net realizable value. Net realizable value is based on forecasts for sales of the Company ]
products in the" ensuing years. Should demand for the Company’s products prove to be significantly less
than anticipated, the ultimate realizable value of the Company’s inventories could be- substantrally less
than the amount shown on the accompanyrng consohdated balance sheets

Fumlture Fvctures and Equipment

Fumrture frxtures and equipment are stated at cost net of accumulated deprecratron and
amortization. Depreciation and amortization are provided for using the straight-line method, which
amortizes cost over the lesser of the estimated useful lives of the respective - assets or the term ‘of the
related lease Useful lives range from two to frve years

Intangible Assets

Costs. pald by the' Company related to the estabhshment and transfer of patents pnmarlly legal

costs, are capitalized and amortized over perrods rangmg from frve to ten years, dependmg on the
estimated life of the technology patented '

Consrderatron for the purchase of assets in excess of the fair, market value of specrfrcally 1dent1fied '
tangible assets has been capitalized as intangible assets in,the accompanying consolidated balance .
sheets. These assets are being amortized over penods rangmg from three to eleven years dependmg on.
the useful life of the asset. : : - : T :

The Company annually evaluates the. recoverabrlrty of its patents and 1ntang1ble assets based on’
the estimated future undiscounted cash flows. Should the carrying-value: of patents or intangible assets " -
exceed the estimated future undiscounted cash flows for the expected periods of benefit, such assets




would be written down to fair value. Based upon its most recent assessment, the Company has
determined that there was no impairment at December 31, 2003. - o

Capitalization of software development costs

Costs incurred in the research, design and develo‘pment of software for sale to others as a separate
product or embedded in a product and sold as part of the product as a whole are charged to expense
until technological feas1b111ty is established. Under SFAS No. 86, “Accounting for the Costs of
Computer Software to be Sold, Leased or Otherwise Marketed,” the company capitalizes software
purchased from third parties if the related software product under development has reached
technological feasibility or if there are alternative futuré uses for the purchased software, provided that
capitalized amounts will be realized over a period not exceeding five years. Costs incurred prior to the
establishment of technological feasibility are charged to research and development expense. The
establishment of technological feasxbxhty and ongoing assessment of recoverability of capitalized
software development costs require considerable judgment by management with respect to certain
external factors, including, but not limited to, anticipated future revenues, estimated economic life and -
changes in software and hardware technologres ‘Upon the general release of the software product to
customers, capitalization ceases and such costs are amortized to cost of sales using the straight-line
method on a product-by- -product basis over the estimated life, which is generally three years. To the
extent that amounts capitalized for R&D become impaired due to a decline in demand or the
introduction of new technology, such amounts will be written-off. All other research and development
expendltures are charged to research and development expense in the period incurred.

Capitalized software as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 is as follows:

December 31,

2003 2002
Capitalized software . .. .. e e $342,760  $120,000
Accumulated amortization . ... ... ..o (96,401)  (68,000)
Capitalized software, et . .. ... .. e S e $246,359  $ 52,000

The Company recorded amortization expense of $28,401 and $24,000 for each of the years ended
December 31, 2003 and 2002 respectively. The Company’s weighted average amortization period for
capitalized software is approximately 5 years. The following table shows the estimated amortization
expense for those assets for each of the five succeeding fiscal years.

- o : . : : . Estimated:
- Year ending December 31, Expense
2004 .. ... .. e e i e $94,492
2005 ;... . SR e e 74,917
2006 ... DT e e e 49,217
2007 v e 25,859
2008 L e e e e 1,875
Long-Lived Assets

On January 1, 2002, the Company adopted SFAS No. 144 “Accounting for the Impairment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”, which addresses financial accounting and reporting for the impairment
of long-lived assets and for long-lived assets to be. disposed of either by sale or other than by sale. The
adoption of SFAS No. 144 did not have a material 1mpact on the Company’s consolidated results of
operations, financial position or cash flows.
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In accordance with SFAS No. 144, long-lived. assets; such as property, plant; and equipment are .
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstancés indicate ‘that .the carrying - -
amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured
by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to estimated undiscounted future cash flows -
expected to be generated by the asset. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated future
cash flows, an impairment charge is recogmzed by the amount by which the carrying amount of the
asset exceeds the fair value of the asset. Assets to be d1sp0sed of would be separately presented in the -
balance sheet arid reported at the lower of the carrying’ amount or farr Value less costs to'sell, and are
no longer depreciated. The assets and liabilities of a drsposed group classrfred as held for sale would be.
presented separately in the approprrate asset and lrabrhty sectrons of the balance sheet ‘

. Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 144, the Company accounted for long -lived assets and
long -lived .assets to be disposed of in accordance -with:SFAS No. 121; “Accountmg for Impairment. of
Long-lived. Assets and for’ Long-Lrved ‘Assets to be Drsposed Of SR

Minority Interest in Consolzdated Subszdzary

Minority interest in consolrdated subsrdlary represents the mrnorrty stockholders proportronate ,
share of the equrty of SRSWOWcast. At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the, Company owned
approxrmately 87% of the capital stock of SRSWOWcast. In February 2003, SRS Labs completed an ‘
exchange offer with the minority shareholders of SRSWOWcast pursuant to which SRS Labs acquired
all 3,000,000 outstandmg shares of Serres A Convertrble Preferred Stock in exchange for the issuance of
332,184 shares of SRS Labs common stock. As a result of ‘the exchange offer, an intangible asset in the
amount of $640,071 for a 10-year license agreement was recorded and SRSWOWcast: became a wholly-
owned subsidiary of SRS Labs.

Use of Esttmates

The preparat10n of fmanc1al statements in conformity with generally accepted accountlng principles
necessarily requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the }reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the daté of the financial
statements and the reported revenues and expenses durrng the reportmg perrods Actual results could
materrally differ from these estimates.

Revenue Recognition . T e

Royalty revenues associated with ongoing royalty license agreements are recognized upon receipt
of reports-from licensees stating the number of products implementing SRS patented technologies on
which royalties are due, generally one quarter in arrears. Licensing revenues for one-timé technology
transfer fees are recognized in the period in which the license agreement is consummated and the
related tech'nol'ogy and passage.of title is transferred. Revenue from product sales is generally
recognized upon shipment at which point title passes. Design revenue under design contracts'is
recognized on the percentage-of-completion method. Estimates are reviewed and revised perrodlcally
throughout the lives of the contracts. Any revisions are recorded in the accounting period in which the
revisions are made. Commission income derived from our distribution activities is recognrzed on an
accrual basis in the period when earned.

Research and Development

:+ Research and development expenses mclude Ccosts and expenses assocrated with the development
of our design methodology and the design and development of new: products, including initial - -
nonrecurring engineering and product verification charges from:foundries. Research and'development . is
expensed as incurred.
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Advertising Expense

Advertrsmg costs are charged to expense as incurred. The company expensed $505 514, $297 769
and $114,841 for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for i 1ncome taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accountmg for
Income Taxes.” Deferred taxes on income result from temporary differences between the reportmg of
income for financial statement and tax reporting purposes. A valuation allowance related to a deferred.
tax asset is recorded when it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax asset
will not be realized. :

Foreign Currency Translation

" Our reporting currency is the U.S. dollar, while the functronal currency of Valence is the Hong
Kong dollar. Assets and liabilities of Valence are translated at the rate of exchange on the balance
sheet date. Revenues and expenses are translated using the average exchange rate for the. period.
Translation adjustments resulting from the process of translatmg foreign currency financial statements
into U.S. dollars are included as a separate component of stockholders’ equity (accumulated other :h. .
comprehenswe income (loss)). Foreign currency translation gains were $0, $0, and $4,744, during | the .
years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 respectively. Transaction losses arising on exchange of _
foreign currency are recognized as incurred in the statements of operations and aggregated $6, 689
$468 and $3, 261 during the years ended December 31, 2003 2002 and 2001 respectlvely

Net Income (Loss) Per Common Share

The Company apphes SFAS No 128, “Earmngs per Share ' which requires the disclosure of basrc
and dlluted net income or loss per share for all current and prior periods. Basic net income or loss per
common share is computed by dividing net income or loss available” to common stockholders by the f 3
weighted average number of common shares outstanding during each year. Diluted net income or loss,
per common share reflects the maximum dilution, based on the average price of our common stock ’
each period and is computed similar to basic income or loss per share except that the denominator is
increased to include the number of additional shares that would have been outstanding if potentially
dilutive stock options and warrants had been exercised.

Basic and diluted net income (loss) per share computed in accordance ‘with SFAS 128 for the years
ended December 31 are as follows: - By

2003 2002 - 200
BASIC EPS o ‘ S ,
Net income (I0SS) . . .o v ov vt v in e $ 458,719 §$ 806,352 $(3 878,771)
Denominator: weighted average common shares S
outstanding. .............. e 13,033,002 12,648,373 12 630 199
Net income (loss) per share—basic . ........... $ 0.04 §$ 0.06 - (031
DILUTED EPS o
Net income (loss) .. ............... e $ 458,719 $ 806,352 $(3,878,771)
Denominator: weighted average common shares oo
outstanding. ............ .0, 13,033,002 12,648,373 12,630,199
Common equivalent shares outstandmg S o
Options .. ...t 1,387,808 213,826 —
Total shares . . .............. P 14,420,810 12,862,199 12,630,199
Net income (loss) per share—diluted . .. ....... $ 003 $ 006 $ (0.31)
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There were 1,816,276, 3,664,580, and 4,502,242 potentlally dilutive options outstanding at
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, that were not mcluded above because they would be
anti-dilutive.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based awards to employees using the intrinsic value method.in
accordance with Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees.” The Company accounts for and plans to continue to account for stock-based awards to
non-employees using the fair value method in accordance with SFAS No. 123, “Accountmg for Stock-
Based Compensation.” ‘

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensatlon—
Transition and Disclosure,” which amended SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation.” The new standard provides alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to
the fair market value based method for accounting for stock-based employee’ compensatlon
Additionally, the standard amends the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123 to require prominent
disclosures in-both annual and interim financial statements about the method of accounting for stock-
based employee compensation and the effect of the method used on reported results. The standard was
effective for financials statements for the year ended December 31, 2002. In comphance with SFAS No
148, the Company ‘has elected to continue to follow the intrinsic value method in accounting for its
stock-based employee compensatlon plan as defined by APB No 25 and has made the apphcable
disclosures below.

The Company accounts for stock-based awards to employees under the recognition ‘and
measurement principles of APB No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related
interpretations. The Company has adopted the disclosure-only provmons of FAS No. 123. Accordingly,
no stock-baséd employee compensation cost is réflected in net income (loss), as all options granted
under the plan had an exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying common stock on the
date of grant. Had compensation cost for the Company’s stock option plan been determined based on
the fair value at the grant date for awards for years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001,
consistent with the provisions of FAS No. 123, the Company’s net income (loss) and earnmgs (loss) per
share would have been 1ncreased to the pro forma amounts 1nd1cated below:

2003 - - 2002 - - 2001

Net income (loss) (attributable to common . C 4
shareholder)—as reported ........... $ 458,719 $ 806,352 $(3,878,771)

Add: stock based employee compensation R
expense included in reported net income,

netof tax effect ... ................ 43,768 53,235 . 75,106
Less fair value of stock-based employee o _ ' Lo

compensation expense . .......... oo (2277304). (2,160,997)  (2,395,034)
Net loss (attributable to common ‘ _ :

shareholder)—pro-forma ............ - (1,774,817)  (1,301,410)- (6,198,699) .
'Net income (loss) per share: _ . ‘
Basic, as reported . ... .... e $ 0.04 $ 0.06 $ (0.31).
Basic,proforma .................... $ (0.14) $ (0.10) $ (0.49)
Diluted, as reported . ...... e $ 003 $ 006 $ (0.31)
Diluted, pro forma ................ .. -8 (012) $  (010) § (0.49) .
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The fair value of each option grant was estimated on the date of grant using the Black:Scholes
option-pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions used for grants in 2003, 2002 "
and 2001: risk-free interest rates of 2.9%, 3.6%, and 4.6% respectively, expected option lives of '
five years and a dividend rate of zero. The volatility factor assumptions of the expected market price of
the Company’s common stock were 75%, 87% and 97% for 2003, 2002 and 2001 respectrvely

Because FAS No. 123 has not been apphed to options granted prior to January 1, 1995, the -
resulting pro forma compensat1on cost may not be representatwe of that to be expected in the future
years.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Management believes the carrying amounts of cash and cash equrvalents accounts recelvable and
accounts payable approximate fair value due to the short period of time between origination of the
instruments and their expected realization. The tarrying amounts of mvestments avarlable for sale : are
reported at falr value based on quoted market pr1ces (Note 2) -

Customer Concentratzon

For the f scal year ended December 31, 2003 one customer accounted for approxrmately 11% of
revenues, During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002, two customers accounted. for. approxrmately..
13% and 11% of revenues, respectively. During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001 no single - . :-
customer accounted for more than 10% of revenues. At December 31, 2003 three customers accounted .
for more than 28%, 18% and 12% of total receivables respectively. At December 31, 2002, one
customer accounted for approximately 20% of receivables. Given the significant amount of - revenues
derived from these customers, the loss of any such customer or the uncollectibility of related
receivables: could have a materral adverse effect on the Company s fmanc1a1 condrtron and results of
operatrons ) » l

,

Concentrations of Credzt Risk

Fmancral mstruments, which potentrally subject the Company to concentrations. of credxt rrsk
consist pnmarrly of cash equivalents, investments.and trade accounts receivable. The Company places
its cash in banks and its cash equivalents in commercial paper and money market funds at certain
financial institutions in excess of amounts insured by federal agencies. The Company does not believe
that as a result of this concentration we are subject to any unusual financial risk-beyond the normal
risk associated with commercial banking relationships. Investments consist of U:S. government securities
rated AAA. The Company has not experrenced any srgnrfrcant losses on its‘¢ash equrvalents or.
investments. . s co

The Company’s trade receivables are derlved from sales to OEMs and d1str1butors in the consumer
electronics, home theater, computer, game, broadcast, Internet and telecommunications markets
primarily in Asia, North America and Europe. The Company makes periodic evaluations’ of the
creditworthiness of its customers and manages its exposure to Josses from bad debts by hmrtmg the
amount of credit extended whenever deemed necessary and generally does not require collateral. The
Company maintains an allowance for estimated uncollectible accounts recervable and such losses have
hrstorrcally been within management s expectatrons :

Geographtc Rtsk

" The Company’s srgmfrcant operatlons in Hong Kong, the Peoples Republrc of Chma (“PRC”) and
other parts of Asia have requrred and will continue to requrre refinement to adapt to the changing
market conditions in the region. The Company s operations in Asia, and international operations in
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general, are-subject to risks of unexpected changes in, or 1mposmons of leglslatlve or regulatory
requirements.

Customers geographically located in the Asia Pacific markets accounted for approximately 93%,
90% and 90%, of total Company sales in 2003, 2002 and 2001 respectively and are expected to
continue to account for a substantial percentage of sales in the future. The economic climate in Asia
continues to be impacted by increases in unemployment, declines in consumer spending, currency
devaluation and bank failures. -Any of these factors, should they continue, could significantly reduce the
demand for the end user goods in which the Company’s products and technologies are used.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2002, the FASB 1ssued SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensatlon—
Transition and Disclosure—an Amendment to SFAS No. 123.” SFAS No. 148 provides alternative
methods of transition for a-voluntary change to the fair value based method.on accounting for. stock-
based employee compensation. SFAS 148 also requires that disclosures of the pro forma effect of using .
the fair value method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation be displayed more
prominently and in a tabular format. Additionally, SFAS 148 requires disclosures of the pro.forma
effect in interim financial statements. The Company has not currently adopted SFAS No. 123 and
accordingly the implementation of SFAS No. 148 has not had a material effect on the Company’s
consolidated financial position or results of operations. The Company has adopted the dlsclosure
prov151on of SFAS 148. :

New Accounting Pronouncements

In November 2002, FASB issued FASB mterpretatlon No 45. “Guarantor s Accountmg and
Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, including indirect Guarantees of indebtedness of Others”
(“FIN 45”). FIN 45 clarifies that a guarantor is required to recognize, at the inception of a guarantee,
a liability for the fair value of the obligation undertaken in issuing the guarantee. The initial
recognition and initial measurement provisions of FIN 45 are applicable on a prospective basis to
guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002. The disclosure requirements of FIN 45 are
applicable for financial statements of interim periods ending after December 15, 2002. The Company
adopted the disclosure requirements of FIN 45 in the 1st quarter of 2003 and has included the new
disclosure requlrements

In January 2003, the FASB issued mterpretatlon No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest
Entities” (FIN 46), which requires the consolidation of variable interest entities, as defined. FIN 46 is
applicable to financial statements to be issued by the Company after 2003; however, disclosures are
required currently if the Company expects to consolidate any variable interest entities. No material
entities were consolidated as a result of FIN 46, '

In April 2003, the FSAB issued SFAS No. 149, “Amendment of Statement 133.on Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities.” This statement amends and clarifies financial accounting and
reporting for derivative instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other.
contracts (collectively referred to as derivatives) and for hedging activities under SFAS. No. 133,
“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.” This statement is effective for
contracts entered into or modified after June 30, 2003. Adoption of this statement is not expected to-
have a significant effect on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with
Characteristics of Both Liabilities and Equity.” This statement establishes standards for how an issuer
classifies and measures certain financial instruments with characteristics of both liabilities and equity.
This statement is effective for financial instruments entered into or modified after May 31, 2003, and
otherwise is effective for the first interim period beginning after June 15, 2003. The adoption of SFAS




No. 150 is not expected to have a 51gn1f1cant effect on the Company’s financial position, results of
operations, or cash flows.

In December 2003, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) No. 104, Revenue Recognition
(SAB No. 104), which codifies, revises and rescinds certain sections of SAB No. 101, Revenue
Recognition, in order to make this interpretive guidance consistent with current authoritative
accounting and auditing guidance and SEC rules and regulations. The changes noted in SAB No. 104
did not have a material effect on the Company’s results of operations, financial position or-cash flows.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts as prevxously reported -have been reclassified to conform to the current year
presentatlon
2. Investment Securities Available for Sale

Investments with maturities greater than one year from the balance sheet date are classified as
long-term investments. The Company invests its excess cash in US Treasury and Agency securities, and
tax-exempt securities with approved financial institutions with a minimum investment grade of “A1.”
The investments available for sale consist mainly of bonds and include ‘only marketable securities with
secondary or resale markets to ensure portfolio liquidity.

The following table summarizes the Company’s investment securities available for sale:’

December 31,
_ 2003 2002
US Government securities available for sale:- ‘ L
COSt et b .. $10,745254  $6,638,033
Unrealized losses ... ........... e e (255,044) . (7,262)
Estimated fair value .-.......... e . $10,490,210 $6,630,771

The contractual maturities of investments are shown below. Actual maturities may differ from
contractual maturities. .

December 31, 2003 December 31, 2002
. . Estimated » ‘Estimated
Cost Fair Value - Cost Fair Value
US Government securities
-available for sale: :
Due in one year or less . ... $ — $ — § —% =
Due in one to five years ... 10,745254 10,490,210 6,638,033 6,630,771

$10,745,254  $10,490,210 $6,638,033  $6,630,771

The following table summarizes sales of available-for-sale securities for the‘years ended
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001. Specific identification was used to- determme costs in computmg
realized gains or losses = »

Years Ended December 31,

- 2003 Jo2002 3(102 '
Proceeds fromsale . ....................... . $16,862,523 $9,986,909 $—
Realized gains. . . ..........0c.vvnn.. ... § 36,739 8 98,224 $—
Realized losses .................... PN $ (16713) § — 5
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3. Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment

Furniture, fixtures and equipment, net, consist of the following: T

December 31, )
2003 . 2002

Furniture, fixtures and equipment. ... ....... oo $1,458537  $ 1,298,112
‘Computer equipment . ............. . ... ..., 4,105,798 3,809,329
Leasehold improvements .. ...................... 277,005 303,616
5,841,340 5,411,057
Less accumulated. depreciation and amortization . . . . . .. (4,179,360)  (3,475,633)

$ 1,661,980 § 1,935,424

Depreciation expense is reflected in operating expenses totaling $703,727, $655,340 and $644,142
for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 in the accompanying financial statements based
on applicable asset use.

4, Ac&_juisitiorr of Mirtority Interest in SRSWOWcast

On February 28, 2003, the Company completed an exchange offer with the minority shareholders
of SRSWOWCcast, pursuant to which SRS Labs acquired all 3,000,000 shares of Series A Convertible
Preferred Stock in exchange for the issuance of 332,184 shares of SRS Labs common stock trading at

$2.89 per share at the close of day on the transaction date. The acquisition resulted in a purchase price
~of $960,012. -

SRSWOWocast develops and markets professional software and hardware products and consumer
software plugins that incorporate proprietary audio enhancement, voice and surround sound
technologies. SRS Labs, as the majority shareholder has consistently included the results of in all
previously reported consolidated financial statements. The acquisition was a strategic initiative, which
allows the Company to own 100% of the rights to the license of the Circle Surround technology. Full
ownership of the technology license will aid in the deployment and marketing of such and will help the
Company to compete more effectively. ‘

The following table summarizes the stated values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at
the date of acqursrtlon

Current ASSEIS Lo e L. $324002

Property & Equipment. . .. .. .. ... .. .. e 3,774
Current Liabilities .. . ... ... .. . ce (7,835)
Intangible Assets . ... ... S T 640,071

Purchase Price. . . ... .. . oo $960,012

Current assets primarily consisted of cash, accounts receivable and prepaid expenses and current
liabilities were valued at stated value. Property and equipment was valued at net book value. The
$640,071 of acquired intangible assets was assigned to a license agreement between SRS Labs, Inc and
WOWecast, which is being amortized over 10 years.

5. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

On January 1, .2002 the Company adopted SFAS No. 142 “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,”
which, among other things, establishes new standards for goodwill acquired in a business combination,
eliminates the amortization of goodwill and requires the carrying value of goodwill and identifiable
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intangibles to be evaluated for impairment on an annual basis. Identifiable intangible assets with a
determmable useful life wxll contmue to be amortlzed over that penod

Had. goodwﬂl and assembled workforce mtanglble amortlzatlon been. d1scont1nued effecnve
January 1, 2001 net loss: for the fiscal year 2001 would have been reduced by $325,196. Net loss per . .
common share. for the fiscal year 2001 and 2000, -after adjusting for the impact. of discontinued goodwill
and assembled workforce intangible amortization would have been. reduced by $0.03 to ($0.28) per
common share. :

In.accordance with SFAS No. 142, all of our intangible assets that have definite lives are being
amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives:and goodwill is evaluated to
determine if fair value of the asset has decreased below its carrying value. At December 31, 2003 and
December 31, 2002, we evaluated goodw111 and determined-that no, adjustment to 1mpa1r goodwﬂ] was:
necessary. gr : ;

Goodwill and intangible assets consist of the following:

December 31,,

y C _2603 L2002
Goodwill . ... ... v e S v $ 533,031 $ 533,031
Accumulated amortization .. ... ... 0. ;o oo, : — L —
Goodwill, met ... 5‘33,031 533,031
Patents ... ... e nen e [ ." 1,760,236 1,398,565
Accumulated amortlzatxon e e g e (739792) (590, 365) .

~ Patents,net............ e FRE R TR PRI ~ 1,020,444 808,200
Other intangibles. . ... ........ PR e 5,839,890 5,030,400
Accumulated amomzatlon .................... ... (4,123,524) (3 881,241)
Other 1ntang1bles 1] S N I 1716366 1,149,159
Goodwxll and intangible assets, net......... e $3269841 $ 2,490,390

Amortizatlon periods range from three to eleven }}ears depending on the estimated useful life of
the asset. Amortization expense consists of the following:

Year ended December 31,

. S - » 2003 2002 2001
Goodwill and assembled workforce ............ $ — 3 —  $325,196
Patents .......... ... . i 149,427 133,594 123,307
Other intangibles ... ...................... 295621 409,988 465654

Total amortlzatlon expense . e $445 048  $543,582 $91’4-1'5'7-

Our wexghted average arnornzanon penod for patents and other 1ntang1bles is apprommately
10 years. The following table shows the estimated amortization expense for those assets for each of the
five succeeding fiscal years.

Year ending December 31, ° P - L . Estimated expense

AR o : ' $516,108
470,029 -

429,069
412391 . ¥
247,021
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6. Financing Arrangements

In March 1998, the Company obtained a revolvmg line of credrt and letter of credrt facmty witha
bank that was secured by certain-of the Company’s ¢ash, cash equivalents and investments. Total ~
availability under the line.during the life of the agreement ranged from $5,000,000 to $10,000,000.-On .
October 11, 2001, the Company terminated the revolving line of credit and letter of credit facility with .
" the bank. As of December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002, the Company had.no. borrowmgs
outstanding under and credit facilities.

In November 1999, Valence obtained a credit facility and access to import/export-trade: instruments
with a bank that was secured by certain:assets of Valence on deposit. Total availability during the life-of
the facility ranged from $2,000,000 to $5,000,000, depending on.the.type of instrument provided: for.
The line of credit was not renewed as of December 31, 2003, the associated collateral was released, and
as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, there were no outstanding obligations under this credit facility: . .-
7. Commitments and Contingencies i

The Company leases office space and certain equipment under non-cancelable operatrng leases
expiring through 2008. The Company leases its corporate office and storage facilities located in Santa
Ana, California, under a lease agreement with a partnership that is affiliated with a principal:
stockholder and executive officer of the Company. The lease is for a term of three years,.commencing
June 1, 2002, with an option to extend the term for an additional three years thereafter. Additionally,
the Company leases office and warehouse facilities in Hong Kong from unrelated parties. Total rent
expense was $550,854, $482,057, and $520,362 for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001,
respectively, of Wthh $208 260, $198 900, and 182,520 was paid to related parties, respectrvely

Future annual minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases at December 31,
2003, are*as’ follows

o ‘ _ - off o

, Year ending December 31, ‘ Facility  Facility-Related Party Eqmprfreent “ Total®
2004......... e . $138,333 ~-$210,600 o $10,504 - $359,437.
2005. ... 145,250 87,750 7,030 240,030
2006...... S CoLouh 159,083 ' —_ 6,534 165,617 :
2007 ... e —_— : - 6,534 6,534
2008 — — 2,995 2,995
’ I '$442,666 $298,350 $33,597 $774,613

Litigation

The Company is mvolved from time to time in litigation or claims ar1smg in'the ordmary course of
its business.: While the ultimate liability, if any, arising from these claims cannot be predicted with
certainty, the Company believes that the resolution of these matters will not hkely have a matenal
adverse effect on the Company s consohdated ﬁnan01al statements -

Employment Contracts

The Company entered into employment agreements with its Chief Executive Officer and 4 other
personnel of the Company (collectively “Agreements”), including two officers of ValenceTech. Each of
the Agreements was entered into for an initial multi-year term that has since exprred and all are now
automatically renewed annually on various anniversary dates. Under terms of each of the Agreements,
the Company may be obligated to pay a severance payment ranging from one to two years of the
respective employee’s base salary, depending on the date of termination, if the employment is
terminated by the Company without cause.




8. Income Taxes .

The components of mcome (loss) from contmumg Operatlons before mcome taxes are as follows:

Years ended December 31,

) 2003 2002 2001
US........... [ $ (562,239) $(1,044,099) $(3,606,966)
Foreign ........ ... .. . ... .. ... 2,059,421 2,438,784 105,714
,Tot‘alv e Ceeeaii.. $1497,614 § 1,394,685 $(3501 252)
The prov151on for income taxes consists of the fol]owmg
. Years ended‘hl)eki‘:émbéfﬁ”l,’ :

o 2003 - 2002 " 2001
Current: _ ' T
CFederal ... o $ 0 $(140,141) $ (69,183)
CState ...l e 1600 ¢ (99,455) 150,756

Foreign . .................... ... 1067761 (5354) 375918

o Total. i L 1069361 (244,950) 457491
.+ Deferred: . i STV IR P T S
- Federal 2(292,145). .. (215,388) -~ (589,730)

State .ot e d

«(113,085) - (9,840) 1+ (327,900)

Forelgn e s e (30,897) .. (130,007). =
Change in valuatxon allowance net e 405 229 1,188,518 | 837,658;” 5
Total ..o ... W e a e e nb e (30 898):4 833 283 (79,972)

Total income tax provxsmn $1 038, 463 $ 588, 333 $ 377, 5 19

The reconcxhatlon of the income tax expense (beneflt) computed at U S federal statutory rates to
the provision for:income taxes is as follows: - ‘ : . . :

Years entied December 31, .

‘ v " 2003 2002 0 2000
Tax at U.S. federal statutory rates . . ....... $ 509,042 § 474 193 $Q1, 225 438)
State iricome taxes, net of federal e (16 690) 81,372 (127,938)
“Tax exempt interest’. ... Tl oa e =T (BB155) (31, 667)
‘Change-in valuation allowance net.....:..-405,229 - 1,188,518 . 837,658 -+
Impact of foreign dividend ... .7 ... wum s o owsari 0396021 . 0
* Foreign withholding tax .. .......... I 415,423 338,644 328,785 -
Change in tax credits . . ................ ' —  (480,388)r )
Change in estimated payable amounts . . . . .. — (882,717) U
Foreign tax rate differential and other. . .. .. (274,541) _ (43134) 200,098
Total 1ncome tax expense . ._‘._". e . $1 038 463 $ 588, 333 3 377 519 o
I A R

F-19




Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carryirig
amounts of assets and liabilities. for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for, income, tax
purposes. Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities are ds follows:

December 31,
. - 2003 2002

Deferred tax assets (liabilities): - o
State income taxes .. .. .. R $8 - % 0 —

. ‘Depreciation and’ amortlzanon ..... S IR 1,507,181 89‘6,05‘6
Accruals . ... 382,510 455,544
Net operating loss carryforwards, . .~ .. ... 00 00, 0 7,394,662 6,837,292 ¢
Tax credit carryforwards ....................... 598,001 496,402
Other ..... e e e e e (211,106) (211,102)
Foreign income taxes .. ....................... (169,872) (200, 769)

- Valuation allowance . ............... ... (9,284,836) (8 087,778)

" Total net, deferred tax assets . . . . . e L. $ 216540 '$ 185,645

The Company has federa] and state net operating loss carryforwards at December 31 2003 of
approxrmately $19,778,000 and $11,487,000, _respectively. These net operating loss carryforwards began
to expire in 2003 and will continue to expire through 2023. In addition, the Company has federal tax
credit carryforwards of ‘approximately $362,000 at December 31, 2003, which will begin to expire in
2011. As of December 31, 2003, a valuation allowance. of $9,284,836. has been provxded based on the
Company’s assessment of the future reahzabrhty of certain deferred tax assets. _

Undrstnbuted earnmgs of the Company s foreign subsidiaties are conS1dered to be’ 1ndefm1tely
reinvested and; accordingly, no provision'for U.S. federal and state income taxes has béen provided
thereon. Upon distribution of those earnings in the form of dividends.or otherwise, the Company
would be subject to U.S. income taxes and possibly withholding taxes payable to the foreign countries,
but may be:able to offset unrecognized foreign tax credit carryforwards. Determination of the amount
of unrecognized deferred income tax liability is not practicable.because of the complexities associated :
with its hypothetical calcuiation.

The use of. loss carryforwards and tax.credit carry forwards may become limited in the event of an
ownershlp change as deﬁned under LR.C. code section 382.

On September 11, 2002 the State of Caleorma enacted one: of the budget traﬂer bllls that
implemented the state’s 2002-2003 Budget Bill (A425). The new law suspends the NOL carryover
deduction for tax years.2002 and 2003. To, compensate for the deduction suspensmn the per1pd of
avallabrhty for those NOL deductrons has been extended for two years. .. :

gt
'

9. Stockholders’ Eqmty
Stock Repurchases ’

During, the ﬁscal year ended December 31 1998 the Compan}fs Board of Drrectors authorlzed the
repurchase of up to. 500, 000 of the outstanding shares of the Company’s common stock for a period
from December 23, 1998 to December 31, 1999 (the “1998 Repurchase Program”). Under the 1998
Repurchase Program, 71,100 shares had been repurchased at a cost of $263,281. On September 17,
2001, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to 250,000 of the outstanding
shares of the Company’s common stock for a period from September 17, 2001 to March 17, 2002 (the
“2001 Repurchase Program”). As of December 31, 2001, 53,800 shares had been repurchased at a cost
of $188,713 under the 2001 Repurchase Program. On May 9, 2002, the Company’s Board of Directors
authorized the repurchase of up to 500,000 of the outstanding shares of the Company’s common stock
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for a period from May 10, 2002 to November 10,.2002 (the “2002 Repurchase Program”). As of -
December 31, 2002, 100,400 shares had been purchased at -a cost of $266,607 under .the. 2002 .
Repurchase Program. All repurchased shares under the 1998, 2001 and 2002 Repurchase Programs are-
reflected as treasury stock in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Stock Award/Opnon Plans/ Warrants

On December 1() 1993, the Company’s Board of Dlrectors and shareholders adopted an. Incentrve
Stock Option, Nonqualified Stock-Option and Restricted Stock Purchase Plan (the “1993 Plan”). Under
the 1993 Plan, 801,971 shares of the Company’s . common stock are reserved for issiiance to executives,
-employees and non-employee ‘directors of the Company at the discretion of the Board of Directors-or
the committee administering the: 1993 Plan. The Compensatien Committee of the Board or, in the - -
absence of a Compensation Committee, the Board, has been appointed to administer the 1993 Plan.
Options issued under the 1993 Plan vest in the manner prescribed by the Compensation:Committee or-
the Board, as applicable: As of Deceémber 31, 2003, options to-purchase 117,181:shares of the -
Company’s common stock were outstandmg under the 1993 Plan. R

In January 1994, the Company entered into stock option agreements w1th two Company officers
whereby options to purchase 181,032 shares of the Company’s common stock were granted to each of
the officers at an exercise price of $0.14 per share (collectively, the “Executive Option Agreements”).
As of December 31,2003, there were no options outstanding under the Executive Option Agreements.

In June 1997, the Company’s Board of Directors adopted and the Company’s stockholders
approved the Amended and Restated 1996 Long-Term Incentive Plan (the “1996 Plan”), for which
2,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stock were reserved for issuance to officers, employees and
consultants of the Company. If any award granted under the 1996 Plan expires, terminates or is
forfeited before the exercise thereof or the payment in full thereof, the shares covered by the
unexercised or unpaid portion will become available for new grants under the 1996 Plan. In June 1998,
the Company’s Board of Directors adopted and the Company’s stockholders approved an amendment
to the 1996 Plan to increase the number of shares in the plan by 2,500,000. Also in June 1998, in a
separate amendment, the' Company’s Board of Directors and the Company’s stockholders approved an
amendment to allow all directors of the Company and any subsidiary of the Company to participate in
the 1996 Plan. In June 2000, the Company’s Board of Directors adopted and the Company’s
stockholders approved an amendment to the 1996 Plan to increase the number of shares in the plan by
2,500,000. In June 2003, the Company’s Board of Directors adopted and the Company’s shareholders
approved an ‘amendment to the 1996 Plan to increase the number of shares in ‘the plan by 1,500,000.
The Compensation Committee or, in the absence of a Compensation Committee, the Board of
Directors; has been appoirited to ‘administer the 1996 Plan. Options issued under the 1996:Plan vest in
the manner prescribed by the Compensation Committee-or the Boatd, as applicable. As of
December 31, 2003, options to purchase 5,205,654 shares-of the Company’s common’stock wére . -
outstanding under the 1996 Plan.

In July 1996, the Company’s Board of Directors adopted and the Company s stockholders
approved the 1996 Non-employee Directors Stock Option Plan (the “Non-employee Directors Plan™), a
non-discretionary formula plan for which 120,000 shares of the Company’s common stock are reserved
for issuance to the Company’s non-employee directors. A committee consisting of all directors who are
not eligible to participate in the Non-employee Directors Plan administers the Non-employee Directors
Plan. With the exception of the initial option granted to a non-employee director, which vests
immediately, options granted under the Non-employee Directors Plan vest over a three-year period, the
first installment vesting on the date of grant. In June 1999, the shareholders approved the Amended
and Restated 1996 Non-employee Directors’ Stock Option Plan (the “Amended Non-employee
Directors Plan”). Among the changes set forth in the Amended Non-employee Directors Plan was to
increase by 130,000 the number of shares of common stock that may be issued. In June 2001, the
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Company’s Board of Directors adopted:and the Company’s stockholders approved an amendment to
the Amended Non-employee Directors Plan to increase the number of shares in the plan by 250,000,
As of December-31, 2003, options to purchase 135,000 shares of common stock were outstanding under
the Amended Non-employee Directors Plan.

In connection with the Microsoft Transaction, Microsoft had a three-year warrant to purchase
100,000 shares of common stock of the Company at an exercise price per share of $17.21. The =
Company’s.subsidiary, SRSWOWcast, also issued to Microsoft a three-year warrant to purchase up to
2,500,000 shares’of its:common 'stock at an.price per share of $2.00 as specified in the
SRSWOWcast.com, Inc. Common Stock Purchase Warrant Agreement dated March 8, 2000~ (the
“SRSWOWocast - Warrant™). The fair value of these warrants; totaling $2,555,783, was recorded-as
non-cash stock issuance cost by the Company during fiscal :2000. Faii' value was calculated using the:
Black-Scholes option-pricing model with. the following.weighted average assumptions: expected life— .
36.months; stock volatility—96%; and risk-free interest rate—6.54%. During the term.of both warrant:.
agreements, no shares were pu’rchased’and as of December 31,-2003, the warrants had expired’

The following table summarizes stock optlon actlvrty ‘under the Company s stock optron and
warrant plans for:the perrods indicated: : ,

. T - R o 7 Weighted
' ST T C o Options _Average
: . : R o ‘Outstanding  Exercise Price
Outstanding at January 1,2001 ..ot 4,997,414 $5.01
- Granted .. .. . e i e e e F e e e e 1,573,000 . $2.93
Stock options exercrsed A e .. - (136,800} . +$1.35-
Forfeited . . ...t i .. (1,031,286) - $5.30
Outstanding at- December 31 2001 I IR P 5,402,328 - $4:44
Granted . ... :7 .. .. .. Lo 1,631,400 7 $2.85
Stock options exerc1sed T LT Soeel o0 1 (86,670) 8152
Forfelted’ U G T e ce Jio(922,116) $4.09
 Outstanding at December 31,2002 ................. 6024942  $411
Granted .. ...... B e Lo..T.... 561,400 $417
Stock options exercised .. ......... e ... (473,784) " $3.01
- Forfeited . . . .. T.',,..................‘..'...'..‘;.,\(654723)'_". $5.97 .
Outstandmg at December 31, 2003 ... ......... iw.. 5457835 $3'99,

. The werghted average falr value of optrons granted durmg 2003 2002 and 2001 was $4 15 $2 77.
and $2.21 respectively. Options, granted durmg 2003, generally,vest over terms rangmg from three yearsx
to five years and the options generally expire. in 10 years. : o T
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The following table summarizes information concerning currently- outstandlng and exercisable
options and warrants: : ; A

o Welghted B

Number of ‘Average - ‘Weighted '  Exercisable Weighted -

. : ) - Options ~  Remaining. . Average . . As of Average .-

Range of Exercise Prices ‘ . _yOuL_standing{ Contractual Life Exercxse Price  12/31/2003  Exercise Price
$0.00-$1.90 . ..o, e 1811 - 07 '$ 0.6900 1811 - $ 0.6900
$1.91-8380........ .. ... . 3142478 - 735 - § 29398 1,688,977 § 3.0286
$381-8570 ... ... ..t 1,903,107 5.0 $ 4.9740 1,565,156 $ 5.0856
$5.71-8760........ e 307,939, . 5.1 $ 62364 269,064  § 62244
$761-8950 ... ... ... ...l 62,500 - 56 $ 8.5200 49,375, § 8.4937
$9.51-81140 . ... .. ...l - 20,000 . 6.4 $ 10.5625 15,000  $ 10.5625
$17.10 - $19.00 . ..... .. e 20,000 6.2 $19.00000 15,000 $19.00000
T 5457835 65 $ 39850 3604383 § 4. 3319

On March 5, 1999, pursuant to a technology license agreement entered into by the Company and a
customer, 0pt10nS were granted to the. customer to purchase up to 50,000 shares of common stock at an
exercise price of $3.94 per share. The fair value of the grant is being recognized as compensation
expense ratably over the vesting period of the options. The Company recognized $0, $2,588 and $13, 548
of compensation expense relating to these options in fiscal 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively. In
addition to the 50,000 options granted in 1999, the Company has an obligation to grant up to 200,000
additional options if the customer meets specified performance criteria as defined by the agreement.
The exercise price of additional option: grants will be the fair market value of the common stock at the
date of grant. In addition, during the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, the Company
recorded $72,945, $88,725 and $66,502, respectively, of deferred compensation expense related to stock
optxons granted to non- employee contractors.

10. Sale of Stock by Subsidiary

On September 29, 2000, the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary SRSWOWTcast and certain |
investors, which included shareholders, directors and an executive officer of the Company, entered into.
a Series A Preferred Stock and Warrant Purchase Agr_eement (the “Private Placement Agreement”) -
relating to the purchase and sale of 3,000,000 shares of SRSWOWecast Series A Convertible Preferred-
Stock (“Preferred Stock™) for a purchase price of $2.00 per share or $6,000,000 in the aggregate (the
“Private Placement”). Puisuant to the Private Placement Agreement, investors received an immediately
exercisable, three year warrant evidencing a Tight to purchase one-tenth of a share of SRSWOWcast’s
common stock for each share -of Preferred Stock purchased by such investor, exercisable-at $2.50 per
whole share. The fair value of the warrants was zero at the date of issuance. In accordance with SAB
No. 51, “Accounting for Sales:of Stock by a Subsidiary”, the Company recorded $5,154,995 of
additional paid-in capital associated with the Private Placement. In February 2003, the Company
completed an exchange offer with the minority shareholders of SRSWOWcast, pursuant to which SRS
Labs acquired all 3,000,000 outstanding shares of SRSWOWcast Series A Convertible Preferred Stock
in exchange for the issuance of 332,184 shares of SRS Labs common stock. As a result of the exchange
offer, an intangible asset in the amount of $640,071 was recorded and SRSWOWecast became a wholly
owned subsxdlary of SRS Labs. :

11. Segment Informatlon

During 2001, the Company changed the composition of its segments to correspond with how
management now assesses the performance of each operating segment. Segment information for 2000,
previously two segments, has been restated to conform to the current year presentation. The Company
operates its three operating units in the following five business segments: (i) SRS Labs—the licensing
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of technologies developed by the -Company to OEMs and semiconductor ‘manufacturers; (ii) SRS
Labs—the sale of consumer products incorporating SRS proprietary technologies; (iii) Valence—the
development and marketing of technology either in the form of ASICs or other imbedded custom
semiconductor designs; (iv) Valence—the component distribution business; and (v) SRSWOWcast—the
sale of hardware-and software solutions to: the professional and broadcast audio markets. The Company
does not allocate corporate operating expenses or specific- assets to these segments. Therefore, the
segment information that follows includes only net revenues, cost of sales and gross margins of the ™
1dent1f1ed segrnents, revenue by geographic area and long-hved assets by geographlc area:

Business Segments ‘

SRS Labs " Valence - SRSWOWecast
T Component  Product and
L Licensing : Products Semiconductor Distribution  Broadcast Total
Fiscal 2003 : S ] o _ N ‘
Net revenues . . . . . [ L. $8,822,357 § 19,720 $'10,490,935 $ 221,447 269,322 -$19,813,781
Costof sales . ........... I 39,104 9,958 3,681,299 271,802 - 53 916 4,056,079
Gross margin. .. . . . . PR .88, 783,253 §. (238) $ 6,809,636, $ (50,355) . $215,406  $15.757,702
Fiscal 2002 ‘ B L . Tl
Netrevenles. .. t...t..o.o... $8 097 394 $ 56,961 $ 9,779,712» $ _997,857:;' $46,9‘,869;;, $19,001,793
Costofsales .. ............. . 64,270 . .70,663 3,506,525 1,093,862 ... 18,925 . 4,754,245
Gross margm. R Ceee e $8,'033,124' $ (13,702) '$ 6,273,187 $- (96,005)™ §: 50,944 $14,247,548
Fiscal 2001 . T
Net revenues . . . . . . [P "$4,973,584 $ 189,820 $ 5,,64'6,7242‘ $4;‘6_OZ_,819 ‘ $"17,'983_ $15,430,930
Costofsales . ................ 36,082 314,491 2,009,673 ° 4,343,194 C110 6,703,550
Gross margin. . .. ......c. ... $4,937,502 $(124,671) § 3,637,051 § 259,625 . $ 17,873 $ 8,727,380

The following schedule presents-the: Company’s revenue by'igéographic area. For product sales,
revenue is allocated based on the country to which product was shipped. For licensing-related revenue,
the allocation is based on the location of the licensee’s corporate headquarters The Amencas reglon
mcludes North Central and South Amerlca ' £ O i : '

o L . _ o ‘ _ Year ended December 31, L
GeographipArea Revenuve: . L L. 02003 2002 . 20010

“Asia Pacifict. .. 0L 0 §18,328,670 ¢ $17,152,465 - $13,917,282
Amerieas. Il i i .. Vsl 606,141 0 14,029,773 . 608952
BUIOpE .\ o't i i 878970 - 1 819,555 ¢ 904,696

CTotal ... ..o oo $19,813,781  $19,001,793  $15,430,930

“The following schedule presents the' Company’s long-lived ‘asséts by geographic area:”

. . RN s : December 31,
Geographic Area Long-lived Assets: 2003 © 2002

Asia Pacific . . ... o i e e $1,307, 292 $1 593,895
United StaLES . & v v oot et e e e 354,688 341 529

Total ....ooiii O A $1 661,980 ‘81, 935424=-
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12. Related-Party Transactions

The Company leases its corporate office and storage facilities located in Santa Ana, California,
under a lease agreement with a partnership that is affiliated with a stockholder and officer of the
Company. The lease has a term of three years (expiring May 2005), with an option to extend the term
for an additional three years thereafter through May 31, 2008. We paid the Partnership rent of
$208,260 during 2003, $198,900 during 2002 and $182,520 during 2001. See Note 7.

As described in Note 10, certain shareholders, directors and an executive officer of the Company
purchased preferred shares issued by a subsidiary of the Company. See Note 1.
13. Employee Benefit Plan

The Company’s employees based in the United States may participate in a salary deferral plan (the
“401(k) Plan”) in which eligible employees can contribute up to 15% of their eligible compensation.
The Company also may contribute on a discretionary basis. During the years ended December 31, 2003,
2002, and 2001, the Company contributed $81,815, $67,165 and $60,114, respectively to the 401(k) Plan.

SCHEDULE V
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS AND RESERVES

Additions
Balance at  (Reductions) Balance
Beginning Charged to at End
. of Period Expense Deductions of Period
For the year ended December 31, 2003: ‘ :
Allowance for doubtful accounts. . .............. - $49,049 $ 38839 § (260) §$ 87,628
Inventory reserve . . . . ... .ot $857,986  $ 48,686 $ (38,749) $867,923
For the year ended December 31, 2002:%= =7 - e ;
Allowance for doubtful accounts. . . ............. $ 68,888 § 22,220 $ (42,059) $ 49,049
Inventory reserve . . . e $679,052  $490,666  $(311,732) $857,986
For the year ended December 31, 2001:
Allowance for doubtful accounts . . . ............. $995,599  $ 50,240  §(976,951) $ 68,888
. Inventory reserve . .. .. ... $757,185  $113,920  $(192,053) $679,052
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EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, Thomas C.K. Yuen, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Formy 10-K of SRS Labs, Inc.;

2. -Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not: contain any untrue statement.of a
" material fact or omit. to state a material fact necessary to. make. the-statements made, in light
-of the circumstances-under. which such: statements were made not mlsleadmg wrth respect to
the period covered by this annual report; ‘ : .

3. Based:on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in
this annual report, fairly present in-all material respects the financial condition, results of
- operations and cash flows-of the registrant as of; and for, the periods presented in this annual
report;

4. :The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for: -establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act.Rules 13a= 15(e) and
15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have: L e

'a) ' designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that:materiat.information

: relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
-others within those -entities, particularly during the period in. whlch thls annual report is
being prepared,; R R

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s. disclosure controls and procedures and

+ presented in-this-annual.report our conclusions about the effectiveness:of the disclosure
controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this annual report based
on such evaluation; and v

¢) disclosed in this annual report any change in the registrant’s internal control over
.financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s-fourth fiscal quarter ended
December 31,2003 that has materially affected; or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. .The registrant’s other certifying officers and.I have disclosed, based on our most recent
“:evaluation. of internal control over financial reporting;-to the registrant’s auditors-and. the
«audit.committee of registrant’s board of directors.(or persons performing the: equrvalent

functions):

-:a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in-the-design or operation of internal
3 * controls over financial reporting ‘which are reasonably likely. to adversély affect the
registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial:information;

- b). - any fraud, whether'or not material, that involves management or other employees who
have a significant role in the'registrant’s.internal. controls over financial reporting.

Dated: March 29,2004 - - By o /s/ THoMAS C.K. YUEN

Thomas C.K. Yuen
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)




EXRHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, Janet M. Biski, certify that:

1.
2.

1 have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of SRS Labs, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untru¢ statement of a
material fact or omit to state-a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light

~ of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to

the period covered by this annual report;

- Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in
this annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition; results of

operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual
report; s

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and ‘.ma'intai‘ning
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and
15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

- a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information

--relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries; is made known to us by
others within. those entities, particularly during the period in which this annual report is
being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure contrels and -procedures and

presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
-controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by thxs annual report based
on such evaluation; and

c) dlsclosed in this annual report any change in.the registrant’s internal. control over
financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter ended
December 31, 2003 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to matenally
affect, the. registrant’s internal control over. financial reporting; and .

.The registrant’s other certifying officers and 1 have:disclosed, based on.our most recent -

evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to:the registrant’s auditors. and the

~audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equlvalent

functions):

..-a) .all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal

.controls over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the
_registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information;

b). any fraud, whether:or not material, that involves management or other employees who
-‘have a significant role in.the registrant’s internal controls over financial reporting.

Dated: March 29, 2004. S By: /s/ JANET M. BISKI

Janet M. Biski
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)



EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT.TO
18.US.C. SECTION. 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF. THE: SARBANES-OXLEY :ACT OF.2002

In, connection with the Annual Report of SRS Labs,: Inc. (the.“Company”) on Form 10-K for,the
year ending December 31, 2003 as filed with the, Securmes and -Exchange ; Comm1551on on the date N
hereof (the-“Report”), Thomas C:K. Yuen, Chairman of the Board. and Chief Executive Officer of the ,

Company; hereby certifies, pursuant.to. 18 U.S.C.-1350, as adopted, pursuant to 906 of the Sarbanes- - . -
Oxtey Act of 2002, that, to his knowledge

1. The Report.fully:complies with. the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securmes
Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in.the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial -
condition and result of operatlons of the Company

Dated: March 29, 2004 - By: /s/ THoMmas C.K. YUEN

Thomas C.K. Yuen
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive ™
Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERHHC‘ATION‘PI"J‘R’SI'}ANT TO
~ 18-U.S.C. SECTION1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES:OXLEY ACT OF 2002

~In connection w1th ‘the* Anrival Report of SRS Labs, Iné. (the “Company”) ‘on Form 10-K for the
year ending‘December 31 »2003 as filed'with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date
héreof- (the’ “Report”) Janet M. ‘Biski; Chief Fxnancxal Officer-of the Company, hereby certifies,
pursuaiit to-18 U.S/C. 1350, as adopted pursuaiit t6 906 of the: Sarbanes -Oxley Act of 2002, that, to his
knowledge: scrto2 .
1. The'Report fully'cbmp'liés with'the réquirements of séctiofi '13‘(a)°"c')'rb IS('de)‘of:th'é‘-SECurities»

Exchange_Act of 1934; and e N S
2. The information‘contained in ‘the Report fairly: presents in- all matenal respects the ﬁnanmal

condition and result of operations of the Company. / * ‘ : '

Dated: March 29, 2004, .
i /s/ JANET M. BIsK1
Janet M. Biski
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)




